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To Our Stockholders

InfoSpace delivered solid financial results and accomplished great deal in 2010 Total revenues increased

19% from 2009 and we posted $27.6 million of Adjusted EBITDA equal to 11% of revenue Since 2007 when

we divested our directory and mobile businesses and focused on search InfoSpace has grown its search business

at compound annual rate of 15.1% This is similar to growth in the entire search market and speaks to our

sustained value proposition to Internet users and our network of distribution partners

2010 was year of transition for InfoSpace Ijoined the nianagement team last November as President and

Acting CEO My decision to join this team was influenced by my experience as member of the Board of

Directors since 2007 Based on that experience believed that the Company has significant potential and my
short time leading the Company has strengthened my confidence in that belief We have fantastic team at

InfoSpace and Board of Directors that is committed to generating value for stockholders

Operating Businesses

Our search business is powered by our metasearch technology which provides aggregated results to search

queries We do this both directly through our owned and operated web properties and indirectly through our

global network of nearly 100 distribution partners Our unique ability to blend results from multiple search and

other content providers enhances consumer results and delivers superior monetization to our sites and our

partners We have recently sharpened our focus in search by adding new features and functionality to our

metasearch products and by adding new partners to our distribution network Additionally we extended our

relationships with our key search providers which will allow us to continue the delivery of Google Yahoo and

Bing search results and ads for the next three years

In addition to search we have several newer and smaller businesses that we intend to grow We entered

e-commence in 2010 with our acquisition of the Mercantila network of specialty online stores While this

business is still relatively small in scale it has solid leadership and team that is focused on improving the

platform and fine-tuning the model We also launched some new initiatives that extend our capabilities and

diversify our business model We launched our Daily Deal Fetcher commerce service that provides customers

the best deals from the major deal sites such as Groupon and LivingSocial and we continued to improve and

grow WebPosition our innovative online SEO tool that helps individuals businesses and SEO agencies monitor

their search engine rankings and measure their SEO efforts

Liquidity Position and Capital Allocation

InfoSpace remains quite liquid with cash and equivalents at the end of 2010 of approximately $254 million

and no debt In addition InfoSpace has approximately $800 million of previous net operating losses available to

potentially provide tax advantage for future profits Our cash position coupled with this significant tax

attribute provides us with great opportunity to invest in the acquisition of attractive profitable assets and

companies More than
any

other use of our capital we believe that this strategy properly executed can

generate superior returns for our stockholders

In the months since joined the management team we have been working diligently to find opportunities to

allocate our capital and there are many interesting options that we are evaluating While it is difficult to predict

with certainty it is my expectation that by the time of our next annual meeting we will have allocated

meaningful amount of our capital to acquire attractive high-yielding businesses at sensible valuations We have

tremendous opportunity and we take our responsibility in this area very seriously

am excited about the future at Infospace and encourage any
of you to contact me directly with thoughts

advice suggestions words of encouragement or words of dissent

Bill Ruckelshaus

President and CEO
Tel 425.201.8900

Adjusted EBITDA of $27.6 million is non GAAP financial measure that is calculated by adjusting GAAP
net income of $13.7 million to exclude the $13.9 million aggregate effect of income taxes depreciation

amortization of intangible assets stock-based compensation expense and other income net
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This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties The statements in this

report that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Words such as anticipate believe plan expect

future intend may will should estimate predict potential continue and similar

expressions identify forward-looking statements hut the absence of these wurds dues nut mean that the statement

is not forward looking These forward-looking statements include hut are not limited to statements regarding

projections of ourfuturefinancialperjbrmance trends in our businesses ourfuture business plans and growth

strategy including our plans to expand develop or acquire particular operations or businesses and the

sufficiency of our cash balances and cash generated from operating investing and financing acti vities for our

future liquidity and capital resource needs

Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors that

may cause our results levels of activity performance achievements and prospects and those of the Internet

industries generally to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements These risks uncertainties and other factors include among others those identified under Item lA

Risk Factors and elsewhere in this reporL You should not rely on forward-looking statements which speak

only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly

any forward-looking statement to reflect new information events or circumstances after the date of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events

ITEM Business

Overview

InfoSpace Inc InfoSpaee our or we offers applications and services that deliver differentiated and

convenient benefits for the online consumer These benefits include the discovery of information entertainment

and products for sale We offer range of search and online retail solutions for consumers and extend our search

solutions to our distribution partners

We operate our business in two primary segments Core and E-Commerce Our Core segment is comprised

of our Web search offerings to Internet users and our distribution partners Our E-Commerce segment includes

collection of more than 200 specialty online retail stores under the Mercantila brand We generally use the term

services to represent search services and our Core segment and use the term products to represent retail

products sold through our E-Commerce segment

We were founded in 1996 and are incorporated in the state of Delaware Our principal corporate office is

located in Bellevue Washington We also have an office in Palo Alto California Our common stock is listed on

the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol INSP

Core Segment

Our Core business uses our metasearch technology to offer users unique search experience that combines

the results of several search engine content providers including Google Yahoo and Bing among others and

aggregates filters and prioritizes the results This combination provides more relevant search results page and

leverages the investments made by our search customers to continually improve the user experience

Additionally we believe the combination of results from multiple search customers is likely to yield greater

number of relevant advertisements which in turn should result in greater ability to generate revenue from

query as compared to the results provided by any single search engine

We use our metasearch technology to provide online search results on our own branded websites and on the

sites of more than 100 distribution partners Our relationships with our largest content providers are longstanding

and have been stable Some content providers such as Google and Yahoo pay us to distribute their content and

we refer to those providers as our search customers



We offer online search services directly to consumers through our owned nnd operated Web properties such

as Dogpile.com WebCraw/ecom MetaCrawler.com and WebFetch.com which collectively receive millions of

unique visitors each month We use the term properties to refer to the methods in which end users access our

search services which typically are websites and downloadable applications belonging to us or our distribution

partners In addition we provide search services through the Web properties of distribution partners Partner

versions of our Web offerings are generally private labeled and delivered with each distribution partners unique

requirements

Our strategy for the Core segment is to continue to evolve our value proposition of providing multiple

sources of content in single product We invest in technology to improve the relevancy of our search results to

extend our search services to consumers in entertaining formats and to provide our distribution partners with

aluable product content management and hosting services

E- Commerce Segment

In May 2010 we diversified our offerings with the acquisition of our Commerce business Mercantila

Mercantilas online stores offer specialty items that are typically niche and difficult to find fulfill specific

customer need require significant amount of research before the purchase decision and are more expensive

than the average online purchase Mercantila strives to offer convenient online shopping experience for these

specialty items by providing distinctive blend of selection targeted Web stores expert advice and customer

service

Mercantila operates collection of more than 200 specialty online retail stores each with its own branded

storefront Mercantilas drop-ship supplier platform enables it to partner with thousands of active vendors who

supply its products Mercantila provides interactive tools and information on its websites to help consumers make

informed purchasing decisions Such information services include detailed product information pages

personalized product recommendations customer reviews and other editorial content Mercantilas customer

care representatives are available by phone or email to provide personal guidance and answer customers

questions

Mercantilas strategy for the E-Commerce segment is to provide more compelling shopping experience to

consumers through ongoing development of its online catalogs and expansion into new categories while

providing an expanding assortment within its current categories Mercantila strives to continue to improve our

operating efficiency by investing in and leveraging our technology and relationships with vendors and partners

See Note 10 Segment Information of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II of

this report for detailed information on revenue and gross margin by segment

Revenue Sources

Our search services revenue is primarily derived from search content providers who provide paid search

links for display as part of our search services From these content providers whom we refer to as our search

customers we license rights to certain search products and services including both non-paid and paid search

links We receive revenues from our search customers when an end user of our Web search services clicks on

paid search link that is provided by that search customer and displayed on one of our owned and operated Web

properties or displayed on the Web property of one of our search distribution partners Revenues are recognized

in the period in which such paid clicks occur and are based on the amounts earned and remitted to us by our

search customers for such clicks In addition we earn revenue from certain distribution partners such as fixed

monthly fee in exchange for portal infrastructure services

We derive significant portion of our Core revenue from small number of search customers and we expect

that this concentration will continue in the foreseeable future Google and Yahoo each accounted for more than



10% of our total revenues in 2010 and jointly accounted for more than 80% of our total revenues in 2010 and

more than 95% in 2009 and 2008 If either of these search custoniers reduces or eliminates the services they

provide to us or our distribution partners or if either of these search customers is unwilling to pay us amounts

they owe us it could materially harm our business and financial results

Our main search customer agreements are with Google and Yahoo We renewed our principal Yahoo

agreement in January 2011 and it expires in December 2013 Our principal agreement with Google expires in

April 2011 and we plan to negotiate its renewal before it expires Both Google and Yahoo have requirements

and guidelines regarding and reserve certain rights of approval over the use and distribution of their respective

search products and services The requirements and guidelines are frequently subject to differing interpretations

by the parties and both Google and Yahoo may modify certain requirements and guidelines of their agreements

with us at their discretion If Google or Yahoo believe that we or our search distribution partners have failed to

meet the requirements and guidelines promulgated under these search customer agreements they may suspend or

terminate our or our distribution partners use and distribution of such search customers search products and

services with or without notice and in the event of certain violations may terminate their agreements with us

We and our distribution partners have limited rights to cure breaches of the requirements and guidelines

Google and Yahoo each make certain representations and warranties to us in the agreements regarding the

content and operation of their search services and we make certain representations and warranties in the

agreements regarding our use and distribution of their search services Under these agreements the parties also

provide for some indemnification relating to these representations and warranties Google and Yahoo provide

certain indemnification with respect to ownership of the content and technology provided by their search

services and we provide certain indemnification with respect to our and our distribution partners use and

distribution of Google and Yahoos search services

Our partners for distribution of our online search services include internet service providers Web portals

and software application providers We generated approximately 35% 42% and 23% of our online search

revenues through relationships with our top five distribution partners in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Our

agreements with most of our distribution partners come up for renewal in 2011 and 2012 and we plan to

negotiate renewals for many of these agreements In addition some of our distributors have the right to terminate

their agreements immediately in the event of certain breaches We anticipate that our content and distribution

costs for our relationships with our distribution partners will increase as revenues grow and may increase as

percentage of revenues to the extent that there are changes to existing arrangements or we enter into new

arrangements on less favorable terms Recently we have experienced increased competition from our search

customers seeking to enter into content provider agreements directly with our existing or potential distribution

partners making it increasingly difficult for us to renew agreements with existing major distribution partners or

to enter into distribution agreements with new partners on favorable terms

We generate revenues for our Commerce segment by serving customers of Mercantilas collection of

online specialty retail stores that feature items that are typically difficult to find online and are more expensive

than the average online purchase We design Mercantilas websites to provide interactive tools and in-depth

information about our products to help consumers make informed purchase decisions We provide customer care

representatives that are available by phone or email to provide service and guidance or to answer questions We

strive to offer our customers the lowest prices possible for our products including free shipping on majority of

Mercantilas product catalog Through the drop-ship supplier platform technology developed by us and licensed

from others we partner with our product vendors and logistic providers to provide fulfillment

Research and Development

We believe that our technology is essential to expand and enhance our products and services and maintain

their attractiveness and competitiveness Research and development expenses were $6.8 million in 2010

$5.6 million in 2009 and $9.9 million in 2008



Intellectual Property

Our success depends significantly upnn our technology and intellectual property rights To protect our rights

and the value of our corporate brands and reputation we rely on combination of domain name registrations

confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties protective contractual provisions and laws

regarding copyrights patents trademarks and trade secrets It is our policy to require employees and contractors

to execute confidentiality and non-use agreements that prohibit the unauthorized disclosure and use of our

confidential and proprietary information and if applicable that transfer to us any rights they may have in

inventions and discoveries including but not limited to trade secrets copyrightable works or patentable

technologies that they may develop while under our employ In addition prior to entering into discussions with

third parties regarding our business and technologies we generally require that such parties enter into

confidentiality and non-use agreements with us If these discussions result in license or other business

relationship we also generally require that the agreement setting forth the parties respective rights and

obligations include provisions for the protection of our intellectual property rights For example the standard

language in our agreements with distribution partners provides that we retain ownership of our intellectual

property in our technologies and requires them to display our intellectual property ownership notices as

appropriate

We hold 30 trademark registrations in the United States and 76 trademark registrations in various foreign

countries We also have applied for registration of certain service marks and trademarks in the United States and

in other countries and will seek to register additional marks in the U.S and foreign countries as appropriate We

may not be successful in obtaining registration for the service marks and trademarks for which we have applied

or in maintaining the registration of existing marks In addition if we are unable to acquire and/or maintain

domain names associated with those trademarks for example www.dogpile.com www.webcrawler.com

www.metacrawler.com and www.infospace.com the value of our trademarks may be diminished

We hold U.S patents Our issued patents relate to online search online advertisements and location

services among others We believe that the duration of the applicable patents is adequate relative to the expected

lives of their impact on our services We anticipate ongoing patent application activity in the future However

patent claims may not be issued and if issued may be challenged or invalidated by third parties In addition

issued patents may not provide us with any competitive advantages

We may be unable to adequately or cost-effectively protect or enforce our intellectual property rights and

failure to do so could weaken our competitive position and negatively impact our business and financial results

If others claim that our products infringe their intellectual property rights we may be forced to seek expensive

licenses reengineer our products engage in expensive and time-consuming litigation or stop marketing and

licensing our products See the section entitled Risk Factors in Part Item 1A of this report for additional

information regarding protecting and enforcing intellectual property rights by us and third parties against us

MetaCrawler License Agreement We hold an exclusive perpetual worldwide license subject to certain

limited exceptions to the MetaCrawler intellectual property and related search technology from the University of

Washington This license may apply to certain technology currently used in some of our web search services

Competition

We operate in the online search and online retail markets both of which are extremely competitive and

rapidly changing In both markets our current and prospective competitors include large companies that have

substantially greater resources than we have and start-up companies with variety of innovative products and

services

Although we believe that no one competitor offers all of the products and services that we do in online

search we face competition from various sources In particular Google Yahoo and Bing Microsoft

collectively control significant majority of the online search market Each of these three companies provides



search results to our search services and also compete with our search services for Internet users and potential

distribution partners In addition our distribution partners compete with us and with our search customers for

Internet users We also compete with other information and content providers for certain of our specific content

services We believe that the primary competitive factors in the market for online search services are

the ability to continue to meet the evolving information content and service demands of Internet users

the cost effectiveness reliability and security of the search applications and services

the ability to attract Internet users to search services in cost effective way

the ability to provide programs or services such as embedded search browsers default search provider

settings within the search browsers or downloadable applications that may displace competing search

services and

the ability to develop innovative products and services that enhance the appearance and utility of search

services both to Internet users and to current and potential distribution partners

The retail business for the products sold on our E-Commerce sites is highly competitive Competitors with

our E-Commerce businesses include general merchandise retailers that have both an online and brick and mortar

presence such as Target Sears and Costco online general merchandise retailers such as Amazon.com eBay

and Overstock.com large specialty online retailers such as CSN and Hayneedle small local and online specialty

retailers and our own vendors selling direct to consumers

We believe that the primary competitive factors in the online retail niarket are

the ability to attract consumers to web stores in cost effective way

the ability to provide wide assortment of products within the targeted categories

the ability to offer products for sale at competitive price while maintaining sufficient profit margins

and

the ability to ship products to consumers in an expedient and cost effective manner

Governmental Regulation

Because of the increasing use of the Internet U.S and foreign governments have adopted or may in the

future adopt laws and regulations relating to the Internet addressing issues such as consumer protection user

privacy security pricing age verification content taxation copyrights and other intellectual property

distribution advertising and product and services quality These or other laws or regulations that may be enacted

in the future could have adverse effects on our business including higher regulatory compliance costs

limitations on our ability to provide some services in some states or countries and liabilities that might be

incurred through lawsuits or regulatory penalties See the section entitled Risk Factors in Part Item of this

report for additional information regarding the potential impact of governmental regulation on our operations and

results

Seasonality

Our Core revenue is affected by seasonal fluctuations in Internet usage which generally declines in the

summer months Our E-Commerce revenue is seasonally affected particularly during the fourth quarter holiday

season as Mercantilas sales increase

Employees

As of February 25 2011 we had 174 full-time employees None of our employees are represented by

labor union and we consider employee relations to be positive There is significant competition for qualified



personnel in our industry particularly for software development and other technical staff We believe that our

future success will depend in part on our continued ability to hire and retain qualified personnel

Company Internet Site and Availability of SEC Filings

Our corporate Internet site is located at www.infospaceinc.com We make available on that site as soon as

reasonably practicable our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current

Reports on Form as well as any amendments to those filings and other reports filed with or furnished to the

U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC Our SEC filings as well as our Code of Conduct and

Ethics and other corporate governance documents can be found in the Investor Relations section of our site and

are available free of charge Information on our Internet site is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K In

addition the SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information

statements and other information regarding us and other issuers that file electronically with the SEC

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain information as of February 25 2011 with respect to our executive

officers

Name Age Position

William Ruckelshaus 46 President Acting Chief Executive Officer and Director

Nikhil Behl 37 Chief Executive Officer of Mercantila

David Binder 41 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Travis McElfresh 40 Chief Technology Officer

Eric Emans 37 Chief Accounting Officer

Michael Glover 48 Vice President Distribution and Business Development

Stephen Hawthornthwaite 41 Vice President of Corporate Development

Alesia Pinney 47 General Counsel and Secretary

William Ruckelshaus became President and Acting Chief Executive Officer in November 2010 after

serving as director of InfoSpace since May 2007 Mr Ruckelshaus served as Chief Operating Officer of

Audience Science Inc formerly known as Revenue Science Inc an Internet advertising technology and

services company from August 2008 to November 2010 as well as its Chief Financial Officer from May 2006 to

November 2010 From July 2002 to April 2006 he served as Senior Vice President Corporate Development at

Expedia Inc an online travel agency where he oversaw Expedias mergers
and acquisitions and led the

corporate strategic planning-effort Mr Ruckelshaus came to Expedia from Credit Suisse First Boston

Technology Group where he was Director of Mergers Acquisitions focusing on services software and

Internet verticals Mr Ruckelshaus is graduate of Princeton University and the University of Virginia Darden

School of Business

Nikhil BehI joined InfoSpaces Commerce segment as Chief Executive Officer of Mercantila in

May 2010 Mr BehI has more than 15 years of technology and online retail experience recently serving as

Mercantilas Chief Merchandising Officer overseeing hundreds of business partnerships and product strategy

beginning in 2007 From 2005 to 2007 Mr BehI served at Hewlett-Packard where he was Vice President of Call

Center Sales and Customer Service for HPShopping.com From 2002 to 2005 BehI served as Vice President of

Strategy and Development where he led the integration team that merged Compaq AtHome into HPShopping

Additionally Mr Behl served as the Director of Sales and Merchandising for HPShopping.com where he was

responsible for managing the strategic direction and operations of products and services Mr Behl earned

Bachelor of Science degree in business administration from Menlo College

David Binder has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since January 2008 Mr Binder joined

InfoSpace as Vice President of Finance in October 2004 From November 2001 to October 2004 he served as

Director and later Senior Director of Business Development at drugstore.com Inc an online drug store



Eric Emans has served as our Chief Accounting Officer since January 2008 Mr Emans joined the

Company as Corporate Controller in September 2006 However Mr Emans had previously held various

positions at the Company from September 2003 to December 2005 including Manager Revenue Assurance and

Senior Manager Finance From December 2005 to September 2006 he served as Director Mobile Operations at

Corbis Corporation provider of visual content and rights services He began his career as an auditor at

Deloitte Touche LLP

Michael .1 Glover has served as our Vice President Distribution and Business Development since

October 2008 Mr Glover has held various positions in Business Development since joining InfoSpace in

October 2000 From April 2008 to September 2008 he served as Vice President Business Development From

April 2006 to March 2008 he served as Senior Director Business Development after serving as Director

Business Development from June 2004 to April 2006 From January 2004 to June 2004 he served as Senior

Manager Business Development after serving as Business Development Manager from October 2000 to

December 2003

Stephen Hawthornthwaite was appointed InfoSpaces Vice President of Corporate Development in

March 2010 He is responsible for managing the Companys merger and acquisition activities and its overall new

business development Mr Hawthornthwaite has more than 14 years of investment banking experience advising

both public and private companies on mergers and acquisitions across multiple industry sectors Prior to joining

InfoSpace from March 2004 to March 2010 he most recently served as partner and managing director at GCA
Savvian an independent investment banking firm where he was instrumental in building the firms digital media

franchise and advised on numerous MA transactions in the digital media and Internet sectors Previous to his

six year tenure at GCA Savvian from January 1998 to February 2004 Mr Hawthornthwaite served as an officer

in the investment banking divisions at Jefferies Group Inc and Robertson Stephens Inc Mr Hawthornthwaite

earned bachelors degree in political science from Duke University and J.D degree from Wake Forest

University School of Law

Travis McElfresh was appointed InfoSpaces chief technology officer in September 2010 Mr McElfresh

has more than 15 years of experience in product management software engineering operations management and

online consumer experiences and platforms in the technology sector From December 2008 to June 2010

Mr McElfresh served as chief technology officer vice president of product and engineering at Cast.com

news and video service platform startup From October 2003 to November 2008 Mr McElfresh was at

MSNBC.com as Vice President of Technology overseeing all areas of product development software

engineering and web operations From January 2002 to October 2003 Mr McElfresh served as lead program

manager at Xbox where he directed the entire web application platform for Xbox.com Additionally

Mr Mcblfresh has held technical positions at companies including OneSoft AmeriTeach and the University of

Wyoming Mr McElfresh holds bachelors degree from Whitman College and an MBA from University of

Washington Michael Foster School of Business

Alesia Pinney has served as our General Counsel and Secretary since July 2009 From September 2006 to

July 2009 Ms Pinney provided operational and legal services to four privately held companies in transition

including Sound Inpatient Physicians LLC as its Chief Administrative Officer Secretary and General Counsel

2008-09 Talyst Inc as its Executive Vice President Operations and Legal 2007-08 Lighthouse Document

Technologies Inc as its Acting General Counsel 2007 and Weldon Barber as its Chief Operating Officer and

General Counsel 2006 07 Prior to such time Ms Pinney was employed by drugstore.com Inc as its Vice

President Legal and Human Affairs Secretary and General Counsel from June 2005 to December 2006 and as its

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary from October 2000 to June 2005



ITEM 1A.Risk Factors

Most of our revenue is attributable to Google and Yahoo and the loss of or payment dispute with

either of these search customers or any future significant search customer would harm our business and

financial results

We rely on our ability to acquire rights to content from third-party content providers whom we refer to as

search customers and our future success in our online search business is highly dependent upon our ability to

maintain and renew relationships with these search customers Google and Yahoo jointly accounted for over

80% 95% and 95% of our total revenues in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively and we expect that

concentration will continue Google Yahoo and our other search customers are competitors of each other and

the way we do business with one of them may not be acceptable to one or more of their competitors with whom

we also do business This may result in Google Yahoo or other search customers not renewing their agreements

with us on favorable terms or at all Google Yahoo and other search custoniers are also our competitors in

online search and they have had relationships with some of our current and potential search distribution

partners In addition to competing with us on their own Web properties our search customers may in the future

contract directly with our distribution partners to provide online search services

If Google Yahoo or any future significant search customer were to substantially reduce or eliminate the

content it provides to ug or to our distribution partners our business results could materially suffer to the extent

we are unable to establish and maintain new search customer relationships or expand our remaining search

customer relationships to replace the lost or disputed revenue We have recently entered into new agreement

with Yahoo that will expire in December 2013 Our principal agreement with Google expires in April 2011 and

we are in the process of negotiating terms for new or extended agreement If we are unable to renew our

contract with Google before its expiration in April 2011 on terms similar to those in our current agreement our

business and financial results would be negatively impacted and could be materially harmed if we are unable to

establish and maintain new search customer relationships or expand our remaining search customer

relationships to replace the lost revenue

If any of our third-party content providers including Yahoo or Google are unwilling to pay us amounts

that it owes us or dispute amounts it owes us or has paid to us for any reason including for the reasons described

in the risk factors below our business and financial results could materially suffer to the extent we were unable

to establish and maintain new search customer relationships or expand our remaining search customer

relationships to replace the lost or disputed revenue In addition Yahoo recently signed an agreement with

Bing under which Bing provides all of Yahoos algorithmic search results and some of its paid search results If

Yahoo cannot maintain an agreement with Bing on favorable terms Yahoos ability to provide us with

algorithmic and paid searchiesults may be impaired and our operations and financial performance may be

materially impacted as result

Failure by us or our search distribution partners to comply with the guidelines promulgated by Google

and Yahoo relating to the use of content may cause that search customer to temporarily or permanently

suspend the use of its content or terminate its agreement with us or may require us to modify or terminate

certain distribution relationships

If we or our search distribution partners fail to meet the guidelines promulgated by Google or Yahoo for the

use of their content we may not be able to continue to use their content or provide the content to such

distribution partners Our
agreements

with Google and Yahoo give them the ability to suspend the use and the

distribution of their content for non compliance with their requirements and guidelines and in the case of

breaches of certain other provisions of their agreements to terminate their agreements with us immediately

regardless of whether such breaches could be cured

The terms of the search customer agreements with Google and Yahoo and the related guidelines are subject

to differing interpretations by the parties Google and Yahoo have in the past suspended and may in the future

suspend their content provided to our websites or the websites of our distribution partners without notice when

they believe that we or our distribution partners are not in compliance with their guidelines or are in breach of the
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terms of their agreements During such suspension we will not receive any revenue from any property ours or

our distribution partners affected by the suspended content and the loss of such revenue could harm our

business and financial results

Additionally as our bosiness evolves we expect that the guidelines of Google and Yahoo as well as the

parties interpretations of compliance breach and sufficient justification for suspension of use of content will

change These changes in the guidelines and the parties interpretations of those guidelines may result in

restrictions on our use of the Google and Yahoo search services and may require us to terminate our agreement

with distribution partners or forego entering into agreements with distribution partners The loss or reduction of

content that we can use or make available to our distribution partners as result of suspension termination or

modification of distribution or search customer agreements particularly our Google and Yahoo agreements

could have material adverse effect on our business and financial results

substantial portion of our revenues is dependent on our relationships with small number of

distribution partners who distribute our online search services the loss of which could have material

adverse effect on our business and financial results

We rely on our relationships with online search distribution partners including Internet service providers

Web portals and software application providers for distribution of our online search services In 2010 60% of

our total revenues came from searches conducted by end users on the Web properties of our search distribution

partners If we had not purchased certain assets from Make The Web Better on April 2010 and the revenue

generated by those assets had remained owned by search distribution partner 66% of our total revenues in 2010

would have come from searches conducted by end users on the Web properties of our search distribution

partners We generated approximately 30% 42% and 23% of our total revenues through relationships with our

top five distribution partners in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively There can be no assurance that these

relationships will continue or will result in benefits to us that outweigh their cost Moreover as the proportion of

our revenue generated by distribution partners has increased in previous quarters we have experienced and

expect to continue to experience less control and visibility over performance One of our challenges is providing

our distribution partners with relevant services at competitive prices in rapidly evolving markets Distribution

partners may create their own services or may seek to license services from our competitors or replace the

services that we provide Also many of our distribution partners have limited operating histories and evolving

business models that may prove unsuccessful even if our services are relevant and our prices competitive If we

are unable to maintain relationships with our distribution partners our business and financial results could be

materially adversely affected

Our agreements with most of our distribution partners come up for renewal in 2011 and 2012 In addition

some of our distributors have the right to immediately terminate their agreements in the event of certain breaches

Such agreements may be terminated may not be renewed or may not be renewed on favorable terms any of

which could adversely impact our business and financial results We anticipate that our distribution costs for our

revenue sharing arrangements with our distribution partners will increase as revenue grows and may increase as

percentage of revenues to the extent that there are changes to existing arrangements or we enter into new

arrangements on less favorable terms

In addition competition continues for quality consumer traffic in the online search market Recently we

have experienced increased competition from our search customers as they seek to enter into content provider

agreements directly with our existing or potential distribution partners making it increasingly difficult for us to

renew agreements with existing major distribution partners or to enter into distribution agreements with new

partners on favorable terms Any difficulties that we experience with maintaining or strengthening our business

relationships with our major distribution partners could have an adverse effect on our business and financial

results
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If advertisers perceive that they are not receiving quality traffic to their sites through their paid-per-click

advertisements they may reduce or eliminate their advertising through the Internet Further if Google

Yahoo or other search customers perceive that they are not receiving quality traffic from our own

websites or the Web property of distribution partner they may reduce the fees they pay to us Either of

these factors could hake negative material impact on our business and financial results

Most of our revenue from our online search business is based on the number of paid clicks on commercial

search results served on our owned and operated Web properties or our distribution partners Web

properties Each time user clicks on commercial search result the search customer that provided the

commercial search result receives fee from the advertiser who paid for the click and the search customer pays

us portion of that fee If the click originated from one of our distribution partners Web properties we share

portion of the fee we receive with such partner If an advertiser receives what it perceives to he poor quality

traffic meaning that the advertisers objectives are met for an insufficient percentage of clicks for which it pays

the advertiser may reduce or eliminate its advertisements through the search customer that provided the

commercial search result to us This leads to loss of revenue for our search customers and consequently fewer

fees paid to us Also if search customer perceives that the traffic originating from one of our Web properties or

the Web property of distribution partner is of poor quality the search customer may discount the amount it

charged all advertisers whose paid click advertisements appeared on such website or Web property based on the

amount of
poor quality thffic the search customer deems to have been generated and accordingly may reduce

the fees it would have otherwise paid us The search customer may also suspend or terminate our ability to

provide its content through such websites or Web properties if such activities are not modified to satisfy the

search customers concerns The payment of fewer fees to us or the inability to provide content through such

websites or Web properties particularly the content of Google and Yahoo could have material negative effect

on our business and financial results

Poor quality traffic may be result of invalid click activity Such invalid click activity occurs for example

when person or automated click generation program clicks on commercial search result to generate fees for

the Web property displaying the commercial search result rather than to view the Web page underlying the

commercial search result Some of this invalid click activity is referred to as click fraud When such invalid

click activity is detected the search customer may not charge the advertiser or may refund the fee paid by the

advertiser for such invalid clicks If the invalid click activity originated from one of our distribution partners

Web properties or our owned and operated properties such non charge or refund of the fees paid by the

advertisers in turn reduces the amount of fees the search customer pays us The resulting loss of revenue

particularly with respect to Google or Yahoo content could harm our business and financial results

Initiatives we uudertake to improve the quality of the traffic that we send to our search customers may not

be successful and even if successful may result in loss of revenue in given reporting period For example

during the first half of 2010 we removed certain traffic from some distribution partners in an effort to improve

traffic quality and these actions while successful in improving traffic quality had material negative impact on

our revenues for the first and second quarters of 2010

significant part of our growth strategy involves identifying acquiring or developing and successfully

integrating businesses or technologies some or all of which may not be complementary to our current

operations or leverage our current infrastructure and operational experience Our financial and operating

results will suffer if we are unsuccessful in integrating our acquisitions

An important component of our strategy for future growth is to identify acquire or develop and

successfully integrate new businesses or technologies into InfoSpace For example as result of our May 2010

acquisition of certain assets of Mercantila Inc we began operating an online retail business that includes

collection of more than 200 specialty online retail stores We may be unable to identify acceptable targets for

acquisition or development If we are successful in identifying targets those targets may not be complementary

to our current Core search or E-Commerce operations and may not leverage our existing infrastructure or
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operational experience Further competition for acquisitions has been and may in the future coatinue to he

intense As result even if we are able to identify an acquisition that we would like to consummate we may not

be able to complete the acquisition on commercially reasonable terms Moreover any such acquisition may not

prove successful In the past our financial results have suffered significantly due to impairment charges of

goodwill and other intangible assets related to prior acquisitions

Acquisitions or development of new businesses or technologies may involve the use of cash potentially

dilutive issuances of stock the potential incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities or amortization expenses

related to certain intangible assets If outside financing is needed we may be unable to obtain it on acceptable

terms or at all in light of the current capital market conditions or other factors The cost of development or

acquisition as the case may be may be greater than anticipated by us or investors

Acquisitions involve numerous other risks that could materially and adversely affect our results of

operations or stock price including

difficulties in assimilating the operations products technology information systems and management

and other personnel of acquired companies that result in unanticipated costs delays or allocation of

resources

the dilutive effect on earnings per
share as result of issuances of stock as well as incurring operating

losses and the amortization of intangible assets for the acquired business

stock volatility due to the perceived value of the acquired business by investors

diverting managements attention from current operations and other business concerns including

potential strain on financial and managerial controls and reporting systems and procedures

disruption of our ongoing business or the ongoing acquired business including impairment of existing

relationships with our employees distributors suppliers or customers or those of the acquired

companies

diversion of capital from other uses

failing to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions in timely manner or at all

difficulties in acquiring foreign companies including risks related to integrating operations across

different cultures and languages currency risks and the particular economic political and regulatory

risks associated with specific countries and

adverse outcome of litigation matters or other contingent liabilities assumed in or arising out of the

acquisitions

Developing or acquiring technology service or business and then integrating that technology service or

business into InfoSpace will be complex time consuming and expensive particularly if we acquire

technology service or business that is not in our current industries of online search and online retail For

example the successful integration of an acquisition requires among other things that we retain key personnel

maintain and support preexisting supplier distribution and customer relationships and integrate accounting and

support functions The complexity of the technologies and operations being integrated and in the case of an

acquisition the disparate corporate cultures and/or industries being combined may increase the difficulties of

integrating an acquired technology or business If our integration of acquired or internally developed

technologies or businesses is not successful we may experience adverse financial or competitive effects

Moreover there can be no assurance that the short- or long-term value of any technology or business that we

develop or acquire will be equal to the value of the cash and other consideration that we paid or expenses we

incurred
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Our new E-Commerce business is subject to many risks

Our F-Commerce business is still in development and we cannot ensure that it will succeed We intend to

offer additional types of products or related online retail services through our E-Commerce sites but cannot

provide assurance that
any

of them will be successful or that their failure will not result in harm to our overall

business The additions and modifications to our business as result of our expansion into online retail have

increased the complexity of our business Future additions to or modifications of our business are likely to have

similareffects We may not be able to manage growth in our E-Commerce business effectively which could

damage our reputation limit our growth in other areas and negatively affect our operating results

Our new E-Commerce business is subject to number of additional risks including the following risks and

risks described elsewhere in this Item IA among others

the risk that we will be unable to attract and retain customers cost effectively which would harm our

ability to achieve and maintain profitability Because much of our current F-Commerce business is

based on one-time transactions with customers for relatively high-priced items we must constantly

acquire new customers We rely on relationships with online services search engines affiliate

marketing websites directories and other websites and online retail businesses to host and provide

content advertising banners and other links that direct customers to our F-Commerce websites and if

we are unable to develop or maintain these relationships on acceptable terms our ability to attract new

customers could be harmed

the risk that we may owe back taxes and penalties in the event that states in which we do not currently

remit sales tax successfully assert that we are required to remit sales tax on products we sell to

consumers in those states If we are forced to remit sales tax for products sold in particular

jurisdiction we may also be required to increase product prices for customers in that jurisdiction

which could impair our ability to compete for those customers particularly for sales of higher value

items and harm our revenue

the risk that we will fail to detect and sufficiently control credit card fraud which could reduce our net

revenues and our gross profit percentage

the risk of product liability claims which could result in costly and time-consuming litigation

decreased sales damage to our brands and have material adverse effects on our business financial

position and operating results particularly if the claim exceeds our or the vendors insurance coverage

or the vendor lacks the financial ability or willingness to properly indemnify us for the claim

the risk of significant number of merchandise returns which could harm our business reputation and

results of operations and the risk that any change to returns policies intended to reduce the number of

product returns may result in customer dissatisfaction fewer initial sales and fewer repeat customers

and

other risks associated with acquisitions

If we do not address these and other risks timely and effectively our F-Commerce business may not

succeed

We rely substantially on third-party relationships for our E-Commerce business If these relationships do

not continue on favorable terms or if the third parties do not perform in the manner we expect our

business will suffer

We rely on our relationships with independent product vendors for the products that we offer for sale on our

F-Commerce websites Our business will suffer if we are unable to develop and maintain relationships with

product vendors that allow us to obtain sufficient quantities of merchandise on acceptable commercial terms and

in timely manner We have relationships with thousands of vendors for the products we offer for sale on our
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websites We depend on our vendors to provide almost all of the products we sell as we do not generally keep

products we sell in inventory If we do not maintain our existing relationships or build new relationships with

vendors on acceptable commercial terms we may be unable to maintain broad selection of merchandise We

generally do not have long-term supply agreements price guarantees or exclusive arrangements with our

vendors As result we cannot guarantee high levels of product quality and selection at competitive prices

because our vendors generally do not have continuing obligation to provide us with merchandise at historical

levels or prices or at all In most cases our relationships with our suppliers do not restrict the suppliers from

selling their inventory to other traditional or online merchandise liquidators or retailers which could in turn limit

the selection of products available on our websites particularly during peak seasons for those products

In addition we rely upon third-party delivery services for the shipment of products to customers These

relationships may not continue on terms we find acceptable or at all if our relationships with third-party delivery

services are terminated or impaired or if these third parties are unable to deliver products for us because of labor

issues deteriorating financial or business conditions natural disasters or any other reason we would be required

to use alternative carriers for the shipment of products to our customers In any of these circumstances we may
be unable to engage alternative carriers on timely basis upon terms we find acceptable or at all In addition

third-party delivery services may not ship to our customers on timely and consistent basis Unexpected

increases in shipping costs delivery times or damaged products could harm our business reputation and

financial condition and results of operations

We also have agreements with third-party service providers to provide processing and administrative

functions with respect to our Commerce call center warehouse email and online marketing search engine

optimization and other areas Services provided by third parties could be interrupted as result of many factors

such as natural disasters failures of the providers technology or personnel or inability to manage peak demand

during busy seasons Failure by third parties to provide us with these services on timely basis and within our

seivice level expectations could liaim uui business In addition to the extent we are unable to maintain our

outsourcing arrangements we may incur substantial costs to either bring those services in-house or transition

them to other providers which may not be successful In the interim we could face significant losses in revenue

due to decreased ability to market accept or fulfill orders

We have history of incurring net losses we may incur net losses in the future and we may not be able to

regain or sustain profitability on quarterly or annual basis

Although we generated net income in our last two years we have incurred net losses on an annual basis for

all but five of the years since our inception and as of December 31 2010 we had an accumulated deficit of

$1.0 billion We may incur net losses in the future including but not limited to losses resulting from our

operations loss on investments the impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets losses from acquisitions

restructuring charges or expense related to stock-based compensation and other equity awards There can be no

assurance that we will be able to achieve and maintain consistent profitability in the future

Our financial results are likely to continue to fluctuate which could cause our stock price to continue to be

volatile or decline

Our financial results have varied on quarterly basis and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future

These fluctuations could cause our stock price to be volatile or decline Many factors could cause our quarterly

results to fluctuate materially including but not limited to

changes or potential changes in our relationships with Google or Yahoo or future significant search

customers such as effects of changes to their requirements or guidelines or their measurement of the

quality of traffic we send to their advertiser networks and
any resulting loss or reduction of content

that we can use or make available to our distribution partners

the loss termination or reduction in
scope

of key distribution relationships in our search business for

example as result of distribution partners licensing content directly from content providers or any
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suspension by our search customers particularly Google and Yahoo of the right to use or distribute

content on the Web properties of our distribution partners

our strategic initiatives and our ability to implement those initiatives in cost effective nianner

the mix of search revenue generated by our owned and operated Web properties versus our distribution

partners Web properties for example such as the improvement in our financial results for the second

quarter of 2010 that resulted from our acquisition of certain assets including Web properties from

Make The Web Better distribution partner in Api-il 2010

the mix of revenues generated by our Core search business and our E-Commerce business versus other

businesses we develop or acquire

our ability to attract and retain quality traffic

litigation expenses including but not limited to settlement costs

expenses incurred in finding negotiating consummating and integrating acquisitions

variable demand for our products and services rapidly evolving technologies and markets and

consumer preferences

the effects of acquisitions by us our search customers or our distribution partners

increases in the costs or availability of content for our search services or the costs or availability of

products for our E-Commerce business

additional restructuring charges we may incur in the future

seasonality of our Commerce business

the continuing impact of the economic downturn which has in the past led to and may in the future

lead to lower online advertising spend by advertisers and decreases in discretionary consumer

spending resulting in lower revenue per click for paid searches and decreased revenue or slower

revenue growth from our E-Commerce sites particularly since we offer many products that consumers

may view as discretionary items rather than necessities

changes in commodity prices affecting our E-Commerce business which may increase our vendors

costs and as result our costs for acquiring the products we sell

changes in energy costs which may increase our shipping costs in our Commerce business

particularly since many of the products we sell have high shipping costs that are particularly

susceptible to additional costs resulting from increases in energy prices

new court rulings or the adoption of new laws rules or regulations that adversely affect our ability to

acquire content and distribute our search services that affect our ability to operate our Commerce

business or offer non-search products and services or that otherwise increase our potential liability

impairment in the value of long lived assets or the value of acquired assets including goodwill core

technology and acquired contracts and relationships

the effect of changes in accounting principles or in our accounting treatment of revenues or expenses

and

the adoption of new regulations or accounting standards

For these reasons among others you should not rely on period-to-period comparisons of our financial

results to forecast our future performance Furthermore our fluctuating operating results may fall below the

expectations of securities analysts or investors and financial results volatility could make us less attractive to

investors either of which could cause the trading price of our stock to decline
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Our stock price has beeu and is likely to continue to be highly volatile

The trading price of our common stock has been highly volatile Between January 2008 which was the

date that we paid our most recent special dividend and December 31 2010 our stock price ranged from $5.20 to

$12.52 On February 25 2011 the closing price of our common stock was $8.05 Our stock price could decline

or fluctuate wildly in response to many factors including the other risks discussed in this Item IA and the

following among others

actual or anticipated variations in quarterly and annual results of operations

announcements of significant acquisitions dispositions charges changes in or loss of material

contracts new search customers new distribution partner relationships or other business developments

by us our search customers distribution partners or competitors

conditions or trends in the online search services or online retail markets

changes in general conditions in the U.S and global economies or financial markets

announcements of technological innovations or new services by us or our competitors

changes in financial estimates or recommendations by securities analysts

disclosures of any accounting issues such as restatements or material weaknesses in internal control

over financial reporting

equity offerings resulting in the dilution of stockholders

the adoption of new regulations or accounting standards and

announcements or publicity relating to litigation and similarmatters

In addition the stock market in general and the NASDAQ Global Select Market and the market for Internet

and technology company securities in particular have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations These

broad market and industry factors and general economic conditions may materially and adversely affect our stock

price Our stock has been subject to such price and volume fluctuations in the recent past Often class action

litigation has been instituted against companies after periods of volatility in the overall market and in the price of

such companies stock If such litigation were to be instituted against us even if we were to prevail it could

result in substantial cost and diversion of managements attention and resources

If we are unable to hire retain and motivate highly qualified employees including our key employees we

may not be able to successfully manage our business

Our future success depends on our ability to identify attract hire retain and motivate highly skilled

management technical sales and marketing and corporate development personnel Qualified personnel with

experience relevant to our online search and F-Commerce businesses are scarce and competition to recruit them

is intense If we fail to successfully hire and retain sufficient number of highly qualified employees we may
have difficulties in supporting our search customers or expanding our business Realignments of resources

reductions in workforce or other operational decisions have created and could continue to create an unstable

work environment and may have negative effect on our ability to hire retain and motivate employees

Our business and operations are substantially dependent on the performance of our key empluyees all of

whom are employed on an at-will basis We have experienced significant changes at our executive management

level and we may experience more changes in the future Changes of management or key employees may cause

disruption to our operations which may materially and adversely affect our business and financial results or

delay achievement of our business objectives In addition if we lose the services of one or more key employees

and are unable to recruit and retain suitable successors we may not be able to successfully and timely manage

our business or achieve our business objectives For example the success of our search business is partially
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dependent on key personnel who have long-term relationships with our search customers and distribution

partners and the success of our new E-Commerce business is dependent on the knowledge experience and

relationships of the key leadership personnel who joined us in the acquisition of the Mercantila Inc assets There

can be no assurance that any retention program we initiate will be successful at retaining employees including

key employees

In light of current market conditions the value of stock options or restricted stock units granted to

employees may cease to provide sufficient incentive to our employees

Like many technology companies we use stock options restricted stock units and other equity based

awards to recruit technology professionals and senior level employees We now issue only restricted stock units

to employees other than executives and selected employees because stock options are not currently seen as

providing enough incentive to attract or retain employees With respect to those employees to whom we issue

options we face significant challenge in retaining them if the value of these stock options together with the

value of any restricted stock units is either not substantial enough or so substantial that the employee leaves after

their stock options or restricted stock units have vested If our stock price does not increase significantly above

the exercise prices of our options we may need to issue new options in order to motivate and retain our

executives or if option-programs become impracticable we may need to issue other equity incentives or increase

other forms of compensation We may undertake or seek stockholder approval to undertake other equity-based

programs to retain our employees which may be viewed as dilutive to our stockholders or may increase our

compensation costs Additionally there can be no assurance that any such programs we undertake including the

restricted stock unit awards will be successful in motivating and retaining our employees

Our online search services may expose us to claims relating to how the content was obtained distributed

or displayed

Our online search services link users either directly through our own websites or indirectly through the Web

properties of our distribution partners to third party Web pages and content in response to search queries and

other requests These services could expose us to legal liability from claims relating to such third-party content

and sites the manner in which these services are distributed and displayed by us or our distribution partners or

how the content provided by our search customers was obtained or provided by our search customers Such

claims could include the following infringement of patent copyright trademark trade secret or other

intellectual property or proprietary rights violation of privacy and publicity rights unfair competition

defamation providing false or misleading information obscenity pornography and illegal gambling Regardless

of the legal merits of any such claims they could result in costly litigation be time consuming to defend and

divert managements attention and resources If there was determination that we had violated third-party rights

or applicable law we could incur substantial monetary liability be required to enter into costly royalty or

licensing arrangements if available or be required to change our business practices We may also have an

obligation to indemnify and hold harmless certain of our search customers or distribution partners from damages

they suffer for such violations under our contracts with them Implementing measures to reduce our exposure to

such claims could require us to expend substantial resources and limit the attractiveness of our services As

result these claims could result in material harm to our business

In the past there have been legal actions brought or threatened against distributors of downloadable

applications deemed to be adware or spyware Additionally certain bills are pending and some laws have

been passed in certain jurisdictions setting forth requirements that must be met before downloadable

application is downloaded to an end users computer We provide downloadable applications to promote use of

our search services for our owned and operated search services Such applications may be considered adware

We also partner with some distribution partners that provide adware to their users if the partners adhere to our

strict guidelines requiring them among other things to disclose to the user what the adware does and to obtain

the consent of the user before the application is downloaded The adware must also be easy to uninstall We also

review the downloadable application the partner proposes to use before we distribute our results to them We also
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have the right to audit our partners and if we find that they are not following our guidelines we can terminate

our agreement with them or cease providing content to that downloadable application Some partners have not

been able to meet the new guidelines imposed by us or some of our search customers and we no longer provide

the applicable content or any content as the case may be to such partners or certain of their downloadable

applications We work closely with some of our major search customers to try to identify potential distribution

partners that do not meet our guidelines or are in breach of our distribution agreements and we work with our

distribution partners to ensure they deliver quality traffic However there can be no assurance that the measures

we implement to reduce our exposure to claims that certain ways in which the content is distributed violate legal

requirements will be successful Any claims against us as result of violations of legal requirements or

contractual obligations could result in material harm to our business

Our website and transaction management software data center systems or the systems of the third-party

co-location facilities in which they are located could fail or become unavailable which could harm our

reputation result in loss of revenues and current or potential customers and cause us to breach

agreements with our partners

Any system interruptions that result in the unavailability or unreliability of our websites transaction

processing systems or network infrastructure could reduce our sales and impair our ability to properly process

transactions We use internally developed and third party systems for our websites and certain aspects of

transaction processing Some of our systems particularly in our E-Commerce business are relatively new and

untested and thus may be subject to failure or unreliability Any system unavailability or unreliability may cause

unanticipated system disruptions slower response times degradation in customer satisfaction additional

expense impaired quality and speed of order fulfillment or delays in reporting accurate financial information

We provide our own data center services for our online search business from two geographically diverse

third-party co-location facilities Although the two data centers provide some redundancy not all of our systems

and operations have backup redundancy Our E-Commerce infrastructure is partially hosted in separate

co-location facility that has system redundancy but not location redundancy and partially hosted on cloud-

based system that has full redundancy Our systems and operations could be damaged or interrupted by fire

flood earthquakes or other natural disasters power loss telecommunications failure Internet breakdown

break-in or other events beyond our control We could face significant damage as result of these events and

our business interruption insurance may not be adequate to compensate us for all the losses that may occur In

addition such third-party co-location facilities and data center systems use sophisticated equipment

infrastructure and software that may contain bugs or suffer outages that could interrupt service During the

period in which service is unavailable we will be unable or severely limited in our ability to generate revenues

and we may also be exposed to liability from those third parties to whom we provide services through our data

centers For these reasons our business and financial results could be materially harmed if our systems and

operations are damaged or interrupted including if we are unable to develop or if we or our third-party

co-location facility providers are unable to successfully manage the infrastructure necessary to meet current or

future demands for reliability and scalability of our systems

If the volume of traffic to our E-Commerce websites or to search services infrastructure increases

substantially we must respond in timely fashion by expanding our systems which may entail upgrading our

technology transaction processing systems and network infrastructure Our ability to support our expansion and

upgrade requirements may be constrained due to our business demands or constraints of our third party

co-location facility providers Due to the number of our customers and the services that we offer we could

experience periodic capacity constraints which may cause temporary unanticipated system disruptions slower

response times and lower levels of customer service and limit our ability to develop offer or release new or

enhanced products and services Our business could be harmed if we are unable to accurately project the rate or

timing of increases if any in the use of our search services or we fail to expand and upgrade our systems and

infrastructure to accommodate these increases in timely manner
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The security measures we have implemented to secure information we collect and store may be breached

Security breaches may pose risks to the uninterrupted operation of our systems and could cause us to

breach agreements with our customers and distribution partners expose us to mitigation costs litigation

potential investigation and penalties by authorities potential claims by persons whose information was

disclosed and damage our reputation

Our networks or those from third parties that we use may he vulnerable to unauthorized access by hackers

rogue employees or contractors or other persons computer viruses and other disruptive problems Someone

who is able to circumvent security measures could misappropriate our proprietary information or cause

interruptions in our operations We receive retain and transmit certain personal information about our

E-Commerce customers and website visitors using technology and networks provided by third parties to provide

the security and authentication used to transmit confidential information including payment information

Subscribers to some of our online search services are required to provide information that may be considered to

be personally identifiable or private information Unauthorized access to and abuse of this information could

result in significant harm to our business

We take and we believe our third-party providers take reasonable steps to protect the security integrity

and confidentiality of the information that is collected and stored but there is no guarantee that inadvertent or

unauthorized disclosure will not occur or that third parties will not gain unauthorized access despite our efforts If

such unauthorized disclosure or access does occur we may be required under existing and proposed laws to

notify persons
whose information was disclosed or accessed We also may be subject to claims of breach of

contract for such disclosure investigation and penalties by regulatory authorities and potential claims by

persons whose information was disclosed or other persons or companies who suffer damages as result of

unauthorized disclosure Any such claims could result in costly litigation or liability be time consuming to

resolve damage our reputation and divert the attention and resources of management and other personnel

We may need to expend significant capital or other resources protecting against the threat of security

breaches or alleviating problems caused by breaches Although we intend to continue to implement and improve

our security measures persons may be able to circumvent the measures that we implement in the future

Eliminating computer viruses and alleviating other security problems may require interruptions delays or

cessation of service to users accessing our services any of which could harm our business and financial results

We may be subject to liability for our use or distribution of information that we gather or receive from

third parties and indemnity protections or insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover such liability

We obtain content and commerce information from third parties When we distribute this information we

may be liable for the data that is contained in that content This could subject us to legal liability for such things

as defamation negligence intellectual property infringement violation of privacy or publicity rights and product

or service liability among others Laws or regulations of certain jurisdictions may also deem some content

illegal which may expose us to legal liability as well We also gather personal information from users in order to

provide personalized services Gathering and processing this personal information may subject us to legal

liability for among other things negligence defamation invasion of privacy or product or service liability We

are also subject to laws and regulations both in the United States and abroad regarding the collection and use of

end user information and search related data If we do not comply with these laws and regulations we may be

exposed to legal liability

Although the agreements by which we obtain content contain indemnity provisions these provisions may
not cover particular claim or type of claim or the party giving the indemnity may not have the financial

resources to cover the claim Our insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover fully the amounts or types of

claims that might be made against us Any liability that we incur as result of content we receive from third

parties could harm our financial results
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If others claim that our services infringe their intellectual property rights we may be forced to seek

expensive licenses reengineer our services engage in expensive and time-consuming litigation or stop

marketing and licensing our services

Companies and individuals with rights relating to the Internet software and application services industries

have frequently resorted to litigation regarding intellectual property rights In some cases the ownership or scope

of an entitys or persons rights is unclear and may also change over time including through changes in U.S or

international intellectual
property laws or regulations or through court decisions or decisions by agencies or

regulatory boards that manage such rights

Third parties have in the past and may in the future make claims against us alleging infringement of

copyrights trademarks trade secret rights intellectual property or other proprietary rights or alleging unfair

competition or violations of privacy or publicity rights Responding to any such claims could be time consuming

result in costly litigation divert managements attention cause product or service release delays require us to

redesign our services or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements Our technology and intellectual

property may not be able to withstand any third-party claims or rights against their use If successful claim of

infringement were made against us and we could not develop non-infringing technology or license the infringed

or similar technology on timely and cost effective basis our business could suffer

We do not regularly conduct patent searches to determine whether the technology used in our services

infringes patents held by third parties Patent searches may not return every issued patent that may be deemed

relevant to particular product or service It is therefore difficult to determine with any level of certainty

whether particular product or service may be construed as infringing U.S or foreign patent Because patent

applications in the United States are not immediately publicly disclosed applications may have been filed by

third parties that relate to our services that may not be discovered in patent search In addition other

companies as well as research and academic institutions have conducted research for many years in the search

technology field and this research could lead to the filing of further patent applications or affect filed

applications

If we were to discover that our services violated or potentially violated third-party proprietary rights we

might be required to obtain licenses that are costly or contain terms unfavorable to us or expend substantial

resources to reengineer those services so that they would not violate such third-party rights Any reengineering

effort may not be successful and any such licenses may not be available on commercially reasonable terms if at

all Any third-party infringement claims against us could result in costly litigation or liability and be time

consuming to defend divert managements attention and resources cause product and service delays or require

us to enter into royalty and licensing agreements

We rely heavily on our technology and intellectual property but we may be unable to adequately or cost-

effectively protect or enforce our intellectual property rights thus weakening our competitive position and

negatively impacting our business and financial results We may have to litigate to enforce our intellectual

property rights which can be time consuming expensive and difficult to predict

To protect our rights in our services and technology we rely on combination of copyright and trademark

laws patents trade secrets confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties and protective

contractual provisions We also rely on laws pertaining to trademarks and domain names to protect the value of

our corporate brands and reputation Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights unauthorized parties

may copy aspects of our services or technology or obtain and use information marks or technology that we

regard as proprietary or otherwise violate or infringe our intellectual property rights In addition it is possible

that others could independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property If we do not effectively

protect our intellectual property or if others independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property

our competitive position could be weakened

Effectively policing the unauthorized use of our services and technology is time-consuming and costly and

the steps taken by us may not prevent misappropriation of our technology or other proprietary assets The efforts
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we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be sufficient or effective and unauthorized parties may
obtain and use information marks or technology that we regard as proprietary copy aspects of our services or

use similar marks or domain names In some cases the ownership or scope of an entitys or persons rights is

unclear and may also change over time including through changes in U.S or international intellectual property

laws or regulations or through court decisions or decisions by agencies or regulatory boards that manage such

rights Our intellectual property may be subject to even greater risk in foreign jurisdictions as protection is not

sought or obtained in every country in which our services and technology are available and it is often more

difficult and costly to enforce our rights in foreign jurisdictions Moreover the laws of many countries do not

protect proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States and intellectual property developed

for us by our employees or contractors in foreign jurisdictions may not be as protected as if created in the

United States

We may have to litigate to enforce our intellectual property rights to protect our trade secrets or to

determine the validity and scope of others proprietary rights which are sometimes not clear or may change

Litigation can be time consuming expensive and difficult to predict

Delaware law and our charter documents may impede or discourage takeover which could cause the

market price of our shares to decline

We are Delaware corporation and the anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law impose various

impediments to the ability of third party to acquire us even if change of control would be beneficial to our

existing stockholders For example Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage

delay or prevent change in control by prohibiting us from engaging in business combination with an

interested stockholder for period of three years after the person becomes an interested stockholder In addition

our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may discourage delay or prevent third party

from acquiring us without the consent of our board of directors even if doing so would be beneficial to our

stockholders Provisions of our charter documents that could have an anti-takeover effect include

the classification of our board of directors into three
groups so that directors serve staggered three-year

terms which may make it difficult for potential acquirer to gain control of our hoard of directors

the requirement for supermajority approval by stockholders for certain business combinations

the ability of our board of directors to authorize the issuance of shares of undesignated preferred stock

without vote by stockholders

the ability of our board of directors to amend or repeal the bylaws

limitations on the removal of directors

limitations on stockholders ability to call special stockholder meetings

advance notice requirements for nominating candidates for election to our board of directors or for

proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings and

certain limited transfer restrictions on our common stock designed to preserve our federal net operating

loss carryforwards NOLs

On July 19 2002 our board of directors adopted stockholder rights plan pursuant to which we declared

and paid dividend of one right for each share of common stock held by stockholders of record as of

August 2002 Unless redeemed by us prior to the time the rights are exercised upon the occurrence of certain

events the rights will entitle the holders to receive shares of our preferred stock or shares of an acquiring entity

In addition at our 2009 annual meeting our stockholders approved an amendment to our certificate of

incorporation that restricts
any person or entity from attempting to transfer our stock without prior permission

from the Board of Directors to the extent that such transfer would create or result in an individual or entity

becoming five-percent shareholder of our stock or ii increase the stock ownership percentage of
any existing
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five-percent shareholder This amendment provides that any transfer that violates its provisions shall be null and

void and would require the purported transferee to upon demand by the Company transfer the shares that exceed

the five percent limit to an agent designated by the Company for the purpose of conducting sale of such excess

shares The stockholder rights plan and the amendment to the certificate of incorporation would make the

acquisition of the Company more expensive to the acquirer and could significantly delay discourage or prevent

third parties from acquiring the Company without the approval of our board of directors

If there is change in our ownership within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code our

ability to utilize our NOLs may he severely limited or potentially eliminated

As of December 31 2010 we had NOLs of approximately $788 million that will expire over ten to twenty

year period If we were to have change of ownership within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue

Code defined as cumulative change of 50 percentage points or more in the ownership positions of certain

stockholders owning 5% or more of companys common stock over three-year rolling period then under

certain conditions the amount of NOLs we could use in any one year could be limited to an amount equal to our

market capitalization net of substantial non business assets at the time of the ownership change multiplied by

the federal long-term tax exempt rate Our certificate of incorporation imposes certain limited transfer restrictions

on our common stock that we expect will assist us in preventing change of ownership and preserving our

NOLs but there can be no assurance that these restrictions will be sufficient If we are unable to use our NOLs

before they expire or if the use of this tax benefit is severely limited or eliminated by change of ownership

there could be material reduction in the amount of after tax inconie and cash flow from operations and it could

have an effect on our ability to engage in certain transactions

Restructuring and streamlining our business including implementing reductions in workforce

discretionary spending and other expense reductions may harm our business

We have in the past and may in the future find it advisable to take measures to streamline operations and

reduce expenses including without limitation reducing our workforce or discontinuing products or businesses

Such measures may place significant strains on our management and employees and could impair our

development marketing sales and customer support efforts We may also incur liabilities from these measures

including liabilities from early termination or assignment of contracts potential failure to meet obligations due to

loss of employees or resources and resulting litigation Such effects from restructuring and streamlining could

have negative impact on our business and financial results

RISKS RELATED TO THE INDUSTRIES IN WHICH WE OPERATE

We may be unable to compete successfully in the online search and online retail markets

We face intense competition in the online search and online retail markets both of which are extremely

competitive and rapidly changing In addition the retail business for the products we sell on our E-Commerce

sites has few barriers to entry Many of our competitors or potential competitors have substantially greater

financial technical and marketing resources larger customer bases longer operating histories more developed

infrastructures greater brand recognition better access to vendors or more established relationships in the

industry than we have Our competitors may be able to adopt more aggressive pricing policies develop and

expand their product and service offerings more rapidly adapt to new or emerging technologies and changes in

search customer and distribution partner requirements more quickly take advantage of acquisitions and other

opportunities more readily achieve greater economies of scale and devote greater resources to the marketing and

sale of their products and services than we can Our competitors in the online retail business include general

merchandise retailers and specialty retailers with an online
presence

brick-and-mortar stores both national and

local or both as well as our own vendors selling direct to consuniers or through other retailers Some of the

companies we compete with in online search are currently search customers of ours the loss of
any of which

could harm our business In addition we may face increasing competition for search market share from new

search startups mobile search providers and social media sites and applications If we are unable to match or
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exceed our competitors product offeriogs marketing reach and customer service experience our business may
not be successful Because of these competitive factors and due to our relatively small size and financial

resources we may be unable to compete successfully in the online search and online retail markets and to the

extent that these competitive factors apply to other markets that we pursue in such other markets

Additionally our business and financial results could he adversely affected if our search distribution

partners create their own services that compete or replace the services we provide or they acquire such services

from other sources We continue to experience increased competition from search customers seeking to enter into

agreements directly with our existing or potential distribution partners making it increasingly difficult for us to

renew agreements with existing major distribution partners or to enter into distribution agreements with new

partners on favorable terms

Consolidation in the industries in which we operate could lead to increased competition and loss of

customers

The Internet industry including online search and retail ha experienced substantial consolidation This

consolidation may continue These acquisitions could adversely affect our business and results of operations in

number of ways including the following

search customers could acquire or be acquired by one of our other search customers enter into new

business relationships with each other and stop licensing content to us or gain additional negotiating

leverage in their relationships with us

our search distribution partners could acquire or be acquired by one of our competitors and terminate

their relationship with us

our search distribution partners could merge with each other which could reduce our ability to

negotiate favorable terms and

competitors in online search or retail including both brick-and-mortar and Internet retail could

improve their competitive positions through strategic acquisitions or new business relationships with

each other

Consolidation in the Internet industry could have material adverse effect on our business and results of

operations

Governmental regulation and the application of existing laws may slow business growth increase our costs

of doing business and create potential liability

The growth and development of the Internet has led to new laws and regulations as well as the application

of existing laws to the Internet in both the U.S and foreign jurisdictions Application of these laws can be

unclear For example it is unclear how many existing laws regulating or requiring licenses for certain businesses

such as gambling online auctions distribution of pharmaceuticals alcohol tobacco firearms insurance

securities brokerage or legal services apply to online search services online advertising and our business The

costs of complying or failure to comply with these laws and regulations could limit our ability to operate in our

markets including limiting our ability to distribute our products and services conduct targeted advertising

collect use or transfer user information or comply with new data security requirements expose us to

compliance costs and substantial liability and result in costly and time-consuming litigation It is impossible to

predict whether or when any new legislation may be adopted or existing legislation or regulatory requirements

will be deemed applicable to us any of which could materially and adversely affect our business

Any failure by us to comply with our posted privacy policies Federal Trade Commission FTC
requirements or other privacy-related laws and regulations could result in proceedings by the FTC or others

including potential class action litigation which could potentially have an adverse effect on our business results
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of operations and financial condition For example there are large number of legislative proposals before the

U.S Congress and various state legislative bodies regarding privacy and data protection issues related to our

businesses It is not possible to predict whether or when such legislation may be adopted and certain proposals if

adopted could materially and adversely affect our business through decrease in user registrations and revenues

This could be caused by among other possible provisions the required use ofdisclaioiejs or other requiiements

before users can utilize our services

In the fourth quarter of 2010 we ceased operation of www.haggle.com Haggle competitive shopping

website and transferred user accounts and certain assets and liabilities to competing website We may face

certain risks relating to the previous operation or shutdown of Haggle Numerous states and foreign jurisdictions

have regulations regarding auctions and may attempt to claim those regulations applied to Haggle In addition

we understand that some academics and others have suggested that prepaid bidding fee auctions resemble games

of chance and/or gambling We believe that the results of Haggle auctions depended on the skill of the

participants and are thus not subject to such laws If lawmakers or regulators were to decide that bidding fee

auctions are games of chance or constitute gambling or are subject to auction laws we could become subject to

various federal and state penalties In addition we may be subject to legal claims froni former Haggle users

unhappy with the operation or shutdown of Haggle or with the operation of the competing website to which user

accounts were transferred

The FTC has recommended that search engine providers delineate paid-ranking search results from non-paid

results To the extent that we are required to modify presentation of search results as result of specific

regulations or requirements that may be issued in the future by the FTC or other state or federal agencies or

legislative bodies with respect to the nature of such delineation or other aspects of advertising in connection with

online search services.revenue from the affected search engines could be negatively impacted With respect to

our F-Commerce business we must comply ith regulations governing online promotions and the taxation of

items sold online and the taxation of Internet commerce Addressing these regulations may require us to develop

additional technology or otherwise expend significant time and expense

Due to the nature of the Internet it is possible that the governments of states and foreign countries might

attempt to regulate Internet transmissions through data protection laws amongst others or institute proceedings

for violations of their laws We might unintentionally violate such laws such laws may be modified and new

laws may be enacted in the future Any such developments or developments stemming from enactment or

modification of other laws could increase the costs of regulatory compliance for us or force us to change our

business practices

We rely on the infrastructure of the Internet networks over which we have no control and the failure of

which could substantially undermine our operations

Our success depends in large part on other companies maintaining the Internet system infrastructure In

particular we rely on other companies to maintain reliable network backbone that provides adequate speed

data capacity and security and to develop services that enable reliable Internet access and services As the

Internet continues to experience growth in the number of users frequency of use and amount of data transmitted

the Internet system infrastructure may be unable to support the demands placed on it and the Internets

performance or reliability may suffer as result of this continued growth Some of the companies that we rely

upon to maintain network infrastructure may lack sufficient capital to take the necessary steps to support such

demands or their long term operations The failure of the Internet infrastructure would substantially undermine

our operations and may have material adverse effect on our business and financial results

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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ITEM Properties

Our principal corporate office is located in Bellevue Washington and we have business operations for our

Commerce segnient in Palo Alto California We provide data center services for our Core Segment from third-

party co location facilities located in Tukwila Washington and Reston Virginia All of our facilities are

leased We believe our properties are suitable and adequate for our present and anticipated near term needs

ITEM Legal Proceedings

See Note Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item

of Part II of this report for information regarding legal proceedings

ITEM and Reserved

PART II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market for Our Common Stock

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol INSP The following

table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported by the

NASDAQ Global Select Market

High Low

Fiscal year ended December 31 2010

First Quarter $1 1.82 $9.08

Second Quarter $1 1.34 $7.52

Third Quarter 8.73 $6.69

Fourth Quarter 9.18 $7.63

Fiscal year ended December 31 2009

First Quarter 8.29 $5.20

Second Quarter 7.40 $5.30

Third Quarter 8.67 $6.62

Fourth Quarter 8.87 $7.45

On February 25 2011 the last reported sale price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select

Market was $8.05
per share

Holders

As of February 25 2011 there were 759 holders of record of our common stock substantially greater

number of holders are beneficial owners whose shares are held of record by banks brokers and other financial

institutions

Dividends

See Note Stockholders Equity of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item Part II of

this report for information regarding special cash dividends paid in 2008 There were no dividends paid in 2009

or 2010 We currently intend to retain our earnings to finance future growth and therefore do not anticipate

paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future
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Performance Graph

The information contained in the petformance graph shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or to

be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and such information shall not be incorporated by

reference into any future filing tinder the Securities Act or Exchange Act except to the extent that we specifically

incorporate it by reference into such filing

Set forth below is line graph comparing the cumulative total stockholder return of our common stock to

the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Index and ii the NASDAQ Computer Index for the five-year

period ending on December 31 2010 in all cases assuming the full reinvestment of dividends
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Services revenue

Product revenue

Total ievenues

Cost of services sales

Cost of product sales

Total cost of sales

Gross
profit

Expenses and other income

Engineering and technology

Sales and marketing

General and administrati

Depreciation

Amortiiation of intangible assets

Restructuiing

Other net

Loss on investnlents net

Other income net

Total expenses and other income

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense 56
Income loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of taxes

Gain loss on sale of discontinued operations net of taxes

Net income loss

Basic income loss per share

Income loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Gain loss on sale of discontinued opeiations

Basic net income loss per share

Shares used iii cuiiiputiiig basic incuinc luss pci diai

Diluted income loss per share

Income loss Irom continuing operations

Loss fiom discontinued operations

Gain loss on sale of discontinued operations

Diluted net income loss per share

Shares used in computing diluted income loss pci share

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 fl2 20061

in thousands except per share data

$2 14.343

32.492

246.835

129.972

28578

158.550

88285

9.749 9.129 13846 13940

35.822 25378 24644 29494

33454 23617 24228 105197

3.177 3283 3264 2680
283

17 9590

1.897 3248
4714 28520 2117

15313 2.682 7.149 18226

67172 63.439 85473 141544

21113 7584 15876 71.066

7410 181 598 13409

13703 7403 16474 84.475 3985

1455 25246

_______ _______
770 131454

13703 7403 $08699 21733
_______

0.48 2.59

0.04 0.77

_______
0.02 4.03

________ ________
0.54 0.67

34.415 32.640

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations our consolidated financial statements

and notes thereto and other financial information included elsewhere in this
report The selected consolidated

statements of operations data and the consolidated balance sheet data are derived from our audited consolidated

financial statements In the second quarter of 2010 upon the acquisition of certain assets from Mercantila Inc

we changed the way our consolidated statement of operations is presented For additional information on the

reclassification see Note The Company and Basis of Presentation of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements Item of Part II of this report All periods presented below have been reclassified to conform to the

current presentation In 2007 we sold our mobile and directory businesses to unaffiliated third parties Our

mobile and directory businesses have been presented as discontinued operations for 2008 2007 and 2006 and

our operating results for our remaining search business are partly based on identifying and assigning costs to our

search business that were initially shared by the three businesses The process used to separately present

continuing and discontinued operations relied on certain estimates and assumptions and the historical results of

upeiations fiai 2008 2007 and 2006 piesented in uut selected financial data do not necessarily reflect the results

of operations that would have existed had we provided our search services as standalone business

$207646

207.646

136.623

136623

71023

$156727

156.727

87.130

87130

69.597

$140537

140537

70.059

70059

70478

$153800

153.800

70625

70625

83.175

12.545

16030

35026

1914

62316

19.58

108250

25075
29060

0.38 0.21

0.38 0.21

35.886 34983

19073

15088

0.13

0.61

0.48

31.254

0.12

0.58

0.46

33042

0.37 0.21 0.48 2.59

0.04 0.77

_______ _______
0.02 4.03

0.37 0.21 0.54 0.67

36829 35431 34415 32640
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As of December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash cash equivalents short-term and
long-term

investments $253736 $226397 $205444 $574817 $400831

Working capital 228760 219475 182.733 163422 536.442

Total assets 361.743 322216 291133 671424 765.839

Total stockholders equity 310.794 279835 262324 266050 678565

Special dividend Special dividend Special dividend Total dividends

announced paid amount per share in thousands

May 2007 May 28 2007 $6.30 $208203

November 14 2007 January 2008 $9.00 $299296

We expense the fair value of awards of equity instruments as stock-based compensation expense er the

period in which the award vests Operating expenses from continuing operations include stock-based

compensation expense allocated as follows in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2106

Cost of services sales 461 535 1043 1057 345

Engineering and technology 1470 1423 3373 2081 1194

Sales and marketing 3279 2038 3.934 8171 2.495

General and administrative 9541 6572 5954 22749 7235

Total $14751 $10568 $14304 $34058 $11269

In 2007 we recorded $56.2 million of employee expenses
from continuing operations related to the cash

distributions to shareholders The
expense was allocated as follows $349000 to cost of services sales

$1.8 million to engineering and technology $6.8 million to sales and marketing and $47.3 million to

general and administrative

In 2007 we recorded restructuring charges of $9.6 million comprised of $8.0 million of employee

separation costs $831000 of losses on contractual commitments and $670000 of stock-based

compensation expense In 2006 we recorded restructuring charges of $62.3 million comprised of

$44.5 million of impairments of goodwill and other intangible assets $8.7 million of employee separation

costs $5.7 million of losses on contractual commitments $2.6 million in costs of abandoned facilities and

$824000 of stock-based compensation expense

In 2009 2008 and 2007 we recorded other-than-temporary impairment charges of $5.4 million

$24.3 million and $2.2 million respectively related to available-for sale investments that we purchased for

$40.4 million became illiquid in 2007 and were sold for net proceeds of $9.2 million in 2009

In 2010 we recorded $19.0 million net gain on litigation settlement The net gain allowed us to use

portion of our net operating loss carryforwards resulting in net income tax expense of $6.6 million

In 2007 we recorded full valuation allowance related to our deferred tax assets In 2006 we recognized

portion of our deferred tax assets related to goodwill operating loss carryforwards and equity

We completed the sale of our directory business on October 31 2007 and the sale of our mobile business on

December 28 2007 The operating results and gains losses from the sales of these businesses have been

presented as discontinued operations for 2008 2007 and 2006
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ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis iii conjunction with the Selected Consolidated

Financial Data and our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report

Overview

InfoSpace Inc InfoSpace our or we offers applications and services that deliver differentiated and

convenient benefits for the online consumer We offer range of search and online retail solutions for consumers

and extend our search solutions to our distribution partners

We operate our business in two primary segments Core and E-Commerce Our Core segment is comprised

of our Web search offerings to Internet users and our distribution partners Our Commerce business includes

collection of more than 200 specialty online retail stores under the Mercantila brand We generally use the term

services to represent search services and our Core segment and use the term products to represent retail

products sold through our E-Commerce segment

We use our metasearch technology to power our own branded websites and to provide online search

services to distribution 3artners Our metasearch technology selects search results from several search engine

content providers including Google Yahoo and Bing among others and aggregates filters and prioritizes the

results This combination provides more relevant search results page and leverages the investments made by

our search customers to continually improve the user experience Some content providers such as Google and

Yahoo pay us to distribute their content and we refer to those providers as our search customers

We offer search services directly to consumers through our websites such as Dogpile.com

WebCrawler.com MetaCrawlercom and WebFetch.coni In addition we provide search services through the

Web properties of distribution partners Partner versions of our Web offerings are generally private-labeled and

delivered with each distribution partners unique requirements

We generate revenues from our Web search services when an end user of our services clicks on paid

search link provided by search customer and displayed on one of our owned and operated Web properties or

displayed on distribution partners Web property The search customer that provided the paid search link

receives fee from the advertiser who paid for the click and the search customer pays us portion of that fee If

the click originated from one of our distribution partners Web properties we share portion of the fee we

receive with such partner Revenue is recognized in the period in which such paid clicks occur and is based on

the amounts earned and remitted to us by our search customers for such clicks Revenue from Google and

Yahoo jointly account for over 80% of our total revenues for 2010 and each also accounted for more than 10%

of our total revenues and we expect this concentration to continue If either of these search customers reduces or

eliminates the content it provides to us or our distribution partners or if either of these search customers became

unwilling to pay us amounts that it owed us our business and financial results may materially suffer Our

principal agreements with Google and Yahoo expire in April 2011 and December 2013 respectively

On April 2010 we purchased assets consisting of Web properties and licenses for content and technology

from Make The Web Better search distribution partner and privately-held developer of online products used on

social networking sites This purchase contributed $16.4 million or 26% to our search revenue generated
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through our owned and operated properties in 2010 and since Make The Web Better had been distribution

partner
there was corresponding decrease of $21.5 million in distribution revenue from 2009 As we

anticipated the revenue generated by the operation of the acquired Make The web Better assets has steadily

declined since we acquired them and we expect that the revenue generated will be between $6 million and

$7 million in 2011 and decline by 30% in each quarter when compared to the prior quarterly period as the

end-user base of those assets continues to decrease

In recent periods and excluding the revenue from the Make The Web Better purchased assets we

experienced an overall decline in revenue generated through our owned and operated properties This trend is

result of fewer retained users on our metasearch engine sites and therefore fewer paid clicks from these sites

The impact of this trend is partially offset by higher fees earned from our search customers for these paid clicks

Our ability to increase our online search services revenue in our metasearch engine sites relies in part on our

ability to attract end users to these properties and retain them by providing satisfying search experience

Revenue from our metasearch engine sites such as Dogpile.com accounted for 53% and 62% of overall owned

and operated revenue excluding revenue from the Make The Web Better purchased assets for 2010 and 2009

respectively Further offsetting the impact of the overall negative trend is the greater amount of revenue we are

generating through our online direct marketing initiatives Revenue growth for our online direct marketing

initiatives is dependent on our ability execute to an expected return on our online direct marketing expenditures

Revenue from our online direct marketing initiatives accounted for 47% and 38% of owned and operated revenue

excluding revenue from the Make The Web Better purchased assets for 2010 and 2009 respectively

Our ability to increase our revenue generated from distribution partners depends on growth in the revenues

generated by our existing distribution partners Web properties and the addition of new distribution partners who

can successfully generate revenue In recent periods revenue from certain distribution partners has been

adversely affected by our determination that certain search traffic did not meet our minimum standards of

quality as well as guidelines from our search customers that required certain of our distribution partners to alter

the tactics they used to acquire end users During 2010 we discontinued traffic that was not considered to be

high quality and those discontinuations had material negative impact on our revenues for the first half of 2010

In an effort to drive quality traffic to our search customers we continue to invest in research and development to

expand the online search services we offer on our owned and operated Web properties and those of our

distribution partners

The May 2010 acquisition of certain assets from Mercantila Inc an online retail company diversified our

business model and expanded our operations into the online retail industry We earn revenue in our Commerce

business when we deliver purchases to customers of Mercantilas Web properties typically the final criterion in

nur revenue recognition prncess We generally do not maintain inventory for sale hut arrange
for our third-party

vendors to drop ship the purchased goods directly to our customers Our ability to increase our revenue and

profitability depends on our success in attracting customers through our marketing activities retaining them by

providing them with satisfying purchase experience effectively managing our costs and attracting and

retaining high quality third party vendors

For both of our segments engineering operations and product management personnel remain paramount to

our ability to deliver high quality online search services enhance our current technology and expand our product

offerings As result we expect to continue to invest in our workforce and our research and development

operations Additionally we may use our cash and short term available-for-sale investments to acquire

businesses and other assets including businesses that may not be related to online search or online retail

Overview of 2010 Operating Results

The following is an overview of our operating results for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

the prior year more detailed discussion of our operating results comparing our operating results for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 is included under the heading Historical Results of Operations in

this Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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In the second quarter of 2010 we revised our presentation of our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated

Statements of Operations as described in Note The Company and Basis of Presentation of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II of this report and reclassified amounts between the new

captions for prior periods The reclassifications did not impact previously reported revenues income loss before

income taxes net income loss total assets total liabilities om stockholders equity

Several of our key operating financial measures for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 in total

dollars in thousands and as percentage of segment revenue are presented below

Years ended December 31

2010 2009

Revenues

Services/Core revenue $214343 $207646

Product/E-Commerce revenue 32492

Total Revenues $246835 $207646

of segment of segment

Gross profit revenue revenue

Services gross profit 84371 39.4% 71023 34.2%

Product gross profit 3914 12.0%
_______

0.0%

Total gross profit 88.285 35.8% 71023 34.2%

Segment income loss

Core segment income 32462 15.1% 27436 13.2%

Commerce segment loss 4820 l4.8% _______
0.0%

Total segment income and Adjusted EBITDA 27b42 11.2% 2743b 13.2%

Net income 13703 7403

Revenue from distribution partners $146919 69% $156742 75%

Revenue from existing distribution partners launched

on or before December31 of previous year $143731 67% $137784 66%

Revenue from new distribution partners launched

during the year 3188 2% 18958 9%

Revenue from online direct marketing initiatives on

owned and operated Web properties 22146 10% 18676 9%

Revenue from Make The Web Better distribution

partner 9442 4% 30908 15%

Revenue from Make The Web Better owned and

operated 16420 7% 0%

Adjusted EBITDA is non-GAAP measure defined below in Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Services revenue from our Core segment increased from 2009 to 2010 due to growth in revenue from our

owned and operated properties This growth was partially offset by declining revenue from our distribution

partners The increase in revenue from our owned and operated properties resulted from the acquisition of the

Make The Web Better assets and from increased revenue from our direct marketing initiatives These positive

trends were partially offset by the continued decline in revenue from our remaining owned and operated

properties The decrease in revenue generated through our distribution partners Web properties from 2009 to

2010 was primarily due to the acquisition of the Make The Web Better assets We generated 35% and 42% of

our search revenue through our top five distribution partners for 2010 and 2009 respectively The Web

properties of our top five distribution partners for 2010 generated 40% of our online search revenue for 2009

Product revenue from our E-Commerce segment was $32.5 million in 2010 and comprised of sales through

our Mercantila operations
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The increase in gross profit for our Core segment from 2009 to 2010 was primarily due to our acquisition

of the Make The Web Better assets described above Although we have experienced revenue growth since

acquiring the assets our E-Commerce segments loss as percent of revenue increased due to increases in

fulfillment and advertising expenses

The increase in our sales and marketing expense from 2009 to 2010 was primarily due to advertising for

Mercantilas Web properties of $4.3 million and an increase in expense associated with direct marketing

initiatives of $3.1 million

The increase in general and administrative expense from 2009 to 2010 was primarily due to an increase in

severance pay of $3.5 million and an increase in stock-based compensation of $3.4 million due to accelerating

the vesting of equity awards to departed executive

In 2010 we received proceeds from the settlement of shareholder derivative action against current and

former officers and directors of the Company and recorded net gain in other income net of $19.0 million and

income tax expense of $7.4 million primarily related to the settlement In 2010 we also recorded in other

income net $5.0 million of expense to adjust the estimated earn-out payments to be made related to our

acquisition of the Make The Web Better assets

Historical Results of Operations

Our net income for 2010 was $13.7 million and for the years 2010 2009 and 2008 was cumulative net

income of $2.4 million

The following table sets forth the historical results of our operations in thousands and as percent of

revenues

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

$214343 $207646 $156727

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

as percent of revenue

86.8% 100.0% 100.0%Services revenue

Product revenue 32492 13.2 0.0 0.0

Total revenues

Cost of services sales

246835

129972

207646

136623

156727

87130

100.0

52.7

100.0

65.8

100.0

55.6

Cnst nf product sales 28578 11.6 0.0 0.0

Total cost of sales 158550 136623 87130 64.2 65.8 55.6

Gross profit 88285 71023 69597 35.8 34.2 44.4

Operating expenses and other income

Engineering and technology

Sales and marketing

General and administrative

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets

Restructurng

Other net

Loss on investments net

Other income net

9749

35822

33454

3177

283

15313

9129

25378

23617

3283

4714

2682

13846

24644

24228

3264

17

1897
28520

7149

3.9

14.5

t3.6

1.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

6.2

4.4

12.2

11.4

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.3

1.3

8.8

15.7

15.5

2.1

0.0

0.0

1.2
18.2

4.6

Total expenses and other income

Income loss from continuing operations before

incometaxes

Income tax expense

67172

21.113

7410

63439

7524

181

85473

15276
598

27.2

26

3.0

30.6

37

0.1

54.5

101
0.4

Income loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of taxes

Loss on sale of discontinued operations net of

taxes

13703 7403 16474
1455

770

5.6

0.0

0.0

3.6

0.0

0.0

10.5

0.9

0.5

Net income loss 13703 7403 $08699 5.6% 3.6% l1.9%
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Results of Operations for 2010 2009 and 2008

Revenues Revenues for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are presented below in

thousands

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

Services revenue $214343 6697 $207646 $50919 $156727

Product revenue 32492 32492

Total revenues $246835 $39189 $207646 $50919 $156727

The increase in services revenue for 2010 as compared to 2009 is due to increases in revenue from our

owned and operated Web properties and partially offset by decline in revenue generated by our distribution

partners Revenue from existing distribution partners increased in 2010 as compared to 2009 by $6.0 million but

this trend was offset by decline of $21.5 million from existing distribution partner Make The Web Better as we

acquired its search revenue generating assets on April 2010 Additionally revenue from new distribution

partners launched during the year in 2010 as compared to 2009 declined by $15.8 million

The increase of $13.8 million in revenue generated by our owned and operated properties for 2010 as

compared to 2009 was primarily due to the operation of the acquired Make The Web Better assets which

generated $16.4 million of revenue as an owned and operated Web property in 2010 and revenue growth of

$3.5 million from our online direct marketing initiatives Partially offsetting such increases is an overall decline

in revenue generated through our owned and operated metasearch engine sites excluding the revenue from the

Make The Web Better purchased assets This trend is result of fewer retained users on our metasearch engine

sites and therefore fewer paid clicks from these sites partially offset by higher fees earned from our search

customers for these paid clicks

The increase in services revenue for 2009 as compared to 2008 is primarily due to an increase in revenue

from search results delivered through the Web properties of new and existing distribution partners Revenue from

existing distribution partners for 2009 as compared to 2008 increased by $45.4 million and revenue from new

distribution partners launched during the year increased by $10.5 million In 2009 when the Make The Web
Better assets were owned by distribution partner they generated $30.9 million in revenue

The decrease of $5.8 million in revenue generated by our owned and operated properties for 2009 as

compared to 2008 was primarily due to an overall decline in all of our owned and operated traffic on our

metasearch engine sites partially offset by an increase of $5.9 million in revenue for traffic generated from our

online direct marketing initiatives

For 2010 70% of our search services revenue was generated through our search distribution partners Web

properties compared to 76% and 65% of our search services revenue respectively generated through our search

distribution partners Web properties in 2009 and 2008 During the first half of 2010 we discontinued the

syndication of our search results to certain distribution partners who we deemed to be delivering low quality

clicks Those discontinuations had material negative impact on our revenues for the first half of 2010 We
expect that search services revenue from searches conducted by end users on sites of our distribution partners

will continue to represent significant proportion of our online search services revenues for the foreseeable

future

Additionally in October 2010 we suspended operations of our Haggle.coin competitive shopping site

which represented the most significant portion of our development-stage business initiatives As result the

revenue contribution from development-stage business initiatives will be nominal in the foreseeable future In

2010 development-stage business initiatives represented less than 2% of total services revenue

The product revenue was comprised of sales of product through our Mercantila business
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Cost of sales Cost of services sales consists of costs related to revenue sharing arrangements with our

distribution partners certain costs associated with the operation of the data centers that serve our search business

including depreciation personnel expenses which include salaries benefits and other employee related costs

and stock based compensation expense usage-based content fees and bandwidth costs Cost of product sales

primarily consist of the purchase price of goods sold by us to our customers drop-ship and other shipping

charges and payment processing fees for customer transactions Cost of sales in total dollars in thousands and

as percentage of associated and total revenues for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are

presented below

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

Cost of services sales $129972 $6651 $136623 $49493 $87130

Percentage of services revenue 60.6% 65.8% 55.6%

Cost of product sales 28578 28578

Percentage of product revenue 88.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total cost of sales $158550 $21927 $136623 $49493 $87130

Percentage of total revenues 64.2f 65.8% 55.6%

The dollar decrease in cost of services sales for 2010 as compared to 2009 is primarily due to the decrease in

revenue sharing expense resulting from our acquisition of Make The Web Better

The dollar increase in cost of services sales for 2009 as compared to 2008 is primarily due to an increase in

revenue sharing expenses related to increases in revenue generated through the Web properties of our distribution

partners and increases in our revenue sharing rates

We anticipate that revenue sharing expenses paid to our distribution partners will increase in dollars if

revenue increases through growth in existing arrangements with our distribution
partners or we add new

distribution partners If search services revenue generated through our distribution partners Web properties

increases at greater rate than revenue generated through our owned and operated Web properties revenue

sharing expenses
with our distribution

partners as percentage of services revenue will increase As result of

our acquisition of assets from Make The Web Better in April 2010 we experienced decrease in services cost of

sales as percentage of services revenue and corresponding increase in our gross profit percentage on our

search services revenue That effect has been declining as expected as the revenue has declined from the Make

The Web Better assets We expect that services revenue from searches conducted by end users on sites of our

distribution partners will continue to be significant portion of our search services revenue

The cost of product sales was comprised of the cost of sales of products through our Mercantila business

Engineering and technology expenses Engineering and technology expenses are associated with the

research development support and ongoing enhancements of our offerings including personnel expenses

which include salaries stock-based compensation expense and benefits and other employee related costs

software support and maintenance and professional service fees Engineering and technology expenses in total

dollars in thousands and as percentage of total revenues for 2010 2009 and 2008 are presented below

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

Engineering and technology expenses $9749 $620 $9129 $4717 $13846

Percentage of total revenues 3.9% 4.4% 8.8%

The dollar increase for 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily comprised of increases of $1.1 million in

personnel costs exclusive of employee separation costs which includes $766000 in Mercantila personnel costs

and an increase of $541000 in professional services costs These increases were partially offset by decreases of

$567000 in employee separation costs and decrease of $359000 in software support and maintenance
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The dollar decrease for 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily comprised of decrease of $2.0 million in

stock-based compensation expense decrease of $1.8 million in personnel costs exclusive of stock-based

compensation expense and employee separation costs decrease of $1.0 million in professional service fees and

decrease of $916000 in the costs of contractors and temporary help to augment our staffing These decreases

were partially offset by an increase of $736000 in facilities costs and an increase of $51R000 in employee

separation costs

Sales and marketing expenses Sales and marketing expenses consist principally of marketing expenses

associated with our owned and operated Web properties which consist of traffic acquisition including our online

direct marketing initiatives which involve the purchase of online advertisements that drive traffic to an owned

and operated website agency fees brand promotion expense and market research expense personnel costs

which include salaries stock based compensation expense and benefits and other employee related costs

advertising for Mercantilas Web properties the cost of
teniporary help and contractors to augment our staffing

and the operation of Mercantilas call center Sales and marketing expenses in total dollars in thousands and as

percentage of total revenues for 2010 2009 and 2008 are presented below

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

Sales and marketing expenses $35822 $10444 $25378 $734 $24644

Percentage of total revenues 14.5% 12.2% 15.7%

The dollar increase for 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily attributable to an increase of $3.1 million in

advertising costs for our marketing initiatives associated with traffic acquisition $4.3 million in advertising for

Mercantilas Web properties $1.9 million in Mercantila personnel costs including costs related to temporary

help and contractors an increase of $1 .2 million in stock-based compensation expense and $675000 in call

center expenses These increases were partially offset by decrease of $358000 in marketing research expenses

and decrease of $326000 in public relations expense

The dollar increase for 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily attributable to an increase of $4.0 million in

advertising costs and an increase of $445000 in the costs of contractors and temporary help to augment our

staffing These increases were partially offset by decrease of $1.9 million in stock-based compensation

expense decrease of $838000 in marketing expenses associated with our owned and operated Web properties

and decrease of $785000 in salaries and employee benefits excluding stock-based compensation expense

We expect to continue to invest in marketing initiatives to promote new services

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel

expenses which include salaries stock-based compensation expense and benefits and other employee related

costs professional service fees which include legal audit and tax fees general business development and

management expenses occupancy and general office expenses taxes insurance expenses and certain legal

settlements General and administrative expenses in total dollars in thousands and as percentage of total

revenues for 2010 2009 and 2008 are presented below

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

General and administrative expenses $33454 $9837 $23617 $611 $24228

Percentage of total revenues 13.6% 11.4% 15.5%

The dollar increase for 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily attributable to an increase of $3.5 million in

employee separation costs an increase of $3.0 million in stock-based compensation expense an increase of

$761000 in professional service fees an increase of $480000 in facilities expense and an increase of $408000

in business taxes Additionally in 2009 we received $2.4 million one-time net business tax refund These

increases were partially offset by decrease of $564000 in personnel costs exclusive of stock-based

compensation expense
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The dollar decrease for 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily attributable to decrease of $2.5 million in

personnel expenses and costs of contractors and temporary help to augment our staffing exclusive of stock-

based compensation expense and employee separation costs decrease of $366000 in business insurance costs

and decrease of $310000 in professional service fees Adding to these decreases was the net business tax

refund of $2.4 million received in 2009 These decreases were partially offset by increases of 83.2 million in

legal fees an increase of $709000 in employee separation costs and an increase of $619000 in stock-based

compensation expense

Depreciation and amortization of other intangible assets Depreciation of property and equipment

includes depreciation of network servers and data center equipment computers software office equipment and

fixtures and leasehold improvements Amortization of definite-lived intangible assets includes amortization of

core technology customer lists and other intangible assets Depreciation and amortization of other intangible

assets expenses
for 2010 2009 and 2008 are presented below in thousands

2010 Change 2009 Change 2008

Depreciation expenses $3177 $006 $3283 19 $3264

Amortization of other intangible assets expenses 283 283

$3460 177 $3283 $19 $3264

There were no material variances between the depreciation expenses recorded in 2010 2009 and 2008

Othem net Other net consists of costs charges refunds or gains that are not directly associated with other

revenue or operating expense classifications Other net of $1 .9 million in 2008 consisted of gains on the sale of

non-core assets

Loss on investments net Loss on investments net is comprised of the following for 2009 and 2008

in thousands

2009 2008

Other-than-temporary impairment of available-for-sale investments $5351 $24332

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments 637
Impairment of convertible note from equity investee 2000

Other than-temporary impairment of equity investment in privately-held company 2000

Decrease in fair value of warrants 188

$4714 $28520

In 2010 we did not record any gain or loss on investments

In 2009 we determined that portion of our auction rate securities ARS which we classified as long-

term available-for-sale securities was other-than-temporarily impaired and we recorded loss on investments of

$5.4 million Subsequently we sold all of the investments originally purchased as ARS and recognized gains on

the sales totaling $637000

In 2008 we determined that pnrtinn of nur ARS which we classified as long-serm available-for-sale

securities was other-than temporarily impaired and we recorded loss on investments of $24.3 million In 2008

we determined that our equity investment and related warrants in privately-held company as well as

convertible note from that company were fully impaired and we recorded loss on investments of $4.2 million

We adjust our derivative instruments to fair value and recognize the change in the recorded fair value in earnings

We hold warrants to purchase stock in other companies which qualify as derivatives and therefore gains or

losses are based on the fair value
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Other income net Other income net primarily consists of litigation settlements adjustments to the fair

values of contingent liabilities related to business combinations foreign currency exchange gains or losses gains

on contingency resolutions interest income and gains or losses on disposals of property and equipment Other

income net is comprised of the following for 2010 2009 and 2008 in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Litigation settlement gain $08965

Foreign currency exchange loss gain net 1335 66 661

Interest income 331 3443 7344
Gain on contingency resolution 1124
Increase in fair value of earn-out contingent liability 5000

Loss on disposal of assets 1014 642 629

Other 696 53 29

$05313 $2682 $7149

Other income net increased in 2010 compared to 2009 prin-iarily due to $19.0 million net gain on

litigation settlement and $1.4 million in recognition of foreign cuiTency translation gains primarily related to the

sale or substantial liquidation of wholly-owned subsidiaries Additionally in 2010 the financial performance of

the operation of the Make The Web Better assets acquired in April 2010 was greater than expected as

consequence we estimated that the fair value of the related earn out contingent consideration had increased and

we recorded charge of $5.0 million Interest income decreased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to

decline in interest rates

Interest income decreased in 2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to decline in interest rates partially

offset by $925000 in interest received relating to net business tax refund

Income tax expense During 2010 2009 and 2008 we recorded an income tax expense
of $7.4 million

$181000 and $598000 respectively The 2010 income tax expense
of $7.4 million is primarily attributable to

$7.4 million tax expense
from current year operations and $788000 tax expense for the net increase in the

valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets These expenses are partially offset by $566000 income tax

benefit from the decrease in unrecognized tax benefits pertaining to state income taxes and $516000 tax benefit

attributable to foreign exchange gains During 2009 we further impaired and sold our portfolio of ARS which

provided net $6.9 million income tax benefit from the net reduction of its portion of the valuation allowance

Absent the effect of the ARS our income tax expense
would have been $7.1 million which would be primarily

attributable to $2.7 million frum current year operations and an increase of $4.2 million increase in the valuation

allowance against the deferred tax assets The 2008 income tax expense
of $598000 is primarily attributable to

$5.6 million tax benefit from current year operations $436000 tax expense
for non-deductible compensation

paid to an executive and $5.4 million tax expense
for the net increase in the valuation allowance against the

deferred tax assets

At December 31 2010 we had gross temporary differences representing future tax deductions of

$849.7 million primarily comprised of $788.4 million of accumulated net operating loss carryforwards which

represent deferred tax assets During 2010 we determined that it was not more likely than not that we would

realize our deferred tax assets in the foreseeable future Accordingly we provided valuation allowance against

our deferred tax assets If in the future we determine that the reali7atinn of
any portion of the deferred tax assets

is more likely than not to be realized we will record benefit to the income statement or to additional

paid-in-capital as appropriate
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Loss from discontinued operotions and loss on sale of discontinued Operations In 2007 we completed the

sale of our directory and mobile businesses and have reflected income loss from those businesses as income

loss from discontinued operations For 2008 we recorded gain on the sale of the directory business of

$48.000 and loss on the sale of the mobile services business of $818000 Revenue income loss before taxes

income tax expense heneflfl and income loss from discontinued operations for 7008 are presented below

in thousands

Directory

Revenue from discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations before taxes 204

Income tax expense 76
Income from discontinued operations net of taxes 128

Mobile

Revenue from discontinued operations 127

Loss from discontinued operations before taxes 2098
Income tax benefit 515

Loss from discontinued operations net of taxes $l.583

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income loss determined in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP excluding the effects of income taxes

depreciation amortization of intangible assets stock-based compensation expense loss on investments net and

other income net which includes such items as litigation settlements adjustments to the fair values of

contingent liabilities related to business combinations interest income foreign currency gains or losses and

gains or losses from the disposal of assets

We believe that Adjusted EBITDA provides meaningful supplemental information regarding InfoSpaces

performance by excluding certain expenses and gains that we believe are not indicative of our operating results

We use this non GAAP financial measure for internal management purposes when publicly providing guidance

on possible future results and as means to evaluate period-to-period comparisons We believe that Adjusted

EBITDA is common measure used by investors and analysts to evaluate our performance that it provides

more complete understanding of the results of operations and trends affecting our business when viewed together

with GAAP results and that management and investors benefit from referring to this non-GAAP financial

measure Items excluded from Adjusted EBITDA are significant and necessary components to the operations of

our business and therefore Adjusted EBITDA should be considered as supplement to and not as substitute

for or superior to OAAP net income loss Other companies may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently and

therefore our Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies

reconciliation of our Adjusted EBITDA to net income loss which we believe to be the most comparable GAAP

measure is presented for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 below in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Net income loss 13703 7403 $18.699
Discontinued operations 2225

Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 7091 7252 7335
Stock-based compensation 14751 10568 14304

Loss on investments net 4714 28520

Other inconie net 15313 2682 7149
Income tax expense 7410 181 598

Adjusted EBITDA 27642 $27436 27134
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Cash Equivalents and Short Tenn Iii eastman Li

Our principal source of liquidity is our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments As of

December 31 2010 we had cash and marketable investments nf $253.7 million consisting of cash and cash

equivalents of $155.6 million and available-for-sale short-term investments of $98.1 million We generally invest

our excess cash in high quality marketable investments These investments include securities issued by

U.S government agencies commercial paper certificates of deposit money market funds and taxable municipal

bonds All of our financial instrument investments held at December 31 2010 have minimal default risk and

short-term maturities In 2010 we received gross proceeds of $23.9 million related to litigation settlement and

in the first quarter of 2011 we plan to pay $5.3 million in plaintiffs fees related to that settlement as well as

$2.4 million in severance charges to departing executive In 2008 we paid special dividend to our

shareholders of $299.3 million

We plan to use our cash to fund operations develop technology advertise market and distribute our

products and services and continue the enhancement of our network infrastructure An important component of

our strategy for future growth is to acquire technologies and businesses and we plan to use our cash to acquire

and integrate acceptable targets that we may identify These targets may include businesses products or

technologies unrelated to online search or online retail We may use portion of our cash for special dividends or

for common stock repurchases

We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents short-term investments and cash generated from

operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for working capital and capital expenditures for at

least the next 12 nionths However the underlying levels of revenues and expenses that we project may not prove

to be accurate Our anticipated cash needs exclude any payments that may result from pending or future litigation

matters In addition we evaluate acquisitions of businesses products or technologies from time to time Any
such transactions if completed may use significant portion of our cash balances and marketable investments If

we are unable to liquidate our investments when we need liquidity for acquisitions or business purposes we may
need to change or postpone such acquisitions or business purposes or find alternative financing for such

acquisitions or business purposes if available We may seek additional funding through public or private

financings or other arrangements prior to such time Our ability to raise funds may be adversely affected by

number of factors including factors beyond our control such as economic conditions in markets in which we

operate and from which we generate revenues and increased uncertainty in the financial capital and credit

markets Adequate funds may not be available when needed or may not be available on favorable terms If we

raise additional funds by issuing equity securities dilution to existing stockholders may result If funding is

insufficient at any time in the future we may be unable or delayed in our ability to develop or enhance our

products or services take advantage of business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures any of which

could harm our business

Can tractual Obligatians and Cannzitnients

Our capital lease commitments are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets Our contractual obligations

and commitments are as follows in thousands

2014 and

2011 2012 2013 thereafter Total

Operating lease commitments $2023 $1932 $383 $4338

Purchase commitments 2279 1026 493 3798

Capital lease commitments net of imputed interest and executory

costs 211 211

Total $4513 $2958 $876 $8347
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Operating lease conunitinents We have entered into various non-Cancelable operating lease agreements

for our offices that run through 2013 We are committed to pay portion of the related operating expenses under

certain of these lease agreements These operating expenses are not included in the table above Certain of these

leases have escalating rent payment provisions and we recognize rent expense under such leases on straight-line

basis over the term of the lease

Purchase commitments Our purchase commitments consist primarily of product ordered but not yet

shipped related shipping costs and non-cancelable service agreements for our data centers Included in the table

above are purchase commitments of $418000 and $418000 due in 2011 and 2012 respectively which are

reflected as liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets

Capital lease commitments We entered into capital lease agreements in 2008 for certain equipment used

in our data centers

We have pledged portion of our cash as collateral for standby letters of credit and bank guaranties for

certain of our property leases and banking arrangements At December 31 2010 the total amount of collateral

pledged under these agreements was $4.2 million

The above table does not reflect unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $1 million the timing of which

is uncertain For additional discussion on unrecognized tax benefits see Note Income Taxes of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II of this report

Cash Flows

Our net cash flows are comprised of the following for 2010 2009 and 2008 in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Net cash provided used by operating activities $45872 $30000 20182
Net cash provided used by investing activities 25817 4421 111284
Net cash provided used by financing activities 206 607 298926
Net cash used by discontinued operations 17998

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents $71895 $33814 $448390

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities

Net cash provided used by operating activities consists of net income loss offset by certain adjustments

not affecting current-period cash flows and the effect of changes in our operating assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $45.9 million in 2010 consisting of adjustments not affecting

cash flows provided by operating activities of $28.7 million primarily consisting of stock-based compensation

depreciation and amortization increase in the fair value of an earn out contingent liability loss on disposals of

assets and amortization of premium on investments cash provided by changes in our operating assets and

liabilities of $17.7 million consisting of decreases in accounts receivable increases in accrued expenses and

other current and long-term liabilities increases in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and other current

assets and our net income of $13.7 million Partially offsetting the increase were adjustments not affecting cash

flows used by operating activities of $10.6 million primarily consisting of excess tax benefits from stock-based

award activity fair value of common stock retired relating to litigation settlement and the realized foreign

currency translation gains and cash used by changes in our operating assets and liabilities of $3.6 million

primarily consisting of decreases in accounts payable
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $30.0 million in 2009 consisting of adjustments not affecting

cash flows provided by operating activities of $26.4 million primarily consisting of stock-based compensation

depreciation and amortization loss on investments net and loss on disposals of assets cash provided by

changes in our operating assets and liabilities of $12.7 million consisting of increases in accrued expenses and

other current and long-term liabilities and in accounts payable and decreases in other long-term assets and our

net income of $7.4 million Partially offsetting the increase was cash used by changes in our operating assets and

liabilities of $15.9 million primarily consisting of increases in accounts receivable notes and other receivables

and in prepaid expenses and other current assets and adjustments not affecting cash flows used by operating

activities of $607000 consisting of deferred income taxes

Net cash used by operating activities was $20.2 million in 2008 consisting of cash used by changes in our

operating assets and liabilities of $59.3 million consisting of decreases in accrued expenses and other liabilities

our net loss of $18.7 million and adjustments not affecting cash flows used by operating activities of

$4.6 million primarily consisting of decreases in deferred income taxes and the gain on sale of assets

Offsetting the decrease was cash provided by adjustments not affecting cash flows provided by operating

activities of $52.9 million primarily consisting of the loss on long-term investments stock-based compensation

depreciation the loss from discontinued operations and the loss on sale of discontinued operations and changes

in our operating assets and liabilities of $9.4 million consisting of decreases in notes and other receivables other

long-term assets accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other current assets and increases in accounts

payable

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities

Net cash provided used by investing activities primarily consists of transactions related to our investments

purchases of property and equipment proceeds from the sale of certain assets and cash used in business

acquisitions

Net cash provided by investing activities was $25.8 million in 2010 primarily from the proceeds from the

sale or maturity of our marketable investments of $244.8 million and proceeds from the sale of assets of

$307000 Partially offsetting cash provided by investing activities were the purchase of $200.5 million of

marketable investments $16.0 million used for business acquisitions and $3.0 million of property and equipment

purchases

Net cash provided by investing activities was $4.4 million in 2009 primarily from the proceeds from the

sale or maturity of our marketable investments of $196.9 million and proceeds from the sale of assets of

$623000 Partially offsetting cash provided by investing activities were the purchase of $190.2 million of

marketable investments $2.4 million of property and equipment purchases and $395000 used for business

acquisition

Net cash used by investing activities was $1 11.3 million in 2008 primarily consisting of the purchase of

$145.3 million of marketable investments and the purchase of $12.3 million in property and equipment Partially

offsetting cash used by investing activities were proceeds from the sale or maturity of our marketable

investments of $44.0 million and proceeds from the sale of assets of $2.6 million

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing Activities

Net cash provided used by financing activities consists of proceeds from the issuance of stock through the

exercise of stock options and our employee stock purchase plan tax payments from shares withheld upon vesting

of restricted stock units repayments of capital lease obligations excess tax benefits from stock based award

activity and special dividends paid to our shareholders
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Net cash provided by financing activities in 2010 was $206000 primar ly from $7.0 million in excess tax

benefits generated by stock-based award activity and proceeds of $2.5 million from the exercise of stock options

and the sale of shares through our employee stock purchase plan Cash provided by financing activities was

partially offset by $4.6 million of earn-out payments related to business acquisitions $4.2 million in tax

payments from shares withheld upon vesting of restricted stock units and $5 89.000 used for the repayment of

capital lease obligations

Net cash used by financing activities in 2009 was $607000 primarily from $1.1 million in tax payments

from shares withheld upon vesting of restricted stock units and $564000 used for the repayment of capital lease

obligations Cash used by financing activities was partially offset by tax benefits generated by stock-based award

activity of $607000 and proceeds of $404000 from the exercise of stock options and the sale of shares through

our employee stock purchase plan

Net cash used by financing activities in 2008 was $298.9 million primarily from the special dividend of

$299.3 million paid in January 2008 Partially offsetting cash used in financing activities were proceeds of

$603000 from the exercise of stock options and the sale of shares through our employee stock purchase plan

Net Cash Used by Discontinued Opera tions

Net cash used by operating activities attributable to discontinued operations in 2008 was $18.0 million

Acquisitions

Mercantila On May 10 2010 we acquired certain assets from Mercantila Inc an online retail company
at cost of $7.8 million in cash plus $8.2 million in liabilities assumed

Make The web Better On April 2010 we purchased assets consisting of Web properties and licenses

for content and technology from Make The Web Better search distribution partner and privately-held

developer of online products used on social networking sites for $13.0 million The purchase consideration

included an initial cash payment of $8.0 million with up to $5.0 million in additional consideration payable in

cash contingent on expected financial performance The financial performance of the operation of the Make The

Web Better assets in 2010 was greater than was expected when the assets were acquired As consequence our

estimate of the fair value of the related contingent consideration increased to $10.0 million and we recorded

charge of $5.0 million to other loss income net in the year ended December 31 2010

F-Four On May 22 2009 we acquired the membership interests of Four LLC and the assets of its

subsidiary provider of search engine optimization analytics software tor $1.3 million in stock and cash

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as well as

the disclosures included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10 is based upon our consolidated financial

statements which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP The preparation of these financial statements

requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues

expenses and disclosures of contingencies In some cases we could have reasonably used different accounting

policies and estimates

The Securities and Exchange Commission has defined companys most critical accounting policies as the

ones that are the most important to the portrayal of the companys financial condition and results of operations

and which require the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments often as result of the need

to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain On an ongoing basis we evaluate the estimates used

including those related to revenue recognition cost of sales impairment of goodwill the estimated allowance for

billing adjustments and doubtful accounts accounting for business combinations stock-based compensation and
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the valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets We base our estimates on historical experience current

conditions and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances and based

on information available to us at that time we make judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities

that are not readily apparent from other sources as well as identify and assess our accounting treatment with

respect to commitments and contingencies Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates under

different assumptions judgments or conditions We believe the following critical accounting policies involve the

more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements We

also have other accounting policies that involve the use of estimates judgments and assumptions and that are

significant to understanding our results For additional information see Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II of this report

Services Revenue Recognition

Our services revenue which is recorded in the Core segment is generated primarily from our Web search

services We generate search revenue when an end user of such services clicks on paid search link provided by

search customer and displayed on one of our owned and operated Web properties or displayed on distribution

partners Web property The search customer that provided the paid search link receives fee from the advertiser

who paid for the click and the search customer pays us portion of that fee

For our services transactions we are the primary obligor separately negotiate each revenue or unit pricing

contract independent of any revenue sharing arrangements and assume the credit risk for amounts invoiced to

our search customers For search services we determine the paid search results content and information directed

to our owned and operated Web properties and our distribution partners Web properties through our metasearch

technology We earn revenue from our search customers by providing paid search results generated from our

owned and operated properties and from our distribution partners Web properties based on separately negotiated

and agreed-upon terms with each distribution partner Consequently we record services revenue on gross basis

Revenue is recognized in the period in which the services are provided e.g paid search occurs and is based

on the amounts earned by and ultimately remitted to us

Product Revenue Recognition

Our product revenue which is recorded in the E-Commerce segment is derived from sales of goods to our

customers We recognize revenue from sales of goods when the following revenue recognition criteria are met

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists the selling price is fixed or determinable delivery has occurred

and title has passed to the customer and collectability is reasonably assured For our sales of goods we are the

primaiy obligur iii the tiansaction establish prices and select suppliers perform order fulfillment services

assume the inventory risk during shipping and for customer returns and assume the credit risk for amounts

invoiced to our customers Consequently we record product revenue at its gross sales price

Cost of Sales

We record the cost of sales for product and services sales when the related revenue is recognized Cost of

services sales consists of costs related to revenue sharing arrangements with our distribution partners certain

costs associated with the operation of our data centers that serve our search business including depreciation

personnel expenses which include salaries benefits and other employee related costs and stock-based

compensation expense bandwidth costs and usage-based content fees Cost of product sales consist of the

purchase price of goods sold by us to our customers drop-ship and other shipping charges and payment

processing fees for customer transactions
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Product Sales Returns and Replacements

We estimate sales returns which reduce product revenue We estimate the cost of replacing damaged or

defective goods sold to customers which we record as cost of product sales

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets Including Goodwill

We account for business combinations using the acquisition method and accordingly the identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their acquisition date fair values Goodwill is calculated as the

excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets including the amount assigned to identifiable

intangible assets We evaluate the carrying value of our indefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually and

evaluate all intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an intangible asset may not be recoverable Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are

amortized over their useful lives Acquisition-related costs including advisory legal accounting valuation and

other costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred The results of operations of acquired

businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date

Accounting for Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests whenever circumstances

indicate that the carrying value of the goodwill might be impaired Circumstances may include an adverse change

in business climate or more likely than not expectation that reporting unit will be sold or disposed On at least

quarterly basis we assess whether such circumstances exist

We test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level Application of the goodwill impairment test

requires judgment including the identification of reporting units assigning assets and liabilities to reporting

units assigning goodwill to reporting units and determining the estimated fair value of each reporting
unit

Significant judgments required to estimate the fair value of reporting units include estimating future cash flows

determining appropriate discount rates application of appropriate control premium market conditions and other

assumptions Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value

for each reporting unit and may result in impairment charges in future periods

We performed our annual impairment analysis of the goodwill on our balance sheet as of

November 30 2010 and we determined that there was no impairment as the fair values of our Core and

B-Commerce reporting units exceeded their respective carrying values by 21% and 30% respectively Our

analysis took into consideration the expected discounted cash flows for each reporting unit The principal factors

used in the discounted cash flow analysis requiring judgment are the projected results of operations the discount

rate based on the weighted average cost of capital WA CCand terminal value assumptions for each reporting

unit

The WACC for each reporting unit ranged from 18% to 21.5% based on review of the volatility of returns

for comparable reporting units capital structure of 100% common equity for comparable companies and size

risk premium based upon relevant published studies Additionally non-systemic risk premium was included

ranging from 2% to 5% for certain risks to each reporting unit such as the Core reporting units dependence on

Google and Yahoo and recognition that the B-Commerce reporting unit is in an early stage and new business

for us that has been projected to have growth in revenue and margins The terminal value assumptions are applied

to the final
year of the discounted cash flow model as the reporting unit is expected to remain viable going

concern beyond the final period The terminal value was determined using the Gordon Growth Model which

assumed long-term growth rates ranging from 1% to 4%

control premium ranging from 10% to 15% was added to determine each reporting units enterprise value

on controlling basis The control premiums range assumption considered the reporting units business

operations control premiums of comparable recent transactions and the current economic environment
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In the dynamic search and online retail industries there is significant uncertainty about the future

Unforeseen events such as market disruptions and deterioration of the macroeconomic environment or internal

challenges such as reorganizations employee and management turnover operational cash flows and other trends

that could have material negative impacts on our key assumptions in determining fair values could lead to

decision to impair goodwill in future periods

As of December 31 2010 and at November 30 2010 of our consolidated goodwill balance of $69.9 million

we had allocated $57.5 million to our Core and $12.4 million to our Commerce reporting units

Stock-Based Compensation

We record stock compensation expense
for equity-based awards granted including stock options and

restricted stock unit grants over the service period of the equity-based award based on the fair value of the award

at the date of grant During 2010 2009 and 2008 we recognized $14.8 million $10.6 million and $14.3 million

respectively of stock-based compensation expense

Calculating stock-based compensation expense
relies upon i5ertain assumptions including the expected term

of the stock based awards expected stock price volatility expected interest rate number and types of stock-

based awards and the
pre vesting forfeiture rate If we use different assumptions due to changes in our business

or other factors our stock based compensation expense could vary materially in the future

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets

including net operating loss carryforwards and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between

the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities We periodically evaluate the likelihood of the realization of

deferred tax assets and reduce the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets by valuation allowance to the

extent we believe portion will not be realized We consider many factors when assessing the likelihood of

future realization of our deferred tax assets including our recent cumulative earnings experience by taxing

jurisdiction expectations of future taxable income the carryforward periods available to us for tax reporting

purposes and other relevant factors There is wide
range

of possible judgments relating to the valuation of our

deferred tax assets

During the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 based on the weight of available evidence we

determined that it was not more likely than not that we would realize our deferred tax assets Accordingly we

provided full valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets at December 31 2010 and 2009

Significant judgment is required in making this assessment and it is very difficult to predict when if ever we

may conclude that
any portion of our deferred tax assets is more likely than not realizable
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Quarterly Results of Operations Unaudited

The following table presents summary of our unaudited consolidated results of operations for the eight

quarters ended December 31 2010 In the second quarter of 2010 upon the acquisition of certain assets from

Mercantila Inc we changed the way our consolidated statement of operations is presented For additional

information on the reclassification see Note The Company and Basis of Presentation of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II of this report The information for each of these quarters

has been prepared on basis consistent with our annual audited consolidated financial statements You should

read this information in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto The operating

results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period

Sei vices revenue

Product revenue

Total revenues

Services cost uf sales

Product cost of sales

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

Expenses and other income

Engineering and technology

Sales and marketing

General and administrative

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible

assets

Loss gain on investments

net

Other loss income net

Total expenses and other

income

Income loss before income

taxes

Income tax benefit expense
_______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______

Net income loss

Net income loss per

share Basic

Net income loss per share

Basic

Weighted average shares

outstanding used in computing

basic income loss per

share

Net income loss per

share Diluted

Net income loss per share

Diluted

Weighted average shares

outstanding used in computing

diluted income loss per

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010

in thousands except per share data

$54356 $70457 $61773 $52363$39070 $43763

39070 43763

22.827 26.763

22827 26.763

16243 17000

54356

36577

36.577

17 .779

2.231

6.639

6.789

813

7.039

1.773 59.402

43559 29.142

_______
5958

43559 35.100

18214 24302

70457

50.456

50456

20001

2128

6654

4189
797

2316

6948

6242
827

2.454

5.1 37

6397
846

$50524

11.193

61717

28849

9860

38709

23008

2.661

10.087

9479

818

$49683

14260

63943

28422

12760

41182

22761

2379

10401

10313

716

1.906

6.482

6.755

820

2.803

8852

6.907

823

5351 335
607 466 472

21077 14033 16.000

40 122 121

302
1.137 137 3522 427

4834 2967

201 82
5035 2.885

12329 16100 22947 23.594

1.779

32

1811

7672

70

7742

2.114 1355

570 685

1544 670

586
484

102

0.14 0.08 0.05

34853 35044 35035

0.14 0.06 0.05

_______ _______
35766

19.399

4531

18230

6639

$11591

0.32

36 196

0.31

36851

0.22 u.04 u.02 0.0w

35094 35466 35751 35.969

0.21 0.04 0.02 0.00

36.112 37.059 37.353 35969share 34.853 35069

47



March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 88.2% 81.9% 77.7%

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.8 18.1 22.3

.ir6 iR5o-d 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

58.4 61.2 67.3 71.6 70.5 49 46.7 444

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 16.0 20.0

58.4 61.2 67.3 71.6 70.5 59.1 62.7 64.4

41.6 38.8 32.7 28.4 29.5 40.9 37.3 35.6

Services revenue

Product revenue

Total revenues

Services cost of sales

Product cost of sales

Total cost of sales

Gioss profit

Expenses and other income

Engineering and technology

Sales and marketing

General and administrative

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible

assets

Loss gain on investments

net

Other toss income net

Total expenses and other

income

Income loss before income

taxes

Income tax benefit expense

Net income loss

5.9

17.8

16.0

2.1

5.6

11.7

14.6

1.9

4.1

12.2

12.5

1.5

3.0

9.4

6.0

1.1

3.1

10.5

11.0

1.3

4.7

14.9

11.6

1.4

4.3

16.3

15.4

1.3

3.7

16.3

16.1

1.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2

13.7

1.5
0.7
1.1

0.0

0.9
0.4
1.6

0.0

0.2

0.0

5.9

0.0

0.7

0.0

30.3

54.0 32.0 29.4

12.4 6.8

0.5 0.2

l2.9% 6.6%

17.5 26.1 38.6 38.2

3.3

0.0

3.3%

10.9

0.1

11.0%

3.4

0.9

2.5%

2.3

1.2

1.1%

0.9
0.7

0.2%

7.1

28.5

10.4

18.1%
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to financial market risks including changes in the market values of our debt investments

and interest rates

Financial market risk We do not invest in financial instruments or their derivatives for trading or

speculative purposes By policy we limit our credit exposure to any one issuer other than securities issued by

the U.S federal government and its agencies and do not have any derivative instruments in our investment

portfolio The three primary goals that guide our investment decisions with the first being the most important

are preserve capital maintain ease of conversion into immediate liquidity and achieve rate of return over

predetermined benchmark Our investment portfolio at December 31 2010 included debt instruments issued by

the U.S federal government and its agencies U.S municipal governments publicly-held corporations and

money market funds invested in securities issued by agencies of the U.S federal government Beginning in 2007

the global financial markets began to experience unusual and significant distress that peaked in 2008 and

moderated in 2009 and 2010 In 2007 certain auction rate securities that we purchased for $40.4 million became

illiquid and experienced severe decline in fair value before we liquidated those investments in 2009 for net cash

proceeds of $9.2 million and realized net loss on investments of $31.2 million As of December 31 2010 we

invested exclusively in debt instruments with minimal default risk and maturity dates of less than one year from

the end of any of our quarterly accounting periods We consider the market value default and liquidity risks of

our investments to be low at December 31 2010

Interest rare risk As of December 31 2010 all of the debt securities that we held were fixed rate earning

instruments that carry degree of interest rate risk Fixed-rate securities may have their fair market value

adversely impacted due to rise in interest rates We may suffer losses in principal if we are forced to sell

securities which have declined in market value due to changes in interest rates At December 31 2010 our cash

equivalent balances of $lutJ.u million were held in commercial paper taxable municipal bonds and money

market funds and our short-term investment balances of $98.1 million were held in U.S government securities

and taxable municipal bonds

The following table provides information about our cash equivalent and marketable fixed-income securities

including principal cash flows for 2011 and thereafter and the related weighted average interest rates

Principal amounts and weighted average interest rates by expected year of maturity as of

December 31 2010 are as follows in thousands except percentages

2011 2012 -2015 Thereafter Total Fair Value

U.S government

securities 89990 0.35% 89990 0.35% 90850

Commercial paper 87915 0.19% 87915 0.19% 87902

Taxable municipal

bonds 19065 0.34% 19065 0.34% 19337

Money market funds 31 0.08% 31 0.08% 31

Cash equivalents and

marketable fixed

income securities $197001 $197001 $198120
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

InfoSpace Inc

Bellevue Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of InfoSpace Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive income loss stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of InfoSpace Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the

criteria established in Internal ControlInte grated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 11 2011 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is/DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Seattle Washington

March 11 2011
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INFOSPACE INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

amounts in thousands except share data

December 31

2010 2009

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 155645 83750

Short-term investments available-for-sale 98091 142647

Accounts receivable net of allowance of $15 and $23 19554 28466

Other receivables 2286 2953

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3178 2526

Total current assets 278754 260342

Property and equipment net 7470 12315

Goodwill 69878 44815

Other intangible assets net 1383 457

Other long-term assets 4258 4287

Total assets 361743 322216

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 7241 6736

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 42753 34131

Total current liabilities 49994 40867

Long-term liabilities 955 1514

Total liabilities 50949 42381

Commitments and contingencies Note

Stockholders equity

Common stock par value $.000 1authorized 900000000 shares issued and

outstanding 36088646 and 35391122 shares

Additional paid-in capital 1322265 1303667

Accumulated deficit 1011473 1025176
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 1340

Total stockholders equity 310794 279835

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 361743 322216

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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INFOSPACE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
amounts in thousands except per share data

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Revenues

Services revenue $214343 $207646 $156727

Product revenue 32492
________

Total revenues 246835 207646 156727

Cost of sales

Cost of services sales 129972 136623 87130

Cost of product sales 28578
________

Total cost of sales 158550 136623 87130

Gross Profit 88285 71023 69597

Expenses and other income

Engineering arid technulugy 9749 9129 13846

Sales and marketing 35822 25.378 24644
General and administrative 33454 23.6 17 24228

Depreciation 3.177 3283 3264

Amortization of intangiblassets 283

Restructuring 17

Other net 1897
Loss on investments net 4714 28520

Other income net 15.3 13 2682 7149

Total expenses and other income 67.172 63439 85473

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes 21113 7584 15876
Income tax expense 7410 181 598

Income low from cuntinuing uperatiuns 13703 7403 16474
Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of taxes 1455
Loss on sale of discontinued operations net of taxes 770

Net income loss 13703 7403 18699

Income loss per share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations 0.38 0.21 0.48
Loss from discontinued operations 0.04

Loss on sale of discontinued operations 0.02

Basic net income loss per share 0.38 0.21 0.54

Weighted average shares outstanding used in computing basic income loss per share 35886 34983 34415

Income loss per shareDiluted

Income loss from continuing operations 0.37 0.21 0.48
Loss from discontinued operations 0.04

Loss on sale of discontinued operations 0.02

Diluted net income loss per share 0.37 0.21 0.54

Weighted average shares outstanding used in computing diluted income loss per

share 36.829 35431 34415

Other comprehensive income loss
Net income loss 13703 7403 $l8699
Foreign currency translation adjustment 74 108 47
Reclassification adjustment for realized foreign currency gains net included in

net income loss 1362
Unrealized gain loss on investments available for sale 94 943 1109

Reclassification adjustment for other than-temporary losses gains on

investments available-for-sale included in net income loss 335 776

Cumulative tax effect on unrealized gain on investments available-for-sale 186

Comprehensive income loss 12361 6203 16861

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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INFOSPACE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

in thousands

Balance December 31 2007

Common stock issued for stock options and

restricted stock units

Common stock issued for employee stock

purchase plan

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

investments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Tax effect of equity compensation

Stock-based compensation

Taxes paid on stock issued for equity

awards

Net loss

Balance December 31 2008

Common stock issued for stock options and

restricted stock units

Common stock issued for employee stock

purchase plan

Common stock issued for acquisition

Commnn stock retired

Unrealized loss on available for sale

investments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Tax effect of equity compensation

Stock based compensation

Taxes paid on stock issued for equity

awards

Net income

Balance December 31 2009

Common stock issued for stock options and

restricted stock units

Common stock issued for employee stock

purchase plan

Common stock retired

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale

iovestments

Foreign currency transaction adjustment

Foreign currency translation adjustment for

disposition of foreign subsidiaries

Tax effect of equity compensation

Stock-based compensation

Taxes paid on stock issued for equity

awards

Net income

Balance December 31 2010

Additional

paid-in

_______ _______
capital

1.279225

420 16

54 587

1029
15143

1.582

34.796 1.292360

366

399

809

7032

15010

3.886

_____
$1322265

Accumulated

other

comprehensive
income

702

16

587

1885

47
1029
15143

1582

______
18699

2540 262324

399

810

1278
108
793

10838

1351

______
7403

1340 $279835

2191

1362
7032

15010

3886
13.703

$310794

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Comnson stock

Shares Amount

34322

Accumulated

deficit

$l013880

Total

$266050

1885

47

18.699

1032579

61

230

67

607

10838

1278
108

186

35391

1351

$1303667

7403

$l025176

962 2191

54

318
350

2099
350

2099

94

74

1362

94

74

36089

13703

$1Ol 1473
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INFOSPACE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Operating Activities

Net income loss 13703 7.403 18699
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided used by operating

activities

Loss from discontinued operations 1455

Loss on sale of discontinued operations 770

Stock based compensation 14751 10568 14.304

Depreciation and amoitization 7091 7252 7335
Excess tax benefits from stock based award activity 7032 607
Earn out contingent liability adjustments 5000
Common stock retired relating to

litigation
settlement 2099

Amortiiation of piemium accretion of discount on investments net 365 206 107
Loss on disposal of assets net 1262 642 629

Foreign currency translation gains net 1436
Deferred income taxes 218 2814 2667
Loss on investments net 4714 28520

Net gain on sale of assets 1897
Other 171 35

Cash provided used by changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 9551 13.043 1643

Notes and othei meceivables 1488 2104 5228

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 576 759 135

Other long-term assets 202 712 1784

Accounts payable 3.428 641 614

Accrued expenses and other current and long-term liabilities 6055 11390 59264

Net cash provided used by opeiating activities 45872 30.000 20182
Investing Activities

Business acquisitions net of cash acquired 15985 395
Purchases of property and equipment 3019 2435 12277
Other long-term assets 230 50 199
Proceeds from sale of assets 307 623 2.5 50

Proceeds from sales of investments 52801 9202
Pioceeds from maturities of investments 191976 187654 43980
Purchases of investments 200493 190178 145338

Net cash provided used by investing activities 25817 4421 111284
Financing Activities

Excess tax benefits from stock based award activity 7032 607

Proceeds from stock option and warmant exetcises 2191 16

Proceeds from issuance of stock through employee stock purchase plan 350 399 587

Repayment of capital lease obligation 589 564 233
Tax payments from shares withheld upon vesting of restricted stock units 4201 1054
Earn-out payments for business acquisitions 4577
Special dividend paid

________ ________
299296

Net cash provided used by financing activities 206 607 298926
Discontinued operations

Net operating cash used by discontinued operations 17998

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 71895 33814 448390
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 83750 49936 498326

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 155645 83750 49936

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities

Liabilities assumed in purchase transaction 8231 56
Stock issued in purchase transaction 809

Supplemental disclosure of non cash financing activities

Contingent earn out consideration from acquisition 5.000
Purchases of assets under

capital
leases 1601

Cash paid for

Income tax expense benefit for continuing operations 364 34 5117

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Note The Company and Basis of Presentation

Description qf the business InfoSpace Inc the Company or InfoSpace develops search tools and

technologies that assist consumers with finding information merchants individuals products and other content

on the Internet The Company uses its metasearch technology which selects search results from several search

engine content providers to power its own branded websites and to provide online search services to distribution

partners Partner versions of Web offerings are generally private-labeled and delivered with each distribution

partners unique requirements Some content providers such as Google and Yahoo pay the Company to

distribute their content and those providers are referred to as search customers Beginning in May 2010 the

Company also operates an online retail business that includes collection of more than 200 specialty online

stores operated under the Mercantila brand

Principles of consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company

and its subsidiaries Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Basis of presentation The operating results of the directory and mobile businesses which were sold to

third parties in 2007 have been presented as discontinued operations for 2008

Segments The Companys chief executive officer who is its chief operating decision maker reviews

financial information presented on consolidated basis accompanied by disaggregated information for certain

measures This information is used for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance

The Company has two reporting segments Core and Commerce The Companys search operations comprise

Core and the Companys operation of its Mercantila business comprises E-Commerce Unless context indicates

otherwise the Company uses the term services to represent search services and the Core segment it also uses

the term products to represent retail products sold through the Commerce segment

Reclassification In the second quarter of 2010 the Company revised the presentation of its consolidated

statements of operations and comprehensive income loss Operations Statement as outlined below

New caption Comprised of amounts from

Services revenue Revenues completely allocated to new caption

Product revenue New caption no amounts in prior periods

Cost of services sales Content and distribution completely allocated to new caption

Systems and network operations partially allocated to new caption

Sales and marketing partially allocated to new caption

General and administrative partially allocated to new caption

Depreciation partially allocated to new caption

Amortization of intangible assets partially allocated to new caption

Cost of product sales New caption no amounts in prior periods

Engineering and technology Systems and network operations partially allocated to new caption

Product development completely allocated to new caption
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INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

The Company also added the caption total expenses and other income and eliminated the captions total

operating expenses and operating income The reclassifications did not impact previously reported revenues

income loss before income taxes net income loss total assets total liabilities or stockholders equity

Certain other reclassifications of prior period balances have been made for consistent presentation with the

current period These changes consisted of reclassifications within the Companys Operations Statement in 2008

to conform to the current year presentation and in the consolidated statements of cash flows for 2009 and 2008

sales and maturities of investments are separately presented as components of net cash provided used by

investing activities and the net amortization of premium accretion of discount on investments is separately

presented as component of net cash provided used by operating activities it was previously presented under

the caption of Other Those reclassifications did not impact previously reported net income loss in the

Operations Statement or net cash provided used by operating activities or net cash provided used by investing

activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of

ninety days or less at date of acquisition to be cash equivalents which are carried at fair value

Accounts receivable Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due from customers net of an allowance

for doubtful accounts

Short-tenn investments The Company principally invests its available cash in investment grade debt

instruments of corporate issuers and in debt instruments of the U.S government and its agencies All debt

instruments with maturities greater than ninety days up to one year from the balance sheet date are considered

short-term investments The Company periodically evaluates whether the declines in fair value of its

available-for-sale investments are other than temporary As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the Companys
short-term investments are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at their fair value with unrealized

gains and temporary impairments reported in other comprehensive income loss and other than temporary

impairments reported in loss on investments net in the Operations Statement

Property and equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is computed under the

straight line method over the following estimated useful lives

Computer equipment and software
years

Data center servers years

Internally developed software 15 months3
years

Office equipment years

Office furniture
years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or economic life

The Company capitalizes certain internal use software development costs primarily employee salaries and

benefits allocated on project or product basis The Company capitalized $1.0 million $1.1 million and

$1.7 million of internal use software costs in the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Business combinations and intangible assets including goodwill The Company accounts for business

combinations using the acquisition method and accordingly the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

assumed are recorded at their acquisition date fair values Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the purchase
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INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

price over the fair value of net assets including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible assets

Acquisition-related costs including advisory legal accounting valuation and other costs are expensed in the

periods in which the costs are incurred The results of operations of acquired businesses are included in the

consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets The Company evaluates goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets at least annually to determine whether there has been an impairment of the value of these assets

and evaluates impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances including material changes in the fair

value of the Companys outstanding common stock indicate that the carrying amount of the Companys assets

might not be recoverable The Company amortizes definite-lived intangible assets over their expected useful

lives and when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived asset or asset group

may not be recoverable the Company performs test to determine whether the carrying amount of the asset or

asset group tested is not recoverable and its canying amount exceeds its fair value Any impairment losses

relating to goodwill or other intangible assets are recognized in the Operations Statement

The following table provides information about activity in goodwill in each segment during the period from

January 2009 to December 31 2010 in thousands

Core E-Commerce Total

Goodwill as of January 2009 543.940 $43940

Goodwill associated with 2009 business acquisition 875 875

Goodwill as of December 31 2009 44815 44815

Goodwill associated with 2010 business acquisitions 12650 12413 25063

Goodwill as of December 31 2010 $57465 $12413 $69878

Other intangible assets consisted of the following in thousands

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Other Other

Gross intangible Gross intangible

carrying Accumulated assets carrying Accumulated assets

amount amortization net amount amortization net

Definite-lived intangible assets

Core technology $1978 $l345 633 $1085 911 $174

Customer relationships 39 23 16

Other 6667 6667
______

6667 6667

Total definite-lived intangible assets 8684 8035 649 7.752 7578 174

Indefinite-lived intangible assets 734 734 283 283

Total $9418 $8035 $1383 $8035 $7578 $457

Amortization of definite lived intangible assets held as of December 31 2010 is expected to be $463000

and $186000 in 2011 and 2012 respectively The weighted average amortization period for definite-lived

intangible assets is 16 months

In the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company conducted its annual impairment

analyses for goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of November 30 2010 2009 and 2008 and
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INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

determined that the carrying value of its goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets was not impaired In 2009

and 2008 the Company determined that it did not operate separate reporting units therefore the methodology

used for the Companys 2009 and 2008 annual impairment analyses were primarily based on comparison of the

balance of its stockholders equity to the fair value of its outstanding common stock based on the Companys

quoted stock price In 2010 upon the acquisition of its Commerce business the Company determined that it

operated two reporting units and the 2010 annual impairment analyses was based on valuation using

combination of the Companys quoted stock price and projections of future discounted cash flows for each

reporting unit

Other investments Included in other long-term assets are the Companys investment in equity investments

of privately-held companies for business and strategic purposes The company currently holds equity securities

and warrants to purchase equity securities in companies whose securities are not publicly traded The Companys

equity investments were carried at fair value of $0 at December 31 2010 and 2009

Services revenue recognition The Companys services revenue which is recorded in the Core segnient is

generated primarily from its Web search services The Company generates search services revenue when an end

user of such services clicks on paid search link provided by search customer and displayed on one of the

Companys owned and operated Web properties or displayed on distribution partners Web property The

search customer that provided the paid search link receives fee from the advertiser who paid for the click and

the search customer pays the Company portion of that fee

For the Companys services transactions the Company is the primary obligor separately negotiates each

revenue or unit pricing contract independent of any revenue sharing arrangenients and assumes the credit risk for

amounts invoiced to its search customers For search services the Company determines the paid search results

content and information directed to its owned and operated websites and its distribution partners Web properties

through its metasearch technology

The Company earns revenue from its search customers by providing paid search results generated from its

owned and operated Web properties and from its distribution partners Web properties based on separately

negotiated and agreed-upon terms with each distribution partner Consequently the Company records services

revenue on gross basis Revenue is recognized in the period in which the services are provided e.g paid

search occurs and is based on the amounts earned by and ultimately remitted to the Company

Product revenue recognition The Companys product revenue which is recorded in the E-Commerce

segment is generated from sales of products to its customers The Company recognizes revenue from sales of

products when the following revenue recognition criteria are met persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

the selling price is fixed or determinable delivery has occurred and title has passed to the customer and

collectability is reasonably assured

For the Companys sales of product transactions the Company is the primary obligor establishes prices and

selects suppliers performs order fulfillment services assumes the inventory risk during shipping and for

customer returns and assumes the credit risk for amounts invoiced to its customers Consequently the Company

records product revenue at its gross sales price

Cost qf sales The Company records the cost of sales for product and services when the related revenue is

recognized Cost of services sales primarily consists of costs related to revenue sharing arrangements with the

Companys distribution partners certain costs associated with the operation of the Companys data centers that
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

serve its search business including depreciation personnel expenses which include salaries benefits and other

employee related costs and stock-based compensation expense usage-based content fees and bandwidth costs

Cost of product sales consist of the purchase price of goods sold by the Company to its customers drop-ship and

other shipping charges and payment processing fees for customer transactions

Product sales returns and replacements The Company estimates sales returns which reduces product

revenue The Company estimates the cost of replacing damaged or defective goods sold to customers which is

recorded as cost of product sales

Engineering and technology expenses Engineering and technology expenses are associated with the

research development support and ongoing enhancements of the Companys offerings including personnel

expenses which include salaries stock-based compensation expense and benefits and other employee related

costs software support and maintenance and professional service fees

Sales and marketing expenses Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of marketing expenses

associated with the Companys owned and operated Web properties which consist of traffic acquisition

including online direct marketing initiatives which involve the purchase of online advertisements that drive

traffic to an owned and operated website agency fees brand promotion expense and market research expense

personnel costs which include salaries stock based compensation expense and benefits and other employee

related costs advertising for Mercantilas Web properties the cost of temporary help and contractors to augment

the Companys staffing and the operation of Mercantilas call center Costs for advertising are recorded as

expense when the advertisement appears or electronic impressions are recorded Advertising expense totaled

$22.8 million $15.4 million and $11.4 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel

expenses which include salaries stock-based compensation expense and benefits and other employee related

costs professional service fees which include legal audit and tax fees general business development and

management expenses occupancy and general office expenses taxes insurance expenses and certain legal

settlements

Stock based compensation The Company measures and recognizes its compensation expense for all

share based payment awards made to employees and directors including stock option and restricted stock unit

grants and purchases of stock made pursuant to the Companys 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the

ESPP based on estimated fair values Expense is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite vesting

period for each separately vesting portion of the award

The Company estimates the fair value of share based payment awards on the date of grant using the Black

Scholes Merton option pricing model The value of the awards portion that is ultimately expected to vest is

recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Employee benefit plan The Company has 401k savings plan covering its employees Eligible

employees may contribute through payroll deductions The Company may match the employees 40 1k
contributions at the discretion of the Companys Board of Directors During 2010 2009 and 2008 the

Companys Board of Directors elected to match portion of the 401k contributions made by employees of the

Company The amount contributed by the Company is equal to maximum of 50% of employee contributions up

to maximum of 3% of an employees salary For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the

Company contributed $322000 $326000 and $327000 respectively for employees
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Othet net Other net consists of gains or charges that are not directly associated with other revenue or

operating expense classifications There were no other net charges in the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 Other net during the year ended December 31 2008 of $1.9 million primarily consisted of the gains on

sales of non core assets

Loss on investments net Loss on investments net consists of changes in fair values of warrants held by

the Company realized gains and losses from the sale of equity instruments of publicly held and privately-held

companies and the other-than-temporary impairment of such equity instruments

Other income net Other income net for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 consists of

the following in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Litigation settlement gain $08965

Foreign currency exchange gain loss net 1335 67 660

Interest income 331 3443 7344
Gain on contingency resolution 1124
Increase in fair value of earn-out contingent liability 5000

Loss on disposal of
property and equipment 1014 642 629

Other 696 52 30

Other income net $05313 $2682 $7149

In 2010 the Company recognized $19.0 million of gain related to litigation settlement The financial

performance of the operation of Make The Web Better acquired on April 2010 was greater than expected as

consequence the fair value of the related contingent consideration increased and an additional charge of

$5.0 million was recorded In 2010 the Company sold or substantially liquidated its previously wholly-owned

foreign subsidiaries and recognized $1.4 million of realized foreign currency translation gains The decrease in

interest income is primarily due to decline in interest rates

Loss fron2 discontinued operations and loss on sale of discontinued operations In 2007 the Company

completed the sale of its directory and mobile businesses and has reflected the results of operations from these

businesses as discontinued operations for all periods presented

For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company recorded income loss from the operating results of

its mobile and directory businesses For the sale of its directory business the Company recorded gain on sale of

$48000 net of tax expense of $26000 in the year ended December 31 2008 For the sale of its mobile business

the Company recorded loss on sale of $818000 net of tax benefit of $780000 in the year ended

December 31 2008 The operating results of these businesses consist of the following in thousands

Year ended December 312008

Directory Mobile

Revenue from discontinued operations 127

Income loss from discontinued operations before taxes 204 2098
Income tax expense benefit 76 515

Gain loss from discontinued operations net of taxes $128 $1583

Gain loss on sale of discontinued operations net of taxes $48 818
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Net income loss per share Basic net income loss per share is computed using the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted net income loss per share is computed using

the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of potentially dilutive shares

outstanding during the period Potentially dilutive shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon

the exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants using the treasury stock method Potentially dilutive

shares are excluded from the computation of earnings per share if their effect is antidilutive including for periods

of net loss

The treasury stock method calculates the dilutive effect for stock options and warrants with an exercise price

less than the average stock price during the period presented

Years ended December 31

In thousands 2010 2009 2008

Weighted average common shares outstanding basic 35886 34983 34415

Dilutive stock options and warrants 943 448

Weighted average common shares outstanding diluted 36829 35431 34415

Antidilutive stock option restricted stock unit and warrant equivalents

excluded from dilutive share calculation 1199 1721 930

Outstanding stock options and warrants with an exercise price more than

the average price during the year not included in dilutive share

calculation 4282 4888 4865

Other comprehensive income loss Comprehensive income loss includes net income loss plus items

that are recorded directly to stockholders equity including foreign currency translation adjustments and the net

change in unrealized gains and losses on cash equivalents short-term and long-term investments Included in the

net change in unrealized gains and losses are realized gains or losses included in the determination of net income

loss in the period realized Amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive income loss into net income

loss were determined on the basis of specific identification Components of accumulated other comprehensive

income loss included on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31 2010 and 2009 consist of the

following in thousandsl

December 31

2010 2009

Unrealized gain on foreign currency translation $1436

Unrealized loss on available for sale investments 96

$1340

Foreign currencies Foreign subsidiary financial statements are denominated in foreign currencies and are

translated at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date Translation adjustments resulting from this process are

charged or credited to other comprehensive income loss Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates

of exchange prevailing during the period Realized gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included

in other income net In 2010 substantially all of InfoSpaces foreign subsidiaries were sold or liquidated

Concentration qf credit risk Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations

of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents short term investments and trade receivables These

instruments are generally unsecured and uninsured The Company places its cash equivalents and investments
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with major financial institutions Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and are derived from revenues

earned from search customers primarily located in the United States operating in variety of industries and

geographic areas The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its search customers and maintains

allowances for potential credit losses

Revenue concentration The Company derives significant portion of its revenues from small number of

search customers Revenues froni the top two search customers of the Company represented 80% 95% and 95%

or more of total revenues in each of the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively These

search customers each accounted for more than 10% of total revenues in the
years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 At December 31 2010 and 2009 these two search customers each accounted for more than 10%

of the accounts receivable balance

Fair value offinancial instruments The Company does not measure the fair value of any financial

instrument other than cash equivalents available-for-sale investments warrants and its investment in privately

held company The carrying values of other financial instruments accounts receivable notes and other

receivables and accounts payable other current assets and accrued expenses and other current liabilities are not

recorded at fair value but approximate fair values primarily due to their short-term nature

Income taves The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method under which

deferred tax assets including net operating loss carryforwards and liabilities are determined based on temporary

differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities The Company evaluates the deferred tax

assets for future realization and reduces them by valuation allowance to the extent management of the

Company believes that they more likely than not will not be realized Management considers many factors when

assessing the likelihood of future realization of the Companys deferred tax assets including recent cumulative

earnings experience by taxing jurisdiction expectations of future taxable income which includes consideration

of expected future revenue levels trends in the industry and the current macroeconomic environment the

carryforward periods available for tax reporting purposes and other relevant factors Due to the size of the net

operating loss carryforwards their expiration beginning in 2020 and the Companys recent level of annualized

profitability management has determined the net deferred tax assets were not more likely than not realizable and

provided valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company

provided valuation allowances of $313.1 million and $319.1 million respectively against its deferred tax assets

related to net operating loss carryforwards and other temporary differences The Company will continue to

evaluate the likelihood of the realization of the deferred tax assets Significant judgment is required in making

this assessment and it is very difficult to predict when if ever the Company may conclude that any portion of

the deferred tax assets are more likely than not realizable

Lease accounting The Company leases office space and computer equipment used in its data centers

These leases arc classified as either capital leases or operating leases as appropriate The amortization of assets

under capital leases is included in depreciation expense For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 $537.000 $535000 and $341000 respectively of amortization for assets acquired under capital leases

was included in depreciation expense

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the

reporting period Estimates include those used for impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets useful

lives of other intangible assets purchase accounting valuation of investments and other-than-temporary
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impairment of investments revenue recognition the estimated allowance for sales returns and doubtful accounts

internally developed software accrued contingencies stock option valuation and valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets Actual amounts may differ from estimates

Recent accounting pronouncements The Company does not expect the adoption of recently issued

accounting pronouncements to have significant impact on its results of operations financial position or cash

flow

Note Balance Sheet Components

Short term investments classified as available-for-sale at December 31 2010 and 2009 consisted of the

following stated at fair value in thousands

December 31

2010 2009

U.S government securities $90850 $106493

Taxable municipal bonds 7241 2.604

Corporate notes 33.550

Total short-term investments available-for-sale $98091 142.647

Maturity information was as follows for investments classified as available-for-sale at December 31 2010

in thousands

Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

cost gains losses value

Within one year $98091 13 $03 $98091

Greater than one year

Total $98091 $13 $13 $98091

At December 31 2009 there were gross unrealized gains of $4000 and gross unrealized losses of $84.000

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Property and equipment

Computer equipment and data center 11791 12310

Purchased software 4544 4909

Internally developed software 3.952 4873

Office equipment 1612 1613

Office furniture 533 481

Leasehold improvements and other 3133 3134

25565 27320
Accumulated depreciation 18556 15053

7009 12267

Capital projects in progress 461 48

7470 12315
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Included in computer equipment and data center was $1.6 million of assets acquired under capital lease

Accumulated depreciation related to assets acquired under capital lease was $1 .4 million at December 31 2010

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued distribution partner obligations $17241 $22480

Salaries and related expenses 6926 4049

Business acquisition contingent liability 5423
Accrued liabilities related to legal settlement 5350

Deferred revenue 2261 314

Other 1826 470

Customer depositr 1619 1623

Accrued legal and other consulting expenses 893 3667

Accrued rent 679 929

Deferred tax liability 308

Capital lease obligation 221 599

$42753 $34131

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Long-term liabilities

Unrecognized tax benefit $955 $1303

Capital lease obligation 211

$955 $1514

Note Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures its investments at fair value under GAAP Fair value is the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date The fair value hierarchy of the Companys financial assets carried at fair value and measured

on recurring basis is as follows in thousands

Fair valne measurements at the reporting

date using

Qnoted prices

in active Significant

markets using other Significant

identical observable unobservable

December 31 assets inputs inpnts

2010 Level Level Level

Cash equivalents $100029 $100029

Available-for-sale securities 98091 98091

$198120 $198120
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In 2007 the auctions for certaio auction rate securities ARS and type of ARS referred to as auction

rate preferred securities ARPS that the Company purchased for $40.4 million began to fail due to insufficient

bids from buyers When the ARS auctions began to fail the Company initially determined their fair values by

using discounted cash flow models Because those models relied on various observable and unobservable inputs

those ARS and ARPS were classified in the Level input category The Company incorporated market

information into its valuation models when secondary market began to form

There were no balances outstanding in financial assets measured on recurring basis by using significant

Level or Level inputs at December 31 2010 or 2009 and there were no financial assets measured on

recurring basis by using significant Level or Level inputs during the year ended December 31 2010 Changes

in the fair values of financial assets measured on recurring basis by using significant Level inputs in the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows in thousands

Financial assets using signiticant Level inputs for determining fair value

Years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Total

ARS
and Preferred Equity

ARS ARPS ARPS shares investment Warrants Total

Balance at January 2008 $20905 16567 37472 2000 188 $39660

Other-than-temporary

impairment 9689 14643 24.332 2000 188 26520

Temporary impairment 1279 1279 1279
Temporary impairment reclassified

to other-than-temporary 1804 251 2055 2055

Replacement of ARPS with

preferred shares
________

365 365 365

Balance at December31 2008 11741 1810 13551 365 13916

Other-than-temporary

impairment 4391 960 5351 5.351
Proceeds from sales of financial

assets 7.942 560 8502 700 9202
Gain loss on sales of financial

assets 592 290 302 335
_____

637

Balance atDecember3l2009 ..

In the year ended December 31 2009 the Company recorded an other-than-temporary impairment of its

available-for-sale investments in loss on investments net in the Operations Statement of $5.4 million and upon

the subsequent sales of those investments the Company recorded gain of $637000 in loss on investments net

In the year ended December 31 2008 the Company recorded an other-than-temporary impairment of its

available for-sale investments in loss on investments net in the Operations Statement of $24.3 million which

included $776000 of impairments previously classified as temporary

The Company reviews the impairments of its available-for-sale investments and classifies the impairment of

any
individual available-for-sale investment as either temporary or other than temporary The differentiating

factors between temporary and other than temporary impairments are primarily the length of the time and the

extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer

and the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to

allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value
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Note Stockholders Equity

Stock Incentive Plans

The Companys stock incentive plans generally provide employees officers directors independent

contractors and consultants of the Company an opportunity to purchase shares of stock by exercising

nonqualified stock options which are options that are not described in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986 as amended The plans also provide for the sale or granting of stock to eligible individuals in

connection with the performance of service for the Company Finally the plans authorize the grant of stock

appreciation rights either separately or in tandem with stock options which entitle holders to cash compensation

measured by appreciation in the value of the stock The stock incentive plans are administered by the

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors which is composed of non-employee directors The

Company issues new shares upon exercise of options and upon the vesting of restricted stock units RSUs

1996 Plan The Company primarily has one stock plan that was used for grants during 2010 2009 and

2008 On December 2006 the Companys Restated 1996 Flexible Stock Incentive Program the 1996 Plan

was amended to permit grants of RSUs RSUs and options granted under the 1996 Plan typically are scheduled to

vest over three years or less with 33 vesting one year from the date of grant and the remainder vesting

ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis Options and RSUs granted in 2010 2009 and 2008 under the

1996 Plan typically vest over period of up to four years with either 100% 50% 33 V3% or 25% vesting one

year from the date of grant and the remainder vesting ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis and expire seven

years from the date of grant Options granted prior to 2008 under the 1996 Plan typically vest over four years

with 25% vesting one year from the date of grant and the remainder vesting ratably thereafter on monthly

quarterly or semi-annual basis and expire seven or ten years from the date of grant RSUs granted prior to 2008

did not have typical vesting schedule Through January 2011 the number of shares available for grant

pursuant to securities issued under the 1996 Plan increased annually on the first day of January by an amount

equal to the lesser of five percent of the Companys outstanding shares at the end of the Companys

preceding fiscal year or lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors The 1996 Plan limits the

number of shares of common stock that may be granted to any one individual pursuant to stock options in any

fiscal year of the Company to 800000 shares plus an additional 800000 shares in connection with his or her

initial employment with the Company which initial grant does not count against the limit If an option is

surrendered or for any other reason ceases to be exercisable in whole or in part the shares which were subject to

the option but on that the option has not been exercised shall continue to be available under the 1996 Plan If an

RSU award is surrendered or for any other reason unused in whole or in part the shares that were subject to the

award shall continue to be available under the 1996 Plan

2001 Plan In February 2001 the Company implemented its 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan the

2001 Plan under which nonqualified stock options to purchase common stock or shares of restricted stock

may be granted to employees Under the 2001 Plan 2.5 million shares of common stock are authorized for grant

of options or issuance of restricted stock Options granted subsequent to 2005 under the 2001 Plan expire seven

years from the date of the grant and vest over three years with 33% vesting one year from the date of grant and

the remainder vesting ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis Options granted prior to 2006 under the

2001 Plan expire ten years from the date of the grant and vest over two years with 50% vesting ratably on

monthly basis over the two-year period and the remaining 50% balance vesting at the end of the two year period

Plans and awards assumed through acquisition In addition to the plans described above the Company
has assumed stock incentive plans and awards through acquisitions The Company assumed the awards
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outstanding from the stock incentive plan of F-Four LLC upon the acquisition of its membership interests by the

Company on May 22 2009 The majority of the plans assumed have expired one plan has options outstanding

although the plan has expired In 2009 the Company assumed awards through an acquisition Assumed options

and RSUs vest over three
year period 33 /3% one year from the date of grant and ratably thereafter on semi

annual basis and expire seven years
from the date of grant There are no shares available for grant as of

December 31 2010 under
any plan assumed through acquisition

summary of the general terms of options to purchase common stock and RSUs previously granted under

these plaas including options outstanding and available for grant at December 31 2010 is as follows

Switchboard

1996 Plan 2001 Plan Plan

Requisite service period in years or less or less

Lifein years 7or 10 7or 10

Options and RSUs outstanding at December 31

2010 7004380 110565 25000

Options and RSUs available for grant at December 31

2010 4606589 1678703

Options Activity and pricing information regarding all options are summarized as follows

F-Four

283333

Outstanding December 31 2007

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Outstanding December 31 2008

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Outstanding December 31 2009

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Outstanding December 31 2010

Options exercisable December 31 2010

Weighted

average

exercise

price

27.73

10.36

32.62

18.43

4.67

19.02

7.62

16.77

104.92

5.10

13.74

9.74

11.41

20.32

8.53

11.95

13.18

12.21

Options

6424375

1170000

3404465

9107
3365

4177438

3035200

1031738

3851
1070

6175979

1755600

605032

1006259

274495

6045793

4237755

5563154Options exercisable and expected to vest after December 31 2010

Options expected to vest reflect an estimated forfeiture rate
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All grants in 2010 2009 and 2008 were made at an exercise price equal to the market price at the date of

grant Additional information regarding options outstanding for all plans as of December 31 2010 is as follows

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted

average Weighted Weighted
remaining average average

Number contractual exercise Number exercise

Range of exercise prices outstanding life yrs price exercisable price

5.106.99 307972 0.6 6.94 294475 6.95

7.00 8.99 2872231 3.4 8.02 1728505 8.02

$9.00 10.99 1386000 3.0 9.86 1108835 9.69

$11.00 19.99 479117 5.5 11.48 105842 12.31

$20.00 33.99 803258 2.1 24.55 802883 24.55

$34.00 55.09 197215 0.2 41.55 197215 41.55

Total 6045793 3.0 11.95 4237755 13.18

Restricted stock units Activity and weighted average grant date fair value information regarding all

restricted stock unit grants are summarized as follows

Weighted average

Restricted grant date

stock fair value

Outstanding December 31 2007 700499 $21.02

Granted 1576172 9.75

Forfeited 406282 15.37

Vested 597884 15.02

Outstanding December 31 2008 1272505 11.68

Granted 1253920 7.30

Forfeited 337992 10.52

Vested 610164 11.66

Outstanding December 31 2UU9 5732b9 .4b

Granted 1239959 9.92

Forfeited 374288 8.81

Vested 1066455 9.01

Outstanding December 31 2010 1377485 9.26

Expected to vest after December 31 2010 1006089 9.26

RSUs expected to vest reflect an estimated forfeiture rate

Other Plans

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan The Company adopted the ESPP in August 1998 The ESPP is

intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Code and permits eligible employees of the Company and its

subsidiaries to purchase common stock through payroll deductions of
up to 15% of their compensation Under

the ESPP no employee may purchase common stock worth more than $25000 in
any

calendar year valued as of

the first day of each offering period In addition owners of 5% or more of the Companys or one of its
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subsidiarys common stock may not participate in the ESPP An aggregate of 1360000 shares of common stock

are authorized for issuance under the ESPP The ESPP was implemented with six-month offering periods that

begin on each February and August The price of common stock purchased under the ESPP is the lesser of

85% of the fair market value on the first day of an offering period and 85% of the fair market value on the last

day of an offering period The ESPP does not have fixed expiration date but may be terminated by the

Companys Board of Directors at any time There were 53596 60618 and 54311 shares issued for the ESPP

periods that ended in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively During the year ended December 31 2010 financing

cash generated for the purchase of shares through the ESPP amounted to $350000 The Company issues new

shares upon purchase through the ES PP

Dividend

On November 14 2007 the Companys Board of Directors declared special cash distribution by means of

dividend on the Companys common stock of $9.00 per share The special dividend was paid on

January 2008 with respect to all shares of common stock outstanding at the close of business on

December 10 2007 The total amount of the cash distribution was $299.3 million

Note Stock-based Compensation Expense

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company recognized compensation expense

related to stock options and RSUs of $14.8 million $10.6 million and $14.3 million respectively To estimate

the compensation cost that was recognized for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the

Company used the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model with the following weighted-average

assumptions for equity awards granted

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Risk-free interest rate 0.44% 1.94% 0.87% 2.12% 2.02% 2.85%

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility 48% 53% 47% 56% 28% 56%

Expected life 3.1 years 3.2 years 2.8 years

The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield available on U.S Treasury issues with an equivalent

remaining term The Company paid special dividend in January 2008 and may pay special dividends in the

future but does not expect to pay recurring dividends The expected volatility is based on historical volatility of

the Companys stock for the related expected life of the option The expected life of the equity award is based on

historical experience

As of December 31 2010 total unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to unvested stock

options and unvested RSUs was $11.8 million The balance at December 31 2010 is expected to be recognized

over weighted average period of approximately 16 months Total unrecognized stock-based compensation cost

related to unvested stock options was $3.9 million which is expected to be recognized over weighted average

period of approximately 14 months Total unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to unvested RSU

grants was $7.9 million which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of approximately

20 months

70



INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinned

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

The Company has included the following amounts for stock based compensation cost including the cost

related to the ESPP in the accompanying Operations Statement for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 amounts in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Cost of services sales 461 535 1043

Engineering and technology 1470 1423 3373

Sales and marketing 3279 2038 3934

General and administrative 9541 6572 5954

Total $14751 $10568 $14304

Financing cash flow generated by tax benefits from stock-based award activity in was $7.0 million in 2010

and no tax expense was recognized related to stock-based compensation Excluded from the amounts recorded in

the above categories of operating expense for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are the

following amounts that were capitalized as part of internally developed software amounts that were reclassified

as discontinued operations and amounts included in restructuring resulting from options held by terminated

employees amounts in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Internally developed software $259 $270 $637

Discontinued operations 141

Restructuring 60

Total $259 $270 $838

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the
years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

is based on the grant date fair values estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model The

Company has historically disclosed and currently recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the vesting

period for each separately vesting portion of share-based award as if they were in substance individual share

based awards The Company estimates forfeitures at the time of grant and revises those estimates if
necessary

in

subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates

The weighted average
fair value for options granted in the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

was $3.47 $2.77 and $3.31 per share respectively The Company issues new shares upon exercise of options to

purchase common stock and vesting of RSUs

The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested options exercised and shares purchased pursuant to the ESPP

during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 is supplemental information for the consolidated

statements of cash flows and is presented below amounts in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

RSUs vested $10097 $3982 $4986

Options exercised 436 19

Shares purchased pursuant to ESPP 107 70 77
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Awards outstanding at December 31 2010 have the following total intrinsic value and weighted average

remaining contractual terms

Weighted average

Outstanding at remaining

December 31 Intrinsic value contractual

2010 iu thousands term in years

Options outstanding 6045793 1440 3.0

Options exercisable and outstanding 4237755 880 1.8

Restricted stock units outstanding 1377485 $11433 1.1

Options outstanding at December 31 2010 and expected to vest in the future based on the Companys
estimate of its pre-vesting forfeiture rate have an intrinsic value of $1.2 million and weighted average remaining

contractual term of 2.7 years RSUs expected to vest after December 31 2010 based on the Companys estimate

of its pre-vesting forfeiture rate have an intrinsic value of $8.4 million and weighted average remaining

contractual term of .0 years Cash generated from the exercise of stock options amounted to $2.2 million for the

year ended December 31 2010

Note Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has noncancellable operating leases for its corporate facilities The leases run through 2013

Rent expense under operating leases totaled $2.0 million $1.1 million and $1 .3 million for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Companys capital lease commitments are included in the Companys consolidated balance sheets The

Companys contractual commitments are as follows for the
years ending December 31 in thousands

2014 and

2011 2012 2013 thereafter Total

Operating lease commitments $2023 $1932 $383 $4338

Purchase commitments 2279 1026 493 3798

Capital lease commitments net of imputed interest and executory

costs 211 211

Total $4513 $2958 $876 $8347

As of December 31 2010 the Company has pledged $4.2 million as collateral for standby letters of credit

and bank guaranties for certain of its property leases which is included in other long-term assets

Litigation

On September 14 2010 the Company entered into settlement agreement with plaintiffs defendants and

certain third parties in the shareholder derivative actiun filed against current and furmet ufficers and directuss uf

the Company as well as nominal defendant InfoSpace by Anne Manos on December 17 2008 in the

Superior Court of the State of Washington in and for King County Court That settlement agreement is

further described in and attached as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 17 2010

On November 23 2010 the Court granted approval of that settlement agreement which became final with the

passing of the appeal deadline on December 23 2010 As the result of this settlement InfoSpace received gross

amount of $26.65 million as consideration for the dismissal of all claims in the Derivative Action This amount
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was provided to InfoSpace in the form of cash forgone contractual obligations of InfoSpace and surrendered

securities The net final value of this settlement was $19.0 million after fulfillment of the Companys obligation

to pay certain fees and expenses for attorneys and others retained by InfoSpace plaintiffs and defendants In

addition InfoSpace has agreed to undertake certain specified corporate governance reforms and to avoid in

connection with any future special stockholder dividends certain actions that were the subject of the Derivative

Action The settlement did not involve any admission of wrongdoing or liability and there was no adjudication

of the merits of the underlying claims

From time to time the Company is subject to various legal proceedings or claims that arise in the ordinary

course of business Although the Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters with certainty the

Companys management does not believe that the disposition of these ordinary course matters will have

material adverse effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

Note Income Taxes

Income tax expense from continuing operations consists of the following for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Current

U.S federal $7438 $2629 3159

State 258 20

Foreign 12 86

Total current expense benefit $7192 $2633 3265

Deferred

U.S federal 218 2814 $2667

Total deferred expense benefit 218 2814 2667

Income tax expense net $7410 181 598

The income tax expense from continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the

statutory federal income tax rate for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 as follows in

thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Income tax expense benefit at federal statutory rate of 35% $7390 2654 $5557

Foreign 12 86

State net of federal benefit 201 13

Nondeductible compensation 11 436

Foreign exchange gain 516
Change in liabilities for uncertain tax positions 566
Increase decrease in beginning of year valuation allowance balance 788 2680 5352

Other 101 202 268

Income tax expense net $7410 181 598
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The income tax expense from continuing operations reflects an increase in the valuation allowance during

the year ended December 31 2010 of $788000 while the consolidated balance sheets reflect decrease in the

valuation allowance of $6.0 million The decrease in the valuation allowance on the consolidated balance sheets

exceeded the change in the valuation allowance reflected in the income tax provision by $6.8 million This

difference is attributable to the release of the valuation allowance on the consolidated balance sheets for

decreases in deferred tax assets which do not affect income tax expense The Company released $6.7 million of

the valuation allowance upon utilization of equity based deferred tax assets used to reduce taxes payable The

Company also released $1.3 million of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets from the settlements of

compensation cost where the compensation cost was in excess of the tax benefit The Company recorded

$531000 of valuation allowance for the increase in the deferred tax assets arising from foreign operating losses

and $420000 of valuation allowance for the increase in the state income tax effect of the temporary differences

The tax effect of temporary differences and net operating loss carryforwards from continuing operations that

give rise to the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows in

thousands

December 31

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Current 1106 831

Non-current

Net operating loss carryforwards 284888 293655

Tax credit carryforwards 6685 6264

Depreciation and amortization 10291 9132

Stock-based compensation 8542 7966

Other net 1928 1571

Total non-current tax assets 312334 318588

Total gross deferred tax assets 313440 319419

Valuation allowance 313132 319140

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 308 279

Deferred tax liabilities

Current 308 279
Non-current

Depreciation and amortization 218

Total non current tax liabilities 218
_________

Total
gross

deferred tax liabilities 526 279

Net deferred tax liabilities 218

At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company provided valuation allowance against its net deferred tax

assets for which significant uncertainty exists regarding the ultimate realization The Company evaluates its

deferred tax assets for future realization and reduces it by valuation allowance to the extent that realization is

not more likely than not Many factors are considered when assessing the likelihood of future realization of

deferred tax assets including recent cumulative earnings experience by taxing jurisdiction expectations of future

taxable income the carryforward periods available for tax reporting purposes trends in the industry and the
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current macroeconomic environment and other relevant factors At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company
reassessed the realizability of its remaining net deferred tax assets and concluded that based on available

evidence that realizability was not more likely than not Accordingly the Company provided full valuation

allowance on its net deferred tax assets The net changes in the valuation allowance during the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 are shown below in thousands

Valuation allowance

2010 2009

Balance at beginning of year $319140 $321661

Net changes to deferred tax assets 6008 2521

Balance at end of year $313132 $319140

Net change during the year 6008 2521

As of December 31 2010 the Companys U.S federal net operating loss carryforward for income tax

purposes was $788.4 million which relates to tax deductions for stock-based compensation When the net

operating loss carryforwards related to excess stock-based compensation are recognized the income tax benefit

of those losses is accounted for as credit to stockholders equity on the consolidated balance sheets rather than

the Operations Statement

If not utilized the Companys federal net operating loss carryforwards will expire between 2020 and 2030

Additionally changes in ownership as defined by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code may limit the

amount of net operating loss carryforwards used in any one year

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows in thousands

Unrecognized
tax benefits

Balance at January 2008 and 2009 $18830
Gruss inercases fur tax positions of prior years

Gross decreases for tax positions of prior years

Gross increases for tax positions of current year

Gross decreases for tax positions of current year

Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations 566

Balance at December 31 2010 $18264

Total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the Companys effective tax rate if recognized

was $737000 and $1.3 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The remaining 17.5 million

and $17.5 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively if recognized would create deferred tax

asset subject to valuation allowance If the Company released the valuation allowance the amount would affect

the Companys effective tax rate The Company and certain of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S

federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions With few exceptions the Company is no longer

subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before

2007 although net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards from any year are subject to
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examination and adjustment for at least three years following the year in which they are fully utilized As of

December 31 2010 no significant adjustments have been proposed relative to the Companys tax positions

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in interest expense and

general and administrative expenses respectively During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company

reversed previously accrued interest expense related to the uncertain tax positions upon the expiration of the

statute of limitations on assessments The Company included the reversal of interest net of accrued interest on

other uncertain tax positions in the amount of $159000 During the year ended December 31 2009 the

Company accrued iaterest expense related to uncertain tax positions in the amount of $108000 As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had $93000 and $252000 of accrued interest related to uncertain

tax positions respectively which is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Note Business Combinations

Presented below is information regarding the Companys business combinations during the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 including information about the allocation of the purchase price from these

transactions

Make The Web Better

On April 2010 the Company purchased assets consisting of Web properties and licenses for content and

technology from Make The Web Better search distribution partner aad privately-held developer of online

products used on social networking sites for $13.0 million The purchase was intended to increase profitability

and increase the proportion of the search revenue generated through the Companys owned and operated

properties The purchase consideration included an initial cash payment of $8.0 million with the remaining

consideration payable in cash and contingent on future financial performance

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair

values at their date of acquisition as follows in thousands

License for use of developed core technology 235

Prepaid hosting services 115

Identifiable assets acquired 350

Purchase price

Cash paid 8000

Contingent consideration 5000

Purchase price $13000

Less identifiable assets acquired 350

Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired allocated to goodwill $12650

The technology license and prepaid hosting services have estimated useful lives of 33 months and

five months respectively with the license to be amortized proportionately over its life to the estimated total

revenue to be generated through the acquired technology and the prepaid hosting services to be amortized over its

life under the straight-line method The Company expects that goodwill and
any amount in excess of the original

$5.0 million contingent consideration will be deductible for tax purposes
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Since the acquisition date the Company has included in its consolidated results the financial results of the

operation of its acquired Make The Web Better assets which included $16.4 million of revenue and

contribution to Core segment income of $15.7 million The financial performance of the operation of the Make

The Web Better assets in the year ended December 31 2010 was greater than was expected when the assets were

acquired as consequence the Companys estimate of the fair value of the related contingent consideration

increased to $10.0 million and the Company recorded charge of $5.0 million to other loss income net in the

year ended December 31 2010

Mercantila

On May 10 2010 the Company acquired certain assets from Mercantila Inc an online retail company The

acquisition was intended to diversify the Companys business model arid expand its operations into the online

retail industry Since the acquisition date the Company has included in its consolidated results the financial

results of its acquired Mercantila Inc assets which included $32.5 million of revenue and contribution to

E-Commerce loss of $4.8 million which also comprise all of the results of the E-Commerce segment

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair

values at their date of acquisition as follows in thousands

Tangible assets acquired 2234

Liabilities assumed 8231

Identifiable net liabilities assumed 5997

Fair value adjustments to intangible assets

License for use of developed core technology 893

Internet domain names 452

Customer relationships 39

Fair value of net liabilities assumed 4613

Purchase price

Cash paid 7800

Plus identifiable net liabilities assumed 5997

Less fair value of intangible assets acquired 1384

Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired allocated to goodwill $12413

The Company expects that goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes

The customer relationships have estimated useful lives of 12 months and will be amortized over their lives

under the straight-line method The developed core technology has an estimated useful life of 24 months after

which the Company assumes that substantial modifications and enhancements would be required for the

technology to remain competitive The license will be amortized over its life proportionately to the estimated

total revenue to be generated through the acquired technology The Company has determined that the acquired

Internet domain names have indefinite lives and therefore these intangible assets will not be amortized to

expense unless determination is made in the future that the useful lives are definite

Direct transaction costs of approximately $337000 include estimated investment banking and legal fees

directly related to the acquisition and the Company recorded charge to general and administrative expenses in

the year ended December 31 2010
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INFOSPACE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinned

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

As of December 31 2010 substantially all costs for investment banking and legal fees have been paid

Pro Fontia Financial Information of Acquisitions

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations of

InfoSpace and of the assets acquired from Mercantila Inc on pro forma basis as though they had been

combined as of the beginning of each period presented This pro forma financial information is presented for

informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been

achieved had the acquisition occurred at the beginning of each period presented The unaudited pro forma

condensed combined statement of operations for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 combines the

historical results of operations of InfoSpace for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 and the historical

results of operations of the acquired Mercantila Inc assets for the period from January 2010 to May 10 2010

and for the year ended -December 31 2009

Make The Web Better was InfoSpaces distribution partner for all periods presented below The table below

does not reflect such acquisition on pro forma basis because combining Make The Web Betters historical

results of operations with InfoSpaces results of operations on pro forma basis would not materially change

InfoSpaces historical results of operations

The following amounts are in thousands except per share data

Years ended December 31

2010 2009

Revenue $260207 $239602

Net income 12009 3488

Basic and diluted income per share 0.33 0.10

There were no business combinations in the years ended December 31 2009 or 2008

Note 10 Segment Information

In May 2010 the Company changed its operational structure upon the acquisition of certain assets from

Mercantila Inc The Companys search services operations comprise its Core segment and the Companys

operation of the online retail business comprises its B-Commerce segment The Companys chief executive

officer is its chief operating decision maker and reviews financial information presented on disaggregated basis

This information is used for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance

The Company presents revenue and cost of sales for each of the two segments Core cost of sales primarily

consists of revenue sharing arrangements with the Companys distribution partners and usage-based content fees

E-Commerce cost of sales primarily consists of the purchase price of products sold by the Company to its

customers drop-ship and other shipping charges and payment processing fees for customer transactions

The Company does not allocate stock based compensation depreciation amortization of intangible assets

restructuring other net loss on investments net other income net income tax expense or results from

discontinued operations to the reportable segments The Company does not account for and does not report to

management its assets or capital expenditures by segment other than goodwill and intangible assets for

impairment analysis purposes
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Years Eaded December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Information on reportable segments currently presented to the Companys chief operating decision maker

and reconciliation to consolidated net income loss for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are

presented below in thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Core

Revenue $214343 $207646 $156727

Cost of sales 119880 126531 75969

Operating expences 62001 53679 55.504

Core income 32462 27436 25254

E-Commerce

Revenue 32492

Cost of sales 28578

Operating expenses 8734

Commerce loss 4820

Total

Total revenue 246835 207646 156727

Total cost of sales 148458 126531 75969

Total segment operating expenses 70735 53679 55504

Total segment income net 27642 27436 25254

Corporate

Stock-based compensation 14751 10568 14304

Depreciation 6635 7141 7335

Amortization of intangible assets 456 111

Restructuring 17

Other net 1897
Loss on investments net 4714 28520

Other income net 15313 2682 7149
Income tax expense 7410 181 598

Discontinued operations net of tax 2225

Net income loss 13703 7403 $18699

Geographic revenue information as determined by the location of the customer is presented below in

thousands

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

United States $241521 $204750 $152886

International 5314 2896 3841

Total $246835 $207646 $156727
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ITEM Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls ond Procedures

Our management evaluated with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial

Officer the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

Annual Report on Form 10-K Based on this evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial

Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31 2010 to

ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal executive

and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and that

such infnrmation is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities

and Exchange Commission rules and forms

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f Our internal control over financial reporting

is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Because

of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of the

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our management

concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2010 Deloitte

Touche LLP has audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2010 and its report is included below

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter

of 2010 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial

reporting
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Report nf Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

InfoSpace Inc

Bellevue Washington

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of InfoSpace Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys

management is responsible for niaintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over findncial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We

believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

conipanys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of

the companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the criteria established in Internal Control integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statenients as of and for the year ended December 31 2010 of the

Company and our report dated March 11 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial

statements

Is DELOITTE TOU2HE LLP

Seattle Washington

March 112011
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PART III

As permitted by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission we have omitted certain information

from Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K We intend to file definitive Proxy Statement with the

Securities and Fxchange Commission
relating to our annual

meeting
of stockholders not later than 120 days after

the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and such information is incorporated by

reference herein

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information concerning our directors required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy

Statement under the heading Proposal OneElection of Directors

Certain information regarding our executive officers is included in Part Item of this report under the

caption Executive Officers of the Registrant and is incorporated by reference into this Item

Other information concerning our officers and directors required by this Item is incorporated by reference to

our Proxy Statement under the heading Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Beneficial

Ownership

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement under the

headings Compensation Committee Report Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Compensation of Named Executive Officers

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement under the

headings Beneficial Ownership and Equity Compensation Plans

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement under the

headings Infuimatioji Regai ding the Board of Directors and Audit Committee Report

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement under the

headings Audit Committee Report
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PART IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements at Item on page 50 of this report

Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules required by Item l5a2 have been omitted because they are not

applicable or the required information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto

Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of

this report

Exhibits

See Item 15 above

Financial Statements and Schedules

See Item 15 above
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

INFOSPACE INC

By WILLIAM RUCKELSHAUS

William Ruckelshaus

President and Acting Chief Executive Officer

Date March 11 2011

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below

constitutes and appoints David Binder and Alesia Pinney jointly and severally his or her attorneys-in-fact

each with the power of substitution for him or her in any and all capacities to execute any amendments to this

Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith

with the Securities and Exchange Commission hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said

attorneys-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is WILLIAM RUCKELSHAUS President Acting Chief Executive March 11 2011

William Ruckelshaus Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is DAVID BINDER Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer March 11 2011

David Binder Principal Financial Officer

Is ERIC EMANS Chief Accounting Officer March 11 2011

Eric Emans Principal Accounting Officer

Is JOHN CUNNINGHAM IV Chairman and Director March 11 2011

John Cunningham IV

Is JULES HAIMOVITZ Director March 11 2011

Jules Haimovitz

Is RICHARD HEARNEY Director March 11 2011

Richard Hearney

Is ELIZABETH HUEBNER Director March 11 2011

Elizabeth Huebner

Is LEwIs TAFFER Director March 11 2011

Lewis Taffer

Director

James Voelker
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Exhibit Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Date of First Filing Number Herewith

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-K March 27

Incorporation 2003

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Amended 8-K June 2009 3.1

and Restated Certificate of

Incorporation

3.3 Restated Bylaws as amended November 20 3.2

2007

4.1 Form of Certificate of the Powers 5-1 No 333-86313 September 4.1

Designations Preferences and Rights of as amended 1999

Series Preferred Stock

4.2 Certificate of the Powers Designations S-i No 333 58048 March 30 4.2

Preferences and Rights of Series as amended 2001

Preferred Stock

4.3 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement July 24 4.4

dated as of July 19 2002 between the 2002

Company and Mellon Investor Services

LLC including the Form of Certificate

of the Powers Designations Preferences

and Rights of Series Participating

Preferred Stock the form of Rights

Certificate and the Summary of Rights

attached thereto as Exhibits and

respectively

10.1 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 5-1 No 333 62323 August 27 10.3

as amended 1998

10.2 InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 Flexible 8-K December11 10.1

Stock Incentive Plan 2006

10.3 Form of InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 No 333-169691 September 30 4.5

Flexible Stock Incentive Plan 2010

Nonqualified Stock Option Letter

Agreement for Nonemployee Directors

10.4 Form of InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 S-8 No 333-169691 September 30 4.6

Flexible Stock Incentive Plan 2010

Nonqualified Stock Option Letter

Agreement for Vice Presidents and

Above

10.5 Form of InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 S-8 No 333 169691 September 30 4.8

Flexible Stock Incentive Plan Notice of 2010

Grant of Restricted Stock Units and

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for

Nonemployee Directors

10.6 Form of InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 No 333-169691 September 30 4.9

Flexible Stock Incentive Plan Notice of 2010

Grant of Restricted Stock Units and

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for

Vice Presidents and Above
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Exhibit Exhibit Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Date of First Filing Number Herewith

10.7 InfoSpace Inc Amended and Restated 10-Q August 10.6

2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan 2007

10.8 Form of Amended and Restated 2001 10-Q August 10.33

Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan Notice 2007

of Grant of Restricted Stock Units and

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

10.9 InfoSpace Inc Switchboard S-8 333-116641 June 18 2004 4.1

Incorporated Stock Incentive Plan

10.10 Office Lease Agreement dated 10 March 30 10.17

March 10 2000 between InfoSpace 2000

Inc and Three Bellevue Center LLC for

office space located at

601 108th Avenue N.E Bellevue

Washington

10.11 Sixth Amendment to Office Lease 8-K September 29 10.28

Agreement dated September 26 2005 2005

between InfoSpace Inc and Three

Bellevue Center LLC

10.12 Ninth Amendment to Office Lease 8-K January 10.1

Agreement effective as of 2008

December 21 2007 between InfoSpace

Inc and WA Three Bellevue Center

LLC

10.13 Eleventh Amendment to Office Lease 10 February 26 10.15

Agreement effective as of 2010

April 23 2009 between InfoSpace Inc

and WA Three Bellevue Center LLC

10.14 Form of Indemnification Agreement 10 February 26 10.18

between the registrant and each of its 2010

directors and executive officers

10.15 2009 InfoSpace Executive Bonus Plan 8-K May 15 2009 10.1

10.16 2010 InfoSpace Executive Bonus Plan 8-K March 23 10.1

2010

10.17 Employment Agreement effective as of lO-Q November 10 10.1

October 2008 between InfoSpace Inc 2008

and Michael Glover

10.18 Employment Agreement amended and 10-Q November 10 10.3

restated effective as of 2008

October 28 2008 between InfoSpace

Inc and David Binder
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Exhibit Exhibit Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Date of First Filing Number Herewith

10.19 Employment Agreement amended and 10-Q November 10 10.4

restated effective as of 2008

October 28 2008 between InfoSpace

Inc and Eric Emans

10.20 Amended and Restated Employment 10 November 10 10.8

Agreement amended and restated as of 2008

November 2008 between InfoSpace

Inc and James Voelker

10.2 Employment Agreement effective as of 8-K February 10.1

February 2009 between InfoSpace 2009

Inc and William Lansing

10.22 Separation Agreement and General 8-K November 12 10.1

Release of All Claims dated 2010

November 112010

10.23 Employment Agreement effective as of 10 August 10.2

July 20 2009 between InfoSpace Inc 2009

and Alesia Pinney

10.24 Employment Agreement effective as of

November 11 2010 between InfoSpace

Inc and William Ruckelshaus

10.25t Google Services Agreement and Order 10-K March 10.36

Form by and between Google Inc and 2009

InfoSpace Sales LLC dated

October 2005

10.26t Amended and Restated Google Services 10-K March 10.37

Agreement by and between Google Inc 2009

and InfoSpace Sales LLC dated

October 2005

10.27t Amendment Number One to Amended 10-K March 10.38

and Restated Google Inc Services 2009

Agreement and Order Form dated

November 2006 by and between

Google Inc and InfoSpace Sales LLC

10.28t Amendment Number Two to Amended 10-K March 10.39

and Restated Google Inc Services 2009

Agreement and Order Form dated

February 2008 by and between

Google Inc and InfoSpace Sales LLC

10.29t Amendment Number Four to Amended 10 March 10.40

and Restated Google Inc Services 2009

Agreement and Order Form dated

December 2008 by and between

Google Inc and InfoSpace Sales LLC

l0.30t Amendment Number Five to Amended 10-Q May 2010 10.4

and Restated Google Inc Services

Agreement and Order Form dated

February 2010 by and between

Google Inc and InfoSpace Sales LLC
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Exhibit Exhibit Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Date of First Filing Number Herewith

10.3 it Amendment Number Six to Amended 10-Q November 10.1

and Restated Google Inc Services 2010

Agreement and Order Form dated

August 2010 by and between Google

Inc and InfoSpace Sales LLC

10.32t Yahoo Search Marketing Yahoo 10-K March 10.41

Publisher Network Service 2009

Order 1-9935871 dated November 26

2007 by and among Overture Services

Inc Overture Search Services Ireland

Limited InfoSpace Sales LLC
InfoSpace Europe Limited and

InfoSpace Inc as guarantor

10.33t Amendment to Yahoo Search 10-K March 10.42

MarketingYahoo Publisher Network 2009

Service Order 9935871 dated

January 31 2008 by and among
Overture Services Inc. Overture Search

Services Ireland Limited InfoSpace

Sales LLC InfoSpace Europe Limited

and InfoSpace Inc as guarantor

10.34t Amendment to Yahoo Search 10-K March 10.43

MarketingYahoo Publisher Network 2009

Service Order 9935871 dated

November 2008 by and among

Yahoo Inc as successor-in interest to

Overture Services Inc Overture

Search Services Ireland Limited

InfoSpace Sales LLC InfoSpace Europe

Limited and InfoSpace Inc as

guarantor

10.35 Settlement Agreement dated 8-K September 17 99.1

September 14 2010 2010

14.1 InfoSpace Inc Code of Business 10-Q November 14.1

Conduct and Ethics as amended on 2010

November 2010

21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche LLP

Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

24.1 Power of Attorney contained on the

signature page hereto

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive

Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

89



Exhibit Exhibit Filed

Number Exhibit Description Form Date of First Filing Number Herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial

Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive

Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial

Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Confidential treatment has been requested for portions of this exhibit These portions have been omitted

from the Annual Report on Form 10 and submitted separately to the Securities and Exchange

Commission
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infospace
INFOSPACE INC

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To be held on June 2011

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS

Notice is hereby giveo that the annual meeting of stockholders of InloSpace Inc Delaware corporation

will bc held on June 2011 at 200 p.m. local time at the principal executive offices of InfoSpace Inc located

at 601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200 Bellevue Washington 98004 for the following purposes

To elect the two Class III dircctors nominated by thc Board of Dircctors of the Company to serve for

their ensuing class term and until theii successors are duly elected

To ratify the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting

firm for InfoS
pace

for 2011

To conduct an advisory vote on the approval of the compensation of the Companys Named Executive

Officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement

To conduct an advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory otes on the approval of the

compensation of the Companys Named Executi.e Oflicers and

To transact such other business as may propeily come before the nieeting or any adjournment or

postponement thereof

The foregoing itenis of business are more fully described the Proxy Statement accompanying this notice

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on April 2011 as the record date for the

determination of stockholders entitled to notice of this meeting and the right to vote

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person However to save us the
expense

of

additional solicitation you are urged to vote online by telephone or by signing dating and returning the

enclosed proxy card or voting instruction card as promptly as possible For specific instructions iegarding voting

online by telephone or by mail please see the enclosed proxy card or voting instruction card Any stockholder

attending the meeting niay vote in
person even if the stockholder has previously returned proxy Please see

Information Concerning Proxy Solicitation and Voting Questions and Answers in the Proxy Statement for

more details on voting in person at the meeting

By Order of the Board of Directors

Alesia Pinney

General Caunsel and Secretary

Bellevue Washington

May 2011

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THIS MEETING
PLEASE VOTE ONLINE BY TELEPHONE OR SIGN DATE AND RETURN THE

ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE OR VOTE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS SET FORTH ON THE ENCLOSED VOTING INSTRUCTION CARD



INFORMATION CONCERNING PROXY SOLICITATION AND VOTING

PROPOSAL ONE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

Director Nominees

Continuing Directors

Board of Directors and Committee Information 10

Director Nomination Process 14

Director Compensation 16

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP 18

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance 18

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 19

Ownership Limitation 20

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 22

Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2010 and 2009 23

Transactions with Related Persons 24

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT 26

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 26

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 27

COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 41

Summary Compensation Table 41

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2010 43

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31 2010 44

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2010 45

Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment 45

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS 51

PROPOSAL TWO APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING

FIRM 52

PROPOSAL THREE ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 53

PROPOSAL FOUR FREQUENCY OF FUTURE VOTES ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 54

TRANSACTION OF OTHER BUSINESS 54

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS 54

ANNUAL REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS 55



INFOSPACE INC

PROXY STATEMENT FOR
2011 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

INFORMATION CONCERNING PROXY SOLICITATION AND VOTING

Our Board of Directors is soliciting proxies for the 2011 annual nieeting of stockholders and any

adjournment or postponement of such meeting This Proxy Statement contains important information for you to

consider when deciding how to vote on the niatters brought before the meeting Please read it carefully

The annual meeting will be held on June 2011 at 200 p.m. local time at our principal executive offices

located at 601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200 Bellevue Washington 98004 All proxies are solicited for the

purposes
set forth herein and in the notice of annual meeting of stockholders that accompanies this Proxy

Statement Voting materials which include the Proxy Statement form of proxy and Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 will be sent or otherwise distributed to stockholders of record on or

about May 22011

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for Stockholders Meeting to be Held on

June 82011

This Proxy Statement and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 are also

available at www.proxyvote.com

Stockholders of record defined below and beneficial owners may access the form of proxy on the Internet

by following the instructions on the
proxy

card or voting instruction card Please note that you will not be

required to provide any personal information nther than the identificatian number pravided the prnxy card nr

voting instruction card to execute proxy

This solicitation of proxies is made on behalf of InfoSpace and we will pay for all related costs In addition

we will reimbuise brokerage firms and other persons representing beneficial owners of shares for their expenses

in forwarding solicitation material to such beneficial owners Proxies may also be solicited by certain of our

directors officers and regular employees without additional compensation personally or by telephone

We do not expect any matters not listed in the Proxy Statement to come before the annual meeting For

stockholders of record if any other matter is presented your signed proxy card or submission of your proxy by

telephone or via the Internet gives the individuals named as proxy holders the authority to vote your shares to the

extent authuliLed by Rule 14a-4c undei the Securities Exchange Act uf 1934 us amended the Exchange

Act If any other matters come before the meeting it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying

proxy
card to vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend

Important Note Regarding Discretionary Voting by Brokers

If you hold your shares in brokerage or bank account in your brokers or banks name this is called

Street Name it is critical that you cast your vote if you want it to count in the election of directors

Proposal One in the advisory vote on the approval of the compensation of the officers discussed in the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Compensation of Named Executive Officers sections

below the Named Executive Qfficers Proposal Three or in the advisory vote on the frequency of

future advisory votes on the approval of the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers

Proposal Four Due to regulatory changes in recent years no votes will be cast on your behalf in the election

of directors on the approval of named executive officer compensation or on the frequency of future named

executive officer compensation votes if you hold your shares in Street Name and you do not instruct your bank or

broker how to vote In such case your shares will be considered broker non-votes with regard to such

proposals because the broker or bank will not have discretionary authority to vote such shares



Your broker or bank will however continue to have discretion to vote an uninstructed shares on the

ratification of the appointment of the Companys independent registered public accounting firm Proposal Two

Questions and Answers

Who is entitled to vote

All stockholdcrs who owoed InfoSpace common stock at the close of business on the record date of

April II 2011 are entitled to receive notice of the annual meeting and to vote the shares they own as of the

record date Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on all matters

properly brought before the meeting to be voted on

36835133 shares of our common stock were outstanding and entitled to vote on April 11 2011 Shares of

our common stock were held of record by 753 stockholders on the record date If your shares are registered

directly in your name with the Companys transfer agent BNY Mellon Shareowner Services you are

considered the stockholder of record with iespect to those shares The number of holders of record does not

include beneficial owners of our common stock who hold their shares through brokers banks or other

holders of record

How many votes do you need at the meeting to transact business

majority of InfoSpaces outstanding shares as of the record date must be present at the meeting in order to

hold the meeting and conduct business This is called quorum Shares that are voted on any matter or voted

abstain as well as broker non-votes defined bclow will be considered present at the meeting for

purposes of establishing quorum

Your shares are counted as present at the meeting if you are present and vote in person at the meeting or if

you have properly submitted proxy card or voting instruction card or voted by telephone or via the

Internet

What proposals will be voted on at the meeting

There are four proposals scheduled to be voted on at the meeting

Proposal One Election of the two Class III directors nominated by the Board of Directors of the

Company to serve for their ensuing class term and until their successors are duly elected

Proposal Two Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP as the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm for 2011

Proposal Three Approval on an advisory basis of the compensation of the Companys Named

Executive Officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement and

Proposal Four Approval on an advisory basis of the frequency of future advisory stockholder votes

on the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers

What are InfoSpaces voting recommendations

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote your shares FOR each nominee to the Board of

Directors listed in this Proxy Statement FOR the ratification of Deloitte Touche LLP as InfoSpaces

independent registered public accounting firm FOR the approval of the compensation of the Companys

Named Executive Officers as disclosed in this Proxy Statement and frequency of EVERY ONE YEAR
for future advisory stockholder votes on the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers

What is the voting requirement to approve each of the proposals

For the election of directors the two Class III nominees of the Board of Directors of the Company who

receive the greatest number of votes from shares present and entitled to vote at the meeting will be elected

Withheld votes and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote



The proposed ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP as our independent registered public

accounting firm requires the affirmative FOR vote of majority of the shares cast at the meeting and

entitled to vote with respect to such proposal in order for it to be approved Abstentions will have no effect

on the outcome of the vote Although stockholder approval of such appointment is not required by law and

is not binding on the Company the Audit Committee will take your vote on this proposal into consideration

when appointing our independent registered public accounting firm in the future Even if you ratify the

appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP the Audit Committee may in its sole discretion terminate such

engagement and direct the appointment of another independent registered public accounting firm at any time

during the year although it has no current intention to do so

The approval on an advisory basis of the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers as

disclosed in this Proxy Statement requires the affirmative FOR vote of majority of the shares cast at the

meeting and entitled to vote with respect to such proposal in order for it to be approved Abstentions and

broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote Although stockholder approval of

compensation is not binding on the Company the Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee

expect to consider the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions to the

extent they can determine the cause or causes of any significant negative voting results

For the advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on the approval of the compensation of the

Companys Named Executive Officers the frequency approved by the stockholders will be the choice i.e

EVERY ONE YEAR EVERY TWO YEARS or EVERY THREE YEARS that receives the greatest

number of votes Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote Although

the frequency approved by the stockholders is not binding on the Company the Board and the

Compensation Committee expect to consider the outcome of the vote when considering the frequency of

future advisory votes on Named Executive Officer compensation

What if do not vote for some of the items listed on my proxy card or voting instruction card

In the election of the directors Proposal One you may vote FOR each of the nominees or your vote may
be WITHHELD with respect to any nominee You may vote FOR AGAINST or ABSTAIN on the

ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP as InfoSpaces independent registered public

accounting firm You may vote FOR AGAINST or ABSTAIN on the approval of the compensation

of the Companys Named Executive Officers You may vote EVERY ONE YEAR EVERY TWO
YEARS EVERY THREE YEARS or ABSTAIN on the frequency of future advisory votes on the

approval of the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers If you provide specific voting

instructions your shares will be voted as you have instructed

If you are stockholder of record execute the proxy card and do not provide voting instructions on certain

matters your shares will be voted in accordance with the Boards recommendations If you hold your shares

in street name and do not provide voting instructions no vote will be recorded for you in the election of

directors Proposal One in the advisory vote on the approval of the compensation of the Companys

Named Executive Officers Proposal Three or in the advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory

votes on the approval of the compensation of the Companys Named Executive Officers Proposal Four

How may vote my shares in person at the meeting

Shares held directly in your name as the stockholder of record may be voted in person at the meeting If you

hold your shares through bank broker or other holder of record and you wish to vote at the meeting you

must present legal proxy from your broker or other holder of record in order to vote at the meeting If you

choose to attend the meeting please bring proof of identification for entrance to the meeting If you hold

your shares through bank broker or other holder of record please also bring your proof of ownership

such as brokerage statement Even if you currently plan to attend the annual meeting we recommend that

you submit your proxy card or voting instruction card as described above so that your vote will be counted if

you later decide not to attend the meeting



How can vote my shares without attending the meeting

Whether you hold shares directly as stockholder of record or beneficially through broker bank or other

nominee you may vote without attending the meeting You may vote by granting proxy or for shares held

through broker hank or other nominee by submitting voting instructions to your broker bank or other

nominee In most cases you will be able to do this by telephone via the Internet or by mail For

stockholders of record please refer to the summary instructions included on your proxy card For shares

held through broker bank or other nominee please refer to the voting instruction card that will be

provided by your broker bank or other nominee

If your
shares are registered under different names or if they are in more than one account you may receive

more than one proxy card or voting instruction card Please follow the instructions on each proxy card or

voting instruction card to ensure that all of
your shares are represented at the meeting Please sign each

proxy
card exactly as your name or names appear on the proxy card For joint accounts each owner should

sign the
proxy

card When signing as executor administrator attorney trustee or guardian etc please print

your
full title on the

proxy
card

BY TELEPHONE OR THE INTERNET If you have telephone or Internet access you may submit your

vote by following the instructions on the proxy card or voting instruction card

BY MAIL You may submit your proxy by mail by signing your proxy card or for shares held through

broker bank or other nominee by following the voting instruction card included by your broker bank or

other nominee and mailing it in the enclosed postage paid envelope

How can change my vote

You may change your vote at any
time before the final vote at the meeting

If you are stockholder of record you may change your vote by signing and submitting new proxy card

with later date voting by telephone or via the Internet as instructed above only your latest telephone or

Internet proxy is counted or by attending the meeting and voting in person as described above Attending

the meeting will not revoke youi proxy unless you specifically request it

If you hold your shares through broker bank or other nominee you should contact your broker bank or

other nominee prior to the time such voting instructions are exercised

Where can find the voting results of the meeting

The preliminary voting results will be announced at the meeting The final results will be published in

Current Report on Form within four business days of the end of the meeting which will be filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission and will also be available at www.infospaceinc.com If final

results are not available within four business days of the end of the meeting preliminary results will be

published in Current Report on Form 8-K at that time and the final results will be published in an

amended Current Report on Form KIA when they are available

Is list of registered stockholders available

The Companys list of stockholders as of April II 2011 will be available for inspection for 10 days prior to

the 2011 annual meeting and at the annual nieeting for any purpose reasonably relevant to the meeting If

you want to inspect the stockholder list please call the office of the General Counsel at 425 201-6100 to

schedule an appointment

Householding of Proxy Materials

We have adopted procedure approved by the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission called

householding Under this procedure stockholders of record who have the same address and last name and who

do not participate in electronic delivery of
proxy

materials will receive only one set of our proxy materials



unless one or more of these stockholders notifies us that they wish to continue receiving individual copies We

believe this will provide greater convenience for our stockholders as well as cost savings for us by reducing the

number of duplicate documents that are mailed

Stockholders who participate in householding will continue to receie separate proxy
cards Householding

will not in any way affect your rights as stockholder

If you are eligible for householding but you and other stockholders of record with whom you share an

address currently receive multiple copies of our proxy materials or if you hold stock in more than one account

and in either case you wish to receive only single copy of each of these documents for your household please

contact Broadridge either by calling toll-free 800 542-1061 or by writing to Broadridge Financial Solutions

Inc Householding Department 51 Mercedes Way Edgewood New York 11717

If you participate in householding and wish to receive separate copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2010 or this Proxy Statement or if you do not wish to participate in

householding and prefer to receive separate copies of these documents in the future please contact Broadridge as

indicated above

Beneficial stockholders can request information about householding from their banks brokers or other

holders of record



PROPOSAL ONE

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

The Board of Directors has set the size of the Board at nine members with three members in each class

serving staggered three-year terms director serves in office until his or her respective successor is duly elected

and qualified unless the director resigns or by reason of death or other cause is unable to serve in the capacity of

director There are currently eight members with two members in Class III leaving one vacancy The Board is

currently in the process of seeking stockholder nominee to fill this vacancy in accordance with procedures set

forth in the Director Nomination Policy and Corporate Governance Guidelines which are available on our

corporate website at www.infospaceinc.com If director resigns before the end of his or her term the Board of

Directors may appoint director to fill the remainder of that term or leave the position vacant Stockholder

election of directors niay only take place at the annual meeting at which the three-year term of that director

would expire or at special meeting
of stockholders called for such purpose

Nominees for Directors

Two Class III directors are to be elected at the annual meeting for three-year terms ending in 2014 The

Board of Directors has nominated Jules Haimovitz and Elizabeth Huebner for re-election as Class III directors

The Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that Mr Haimovitz and Ms Huebner are independent

directors as defined in the NASDAQ rules For further information on the director nominees see Information

Regarding the Board of Directors and Committees below For further information on the process of director

nominations and criteria for selection of director nominees see Director Nomination Process below

Unless otherwise instructed the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them FOR the two

nominees listed in this Proxy Statement Each of the director nominees have consented to be named in this Proxy

Statement and agreed to continue to serve as director if elected by stockholders In the event that any of these

nominees to the Board of Directors is unable or declines to serve as director at the time of the annual meeting

the proxies will be voted for nominee who may be designated by the present Board of Directors to fill the

vacancy It is not expected that any of the nominees will be unable or will decline to serve as director

Alternatively the Board of Directors may reduce the size of the Board of Directors or maintain such vacancy

Required Vote Election of Directors

It quorum is present the two Class Ill nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected to

the Board of Directors Votes withheld from any nominee and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of

determining the presence or absence of quorum but will not otherwise have an effect on the outcome of the

vote Proxies cannot be voted for greater number of persons than the number of nominees named in this proxy

statement and on the
proxy card or the voting instruction card

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE NOMINEES
NAMED HEREIN



INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

The Director Nominees and Continuing Directors sections below set forth the business experience

during at least the past five years for each nominee and each of the directors whose term of office will continue

after the 2011 annual nieeting of stockholders In addition these sections include brief discussion of the

specific experience qualifications attributes and skills that led to the conclusion that each of the directors and

nominees should continue to serve on the Board of Directors at this time The Board of Directors nominates

candidates for election after receiving recommendations from the Nominating and Governance Committee

which bases its recommendations on the criteria set forth in our Director Nomination Policy as described below

under Director Nomination Process The Board of Directors believes that thc directors and nominces have an

appropriate balance of knowledge experience attributes skills and expertise as whole to ensure the Board of

Directors appropriately satisfies its oversight responsibilities and acts in the best interests of stockholders

Director Nominees

Class III Terms expiring in 2011

The names of our Class III directors whose terms expire in 2011 and ccrtain information about them are sct

forth below

Director

Name of Director Age Positions with InfoSpace Since

Jules Haimoviti 60 Director 2005

Elizabeth Huebner 53 Director 2009

Jules Hainzovitz has served as director of InfoSpace since Octobei 2005 Since July 2007 lie has seivcd as

President of Haimovitz Consulting media consulting firm From July 2002 to July 2007 Mr Haimovitz served

as Vice Chairman and Managing Partner of Dick Clark Productions Inc producer of programming for

television cable networks and syndicators From June 1999 to July 2004 Mr lIaimo its sered in

various capacities at Metro Goldwyn Mayer Inc including President of MOM Networks Inc Executive

Consultant to the CEO and Chair of the Library Task Force Mr Haimovitzs career has also included

experience as director and CEO of VJN Inc executive and director at Spelling Entertainment Inc executive

at King World Productions and Viacom Inc and director of Orion Pictures Corporation and Onstage

Entertainment Mr Hainiovitz served as director of Imclone Inc from May 2007 to November 2008 when the

company was acquired As director of Imclone Mr Haimovitz served as Chair of the Audit Committee and

Chair of the special committee formed to oversee the sale of Imclone Mr Haimovitz is currently director nf

Blockbuster Inc where he has served since May 2006

Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Haimovitz has strong background in the management of

publicly traded companies both as an executive and director He also has extensive experience in mergers and

acquisitions of both public and private companies In addition the Board of Directors has determined that he is

qualified as an Audit Committee Financial Expert under the SECs rules and that expertise assists the Board in

complying with its Audit Committee membership requirements and also enables him to provide significant

insight on public accounting and financial statement matters The Board believes that Mr Haimovitzs extensive

management and board experience knowledge of and experience with mergers and acquisitions and financial

expertise provides insight and guidance that assists the Board in its oversight and strategy obligations

Elizabeth Huebuer has served as director of InfoSpace since May 2009 Ms Huebner retired from

26 year career in the finance sector in 2006 Prior to retiring Ms Huebner was Chief Financial Officer from

2000 to 2006 at Getty Images Inc provider of visual content and rights services Prior to her service as Chief

Financial Officer of Getty Images Ms Huebner was Chief Financial Officer of Primus Knowledge Solutions

Inc



Relevant Qualifications and Experience Ms Huebner has significant experience as an executive in the

technology industry and very strong background in finance The Board of Directors has determined that she is

qualified as an Audit Committee Financial Expert under the SECs rules and that expertise assists the Board in

complying with its Audit Committee membership requirements and also enables her to provide significant insight

on public accounting and financial statcinent mattcrs The Buard believes that Ms Huehuers experience in

management and finance provides insight and guidance that assists the Board in its oversight financial review

and risk management obligations

Continuing Directors

Class Terms expiring in 2012

The names of our Class directors whose terms expire in 2012 and certain information about them are set

forth below

Director

Name of Director Age Positions with InfoSpace Since

John Cunningham IV 53 Chairman 1998

Lewis Taffer 63 Director 2001

William Ruckelshaus 46 President and Chief Executive Officer 2007

Jo/ut Cunniagha in IV has served as director of InfoSpace since July 1998 and as the Chairman of the

Board of Directors since January 2011 Mr Cunningham also served as Lead Independent Director of

InfoSpace from February 2010 through December 2010 Mr Cunningham has been general partner of Clear

Fir Partners L.P. venture capital investment partnership since February 1998 Previously he served as Chief

Executive Officer of RealCom Office Communications Inc national telecom serx ices company From

July 2006 to June 2008 he served as board member of Citel Technologies Inc telecommunications

company and also served as its non executive Chairman from January 2004 to July 2006 Currently

Mr Cunningham serves as board member of Audience Science Inc and as an advisor to Petra Growth Fund 11

and to Qliance Inc

Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Cunningham has extensive experience in and significant

knowledge of the technology industry from his work with various technology companies as an executive

investor advisor and director Mr Cunninghani also has significant experience with InfoSpace gained through

13 years as director The Board believes that Mr Cunninghams extensive experience as venture capitalist in

multiple industries as an executive and as board member and advisor to public and private companies and

non profit organizations provides insight and guidance that assists the Board in its oversight obligations and

niakes him valued advisor to the Boatd and management

Lewis Taffer has served as director of InfoSpace since June 2001 Mr Taffer is Chief Marketing

Officer of iGPS Company LLC an operator of pallet rental service that provides all plastic pallets with

embedded RFID tags Prior to joining iGPS Taffer was an operating advisor to Pegasus Capital Advisors New

York based private equity fund The bulk of Mr Taffer career 1979 2001 was spent at American Express

Company where he headed the American Express Gold Card launched the Membership Rewards program and

developed the ShopAmex online commerce platform He has also served as Executive Vice President of America

Online Inc and as an independent consultant specializing in marketing business development and strategic

partnerships

Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Taffer has extensive experience in advertising direct

marketing and online commerce developed as an executive of and consultant to various technology companies

Mr Taffer also has significant familiarity with InfoSpace gained through 10 years as director The Board

believes that Mr Taffer experience with marketing and development of online consumer services provides

valuable knowledge and insight relevant to the Companys business and that his experience as an executive and

board member allows him to contribute to the Boards oversight role



William Ruckels/zaus has served as director of InfoS pace since May 2007 Mr Ruckelshaus has also

served as President and Chief Executive Officer of InfoSpace since November 11 2010 Prior to his appointment

as President and Chief Executive Officer of InfoSpace Mr Ruckeishaus served as Chief Financial Officer of

AudienceScience Inc formerly known as RevenueScience Inc digital advertising technology and services

company from May 2006 to November 2010 Mr Ruckelshaus also served as Chief Operating Officer of

AudienceScience for two years From July 2002 to April 2006 he served as Senior Vice President Corporate

Development at Expedia Inc an online travel agency where he oversaw Expedias mergers and acquisitions

and led the corporate strategic planning effort

Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Ruckelshaus has relevant experience as an executive in the

technology industry and strong background in finance strategy and mergers and acquisitions Mr Ruckelshaus

also has significant familiarity with InfoSpace as the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer His

day-to day leadership of the Company gives him critical insights into the Companys operations strategy and

competition and allows him to facilitate the Boards ability to perform its critical oversight function The Board

believes that Mr Ruckeishauss experience as an executive and director provides him with insight into the

Boards oversight role and that as the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer Mr Ruckelshaus plays

an important role in the Boards processes

Class II Terms expiring in 2013

The names of the nominees of the Board of Directors and certain information about them are set forth

below

Director

Name of Director Age Positions with InfoSpace Since

Richard Hearney 71 Director 2001

Steven Hooper 58 Director 2011

James Voelker 60 Director 2002

RichardD Hearney has served as director of InfoSpace since September 2001 General Hearney is

retired United States Marine Corps four-star general who served as the Assistant Commandant of the United

States Marine Corps from 1994 to 1996 In 2002 General Hearney founded RDM Strategies Inc and he

currently serves on its board of advisors General Hearney served as President and Chief Executive Officer of

Business Executives for National Security an organization focusing on national security policy from

December 2000 to April 2002 From 1996 to 1999 General Hearney was an executive with McDonnell Douglas

Corporation and then its acquirer the Boeing Company

Relevant Qualifications and Experience General Hearney has extensive experience in leadership and

management gained through his military service and his subsequent business ventures as well as significant

familiarity with InfoSpace as director of the Company for the past 10 years The Board believes that

General Hearneys extensive leadership and management experience both in the military and in business makes

him valuable contributor to the Board and provides him with insight and knowledge relevant to the Boards

oversight obligations

Steven Hooper was appointed to the Board of Directors of InfoSpace on April II 2011 Mr Hooper is

founding partner of Ignition Partners venture capital firm where he has invested in telecommunications and

wireless companies since Ignitions founding in March 2000 From 1099 to 2000 Mr Hooper served as

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Nextlink Commuaications Inc From 1998 to 1999 Mr Hooper served

as Chief Executive Officer of Teledesic LLC From 1994 to 1997 Mr Hooper served as CEO of ATT Wireless

Services Inc Prior to joining ATT Wireless Mr Hooper was an executive with McCaw Cellular

Communications Inc where he among other roles served as CEO for variety of McCaw-affiliated companies

In addition Mr Hooper represents Ignition Partners as director on the boards of number of privately-held

companies in which Ignition has invested and served as trustee of Seattle University from 1995 to 2009



Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Hooper has extensive experience as business leader in the

technology industry He has served in management and as director for numerous technology companies and

brings to the InfoSpace Board of Directors extensive experience knowledge and connections that the Board

believes will provide valuable assistance to the Company as it pursues strategic opportunities in the technology

industry

James Voelker has served as director since July 2002 He also served as our Chairman of the Board

from December 2002 through December 31 2010 as Chief Executive Officer from December 2002 to

February 2009 and as President from December 2002 to April 2003 and from December 2005 to February 2009

Mr Voelker previously served as President and director of NEXTLINK Communications Inc now XO
Communications Inc broadband communications company and as director of Comdisco Electronics

Group Inc and 36oNetworks Inc

Relevant Qualifications and Experience Mr Voelker has extensive experience and expertise in

management board service and the technology industry as an executive and director as well as significant

familiarity with InfoSpace as the Companys former President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman and as

director for the past nine years The Board believes that Mr Voelkers extensive experience as an executive and

director including his experience as former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Company provides

insight and guidance that assists the Board in its oversight and strategy roles

Board of Directors and Committee Information

The Board of Directors has general oversight responsibility for the Companys affairs and in exercising its

fiduciary duties the Board represents and acts on behalf of the stockholders Although the Board does not have

responsibility for the Companys day-to-day management it stays regularly informed about its business and

provides oversight and guidance to management through periodic meetings and other communications The

Board is significantly involved in among other things the Companys strategic planning process leadership

development and succession planning as well as other functions carried out through the Board committees as

described below

Leadership Structure The leadership structure of the Board of Directors of InfoSpace consists of

Chairman John Cunningham and the chairs of each of the principal committees of the Board of Directors In the

current structure the Chairman position is not combined with the Chief Executive Officer position which is

filled by William Ruckelshaus It is the policy of the Board of Directors that at all times it will either have an

independent Chairman or Lead Independent Director The Board of Directors believes that the culTent

leadership structure is appropriate for the Company because it balances the operational and day-to-day

management leadership of our CEO with the independent oversight provided by our independent Chairman of the

Board and the independent chairs of each of the principal committees This structure ensures that oversight of

risk management and the Companys management is distributed among multiple independent directors The

Board of Directors currently believes that this distribution of oversight is the best method of ensuring optimal

Company performance and risk management

Risk Management The Board of Directors oversees the Companys risk management both as full

Board of Directors and through its committees This oversight is administered primarily through the following

the Board of Directors periodic review and approval of management strategic plans including the

projected opportunities and challenges facing the business

the Board of Directors oversight of succession planning

the Board of Directors oversight of capital spending cash management and investment in marketable

securities and if any financings

the Audit Committees quarterly review of financial statements and its oversight of the Companys

accounting and financial reporting functions including internal control over financial reporting its
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discussions with management and the independent accountants regarding the quality and adequacy of

internal controls and financial reporting and related reports to the full Board of Directors and its

oversight of legal and regulatory compliance compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and

Ethics and any related person transactions

the Nominating and Governances oversight of governance policies and the self-evaluation assessments

of the Board of Directors and committees and

the Conipensation Committees review and recommendations or approvals regarding executive officer

compensation and its relationship to the Companys business plan as well its review of compensation

plans generally and the related risks and risk mitigants

Independence majority of the members of the Board of Directors must he independent directors The

Board of Directors recently undertook its annual review of director independence in accordance with the

applicable rules of NASDAQ The independence rules include series of Objective tests including that the

director is not employed by the Company and has not engaged in arious types of business dealings with the

Company In addition the Board of Directors is required to make subjective determination as to each

independent director that no relationships exist that in the opinion of the Board of Directors would interfere

with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of director

The Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that each of John Cunningham Jules Haimovitz

Richard Hearney Steven Hooper Eliabeth Huebner and Lewis Taffer is an independent director as defined in

the NASDAQ rules as was former director Braden Kelly In determining independence the Board of Directors

considered that Mr Cunninghams brother is non executive atwill employee of the Company and that

number of directors were parties to the settlement of deri\ atis lawsuit see Transactions with Related

Persons below

Each of the members of the Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance

Committee are independent under the NASDAQ rules In addition the Board of Directors has affirmatively

determined that each of the members of the Audit Committee qualifies as independent under the audit committee

independence rules established by the SEC

Meeting Attendance The Board of Directors of InfoSpace held total of 23 meetings during 2010

For 2010 all directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board of Directors and

committees thereof if any on which such director served during the period for which he or she has been

director or committee member Our Board of Directors has not adopted formal policy regarding directors

attendance at our annual meetings of stockholders and the only director who attended the 2010 annual meeting

of stockholders on May 112010 at our corporate offices in Bellevue Washington was then-CEO and director

William Lansing

Communication wit/i the Board of Directors The Board of Directors believes that management speaks

for InfoSpace Individual Board members ma occasionally meet or otherwise communicate with our

stockholders and other constituencies that are involved with InfoSpace but it is expected that Board members

would do this with the advance knowledge of management and at the request of management absent unusual

circumstances or as contemplated by Board committee charters Stockholders who wish to communicate with the

Board of Directors or with any individual member of the Board of Directors may do by sending such

communication in writing to the attention of the Corporate Secretary at the address of our principal executive

office with request to forward to the intended recipient The Corporate Secretary will generally forward such

communication to the Board of Directors or the specific Board member However the Corporate Secretary

reserves the right to not forward any material that is inappropriate In addition employees may communicate

with the Board through among other processes the Companys internal whistleblower hotline process

administered under the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
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Corporate Website Our corporate websitc located at www.infospaceinc.com contains information

regarding our Company including information regarding our directors executive officers and corporate

governance documents That information includes our Certificate of Incorporation Bylaws Committee Charters

Director Nomination Policy Codc of Business Conduct and Ethics which is applicable to all of our employees

executive officers and mcmbcis ol our Board ol Directors and our Corporate Governance Guidelines We use

our corporate
website to provide current information to investors including information on recent developments

and upcoming events

Committees The Board of Directors committee structure consists of three principal standing committees

the Audit Committee the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee and

several other minor standing or ad hoc committees the composition number and membership of which the

Board of Directors may revise from time to time as appropriate Copies of our Audit Committee Charter

Compensation Committee Charter and Nominating and Governance Committee Charter can be found on our

corporate website at www.infospaceinc.com You may also request copies of these documents and other

corporate governance
documents available on our website from our investor relations department at

425 201-6100 or 866 438-4677

The current membeiship and leadership of each of the standing committees is set forth in the table below as

is the number of 2010 meetings for those committees

Standing Committees as of May 2011

Nominating
and

Audit Compensation Governance

Director Committee Committee Committee

John Cunningham

Jules Haimovitz

Richard Hearney

Steven Hooper

Elizabeth Huebner

William Ruckelshaus

Lewis Taffer

James Voelker

Number of Meetings in 2010 12 19

Committee Member Committee Chair

The Audit Committee The Audit Committee currently consists of the following independent directors

Jules Haimovitz Eli/abeth Huebner and John Cunningham Ms Huebner is Chair of the Audit Committee The

Audit Committee is responsiblc for providing indcpendent objective oversight and review of the Companys

auditing accounting and financial reporting processes Among other functions the Audit Committees duties

include the following

Reviewing and approving thc appointment compensation oversight and retention of our independent

registered public accounting firm

Pre-approving all services audit and non-audit to be performed by the independent registered public

accounting firm

Monitoring thc adequacy and effcctivcness of our accounting and financial controls including internal

control over financial reporting

Reviewing our audited financial statements and quarterly unaudited financial information and

discussing them with management and the independent registered public accounting firm
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Establishing procedures for receiving and reviewing accounting-related complaints and concerns by

whistle blowers

Reviewing and monitoring compliance with our risk management and investment policies

Reviewing and pre-approving related person transactions and

Reviewing approving and monitoring compliance with our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board of Directors has determined that each Comniittee member has sufficient knowledge in reading

and understanding financial statements to serve on the Committee The Board of Directors has further determined

that Mr Haimovitz and Ms Huebner qualify as audit committee financial experts in accordance with SEC

rules and the professional experience requirements of NASDAQ The designation of an audit committee

financial expert does not impose upon such persons any duties obligations or liabilities that are greater than

those that are generally imposed on each of them as member of the Committee and the Board of Directors and

such designation does not affect the duties obligations or liability of
any other member of the Committee or the

Board of Directors

The Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee currently consists of the following

independent directors John Cunningham Jules Haimovitz Steven Hooper and Richard Hearney Mr Haimovitz

is Chair of the Compensation Committee The Compensation Committees duties include the following

Evaluating the performance of and reviewing and approving or recommending to the Board the

compensation of our CEO and other executive officers

Recommending to the full Board of Directors any changes to the non-employee director compensation

plan

Reviewing and making recommendations to management regarding general compensation goals and

guidelines for employees and criteria by which employee bonuses are determined

Monitoring compensation trends

Reviewing the Companys compensation policies and practices for all employees at least annually

regarding risk-taking incentives and risk management policies and practices and

Acting as administrator of InfoSpaces stock plans

Under the terms of the Compensation Committee Charter the Compensation Committee is authorized to

engage independent advisors at the Companys expense to advise the Compensation Committee on any matters

within the scope of the Committees duties The committee may also form subcommittees and delegate its

authority to those subcommittees as it deems appropriate description of the considerations and determinations

of the Compensation Committee regarding the compensation of our Named Executive Officers is contained in

Compensation Discussion and Analysis below description of the compensation program for our

non-employee directors is set forth in Director Compensation below

Ro/e of Management Similar to prior years in 2010 the Committee received significant input from the

CEO and CFO with respect to the design and implementation of the Companys compensation program for its

executive officers See Compensation Discussion and Analysis Process for Making Compensation

Determinations for further information

Ro/e of Compensation Consu/tant The Compensation Committee engaged Compensia Inc as an

independent compensation consultant with respect to the 2010 compensation programs for executive officers and

non-employee directors The Compensation Committee did not engage Compensia in 2010 for any purpose other

than to provide advice and recommendations on the amount and form of executive director and general

employee compensation Compensia was not directly engaged by management for any purpose See

Compensation Discussion and Analysis Process for Making Compensation Determinations for further

information
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The Nominating and Governance Committee The Nominating and Governance Committee currently

consists of the following independent directors Richard Hearney Elizabeth Huebner and Lewis Taffer

Mr Taffer is Chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee The Nominating and Governance

Committees duties include

Assisting the Board of Directors by identifying prospective director nominees to fill vacancies and

recommending to the Board of Directors the director nominees for the next annual meeting of

stockholders

Reviewing and recommending to the Board of Directors any appropriate changes to the InfoSpace

Corporate Governance Guidelines and Director Nomination Policy

Reviewing proposed changes to the Companys Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and making

recommendations for any such changes to the Board of Directors

Evaluating the performance and effectiveness of the committees and the Board of Directors as whole

Recommending to the Board of Directors membership for each committee

Overseeing director orientation and education

Evaluating committee structure and recommending changes to the Board of Directors

Monitoring compliance with independence standards by the directors

Monitoring and periodically reporting to the Board of Directors any significant developments in the

law and practice of corporate governance and

Considering stockholder nominees for election to the Board of Directors as described below under

Director Nomination Process

Director Nomination Process

The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending nominees to

the Board of Directors for election at the annual meeting and for reviewing and recommending director

appointments to fill any vacancies on the Board of Directors The Nominating and Governance Committees

objective pursuant to its charter is to ensure that the Board of Directors is properly constituted to meet its

fiduciary obligations to InfoSpace and its stockholders

In considering director candidates the Nominating and Governance Committee seeks the following

minimum qualifications as set forth in the Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines and Director

Nomination Policy

Commitment to InfoSpace business success consistent with the highest standards of responsibility

and ethics

Representation in the best interests of all of InfoSpaces stockholders and not any particular

constituency

Conscientious preparation for attendance at and participation in Board of Directors and applicable

committee meetings

No personal or professional commitments that would interfere or conflict with his or her obligations to

InfoSpace and its stockholders

An established record of professional accomplishment in his or her chosen field and

No material personal financial or professional interest in any InfoSpace competitor that would

interfere or conflict with his or her obligations to InfoSpace and its stockholders

The Nominating and Governance Committee also considers the professional and personal experience of

each nominee and whether that nominee has expertise relevant to InfoSpaces business objectives Although the
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Board of Directors does not have formal diversity policy the Board of Directors desires candidates that

contribute to the Board of Directors overall diversity with diversity being broadly construed to mean variety

of personal and professional experiences opinions perspectives and backgrounds The Board of Directors and

the Nominating and Governance Committee implements this goal during the nomination process that applies to

both new nominees and incumbent directors per the Companys Director Nomination Policy available on our

corporate website at www.infospaceinc.com The Board assesses its effectiveness in achieving this goal during

its annual self-assessment process

The Nominating and Governance Committees general view is to re-nominate incumbent directors who

continue to satisfy the Committees criteria for membership on the Board of Directors continue to make

important contributions to the Board of Directors and consent to continue their service on the Board of

Directors If vacancy on the Board of Directors occurs or the Board of Directors increases in size the

Nominating and Governance Committee will actively seek individuals who satisfy its criteria for membership on

the Board of Directors and the Nominating and Governance Committee may solicit ideas for possible Board of

Directors candidates from variety of sources including members of the Board of Directors Company

executives stockholders or individuals known to the members of the Board of Directors or Company executives

through personal or professional relationships Current director and nominee Elizabeth Huebner who is up for

election by stockholders for the first time in 2011 was identified and recommended to the Board in 2009 by the

then-Executive Chairman of the Board based upon the recommendations of various business acquaintances The

Nominating and Governance Committee did not pay third party to identify or evaluate potential nominees in

2010 or with respect to the current slate of nominees However the Committee has the authority to retain

search firm at the Companys expense to identify or evaluate director candidates at its discretion

Any stockholder may recommend candidates for election as directors by following the procedures set forth

in our Bylaws and Director Nomination Policy including the applicable notice information and consent

provisions For further information regarding these procedures see Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder

Proposals and Director Nominees below copy of our Bylaws and Director Nomination Policy is available on

our corporate website at www.infospaceinc.com

Any single stockholder or group of stockholders that has beneficially owned more than 5% of our

outstanding common stock for at least one year may propose director candidate for evaluation by the

Nominating and Governance Committee by delivering written notice to the Nominating and Governance

Committee that satisfies the notice information and consent requirements of our Bylaws and the Director

Nomination Policy The Committee will evaluate such recommended nominees using the same criteria that it

uses to evaluate other nominees Any such Board of Directors candidate must be independent of the stockholder

in all respects and must also qualify as an independent director under applicable NASDAQ rules The notice

must be received by the Nominating and Governance Committee no later than the date that is 120 calendar days

before the anniversary of the date that our Proxy Statement was released to stockholders in connection with the

previous years annual meeting The notice must include among other things proof of the required stock

ownership proof of identification of the stockholders submitting the proposal and information regarding the

proposed Board of Directors candidate The notice should be sent to the following address

Chair Nominating and Governance Committee

InfoSpace Inc

do Corporate Secretary

601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200

Bellevue WA 98004

The Nominating and Governance Committee did not receive any recommendations for director candidates

for the 2011 annual meeting from any non-management stockholder or group of stockholders that beneficially

owns more than 5% of InfoSpaces common stock
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Director Compensation

Non-employee director compensation consists of mix of cash and equity The combination of cash and

equity compensation is intended to provide incentives for non-employee directors to continue to serve on the

Board of Directors to further align the interests of the Board of Directors and stockholders and to attract new

non-employee directors with outstanding qualifications Directors who are employees or officers of the Company
do not receive any compensation for serving on the Board of Directors and therefore are excluded from the

director compensation table below Mr Ruckelshaus was non-employee director until his appointment as

President and CEO in November 2010 Mr Voelker is currently non-employee director but was an employee

of the Company as Executive Chairman through December 31 2010 Their compensation including the portion

of Mr Ruckelshauss compensation that was earned as non-employee director is included in the Summary

Compensation Table for Nanied Executive Officers The Compensation Committee reviews the non-employee

director compensation program on regular basis and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors as

appropriate

2010 Non-Employee Director Goinpensation Plan

In March 2010 the Board of Directors approved revised non-employee director compensation plan which

was effective for most of 2010 The 2010 director compensation plan paid an annual cash retainer for Board

membership committee membership and committee chairs and is described below Annual cash retainers are

earned and paid on the date of the annual meeting of stockholders

Annual cash retainer Board of Directors 20000

Annual cash retainer Audit Committee

Chair 14000

Other Committee members 4000

Annual cash retainer Compensation Committee

Chair 8000

Other Committee members 3000

Annual cash retainer Nominating and Governance Committee

Chair 5000

Other Committee members 2000

Annual cash retainer Strategy Committee members 4000

Annual cash retainer Lead Director 10000

Attendance fees per meeting1 750

Initial equity grant newly elected or appointed director number of shares2

Nonqualified options to purchase common stock 27000

RSUs 11250

Annual equity grant number of shares3

Nonqualified option to purchase common stock 11100

RSUs 4500

Paid for attendance at Board of Directors meetings in excess of eight per year Also paid to committee

members for attendance at any Special Litigation Committee meeting any Audit or Compensation

Committee meetings in excess of eight per year and any Nominating and Governance Committee meetings

in excess of four per year

Vests in three equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date

Vests in full on the first anniversary of the grant date

The option awards are made pursuant to Restated 1996 Flexible Stock Incentive Plan the 1996 Plan
The Company does not coordinate the timing of share grants with the release of material non-public information

as grants are made as of the annual meeting date or election date
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The Company reimburses all directors for expenses incurred in attending nieetings or performing their

duties as directors The Company does not provide any perquisites to directors

Director Compensation for 2010

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of each non employee directors

for 2010

Fees earned or Stock Option All other

Name paid in cash awards ass ards compensation1 Total

John Cunningham IV $62984 $39330 $30274 5780 $138368

Jules Haimovitz $55375 $39330 $30274 $124979

Richard Heamey $52344 $39330 $30274 $18763 $140711

Elizabeth Huebner $84750 $39330 $30274 $154354

Braden Kelly2 $86250 $39330 $30274 $155854

Lewis Taffer $46516 $39330 $30274 $116120

Consists of taxable gain on the value placed on the securities surrendered as part of the settlement of

shareholder derivative.iitigation see disclosure in Note Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II in the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by the

Company on March 112011
Mr Kelly resigned from our Board of Directors effective December 2010

Options to purchase 11100 shares of our common stock and 4500 restricted stock units RSUs were

granted on May 11 2010 to the seven non employee directors at that time These awards are expected to vest on

May 11 2011 The fair value of each RSU granted was based on the share price as of May II 2010 of $8.74 per

share The fair value of each option granted on May 11 2010 was determined to be $2.73 based on the Black

Scholes-Merton valuation model

All awards were granted under the 1996 Plan Stock awards consist of RSUs with each RSU representing

the right to receive one share of our common stock upon vesting Option awards consist of options to purchase

shares of our common stock The dollar amount is the grant date fair value of the award Assumptions used in the

valuation of awards are discussed in Note Stock-based Compensation Expense of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements Item of Part II in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2010

The following table sets forth information concerning the aggregate number of equity awards outstanding

for each of the non employee directors as of December 2010

Aggregate number of Aggregate number of

Name RSUs options

John Cunningham IV 4500 60100

Jules Haimovitz 4500 51100

Richard Hearney 4500 46600

Elizabeth Huebner 4500 21.100

Braden Kellyl 50000

Lewis Taffer 4500 60600

Mr Kelly resigned from our Board of Directors effective December 2010 the 50.000 option awards

remained outstanding at December 31 2010 and expired unexercised on March 2011

For each of the non employee directors except as noted above 4500 of the stock awards and 11100 of the

option awards outstanding were unvested at December31 2010 and are expected to sest on May 11 2011 The

remaining awards vere fully vested as of December 31 2010
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers directors and persons who own more

than ten percent of registered class of our equity securities to file reports of ownership on Form and changes

in ownership on Form and Form with the SEC Executive officers directors and greater-than ten-percent

stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish InfoSpace with copies of all Section 16a forms they

file Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us or filed with the SEC and written

representations from certain reporting persons InfoSpace believes that all Section 16a filing requirements

applicable to its executive officers directors and persons who own more than ten percent of registered class of

our equity securities have been complied with on timely basis during 2010
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of common stock of

InfoSpace as of April 11 2011 as to each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than five

percent of the outstanding shares of common stock ii each director and each nominee for director of InfoSpace

iii each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table and iv all current directors and

executive officers as group Information for beneficial owners who are not officers or directors of InfoSpace is

based on their most recent filings with the SEC as described in the footnotes to this table and is not

independently verified by InfoSpace Unless otherwise indicated below and subject to applicable community

property laws each beneficial owner has sole voting and investment powers with respect to the shares listed

below

Number of Shares That

Can Be Acquired Within Shares Beneficially

Principal Stockholders Directors Shares Owned
60 Days of April 112011 Owned1

Nominees for Director Directly or Percent of

and Named Fxecutive Officers Indirectly Options RSIJs Niimher Class

BlackRocklnc 3114302 31143022 8.5%

40 East 52nd Street

New York NY 10022

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP 2563408 25634083 7%

Palisades West Building One

6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin TX 78746

Renaissance Technologies LLC .. 2303100 23031004 6.3%

800 Third Avenue

New York NY 10022

Nikhil BehI 59994 29997 89991

David Binder 103601 337333 440934 1.2%

Stephen Hawthornthwaite 25326 66660 91986

William Lansing 1334083 13340835 3.5%

Travis McElfresh 0%

John Cunningham IV 13437 60100 4500 780386

Jules Haimovitz 51100 4500 55600

Richard Hearney 46600 4500 51100

Steven Hooper 0%

Elizabeth Huebner 21100 4500 25600

William Ruckelshaus 9197 36100 7210 52507

Lewis Taffer 60600 4500 65100

James Vnelker 1055500 1055500 2.8%

All current directors and executive officers as

Group 15 persons 190330 2295054 59707 2545092 6.5%
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Less than 1%

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC In computing the number of

shares beneficially owned by person
and the percentage ownership of that person shares of common stock

subject to options held by that
person that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within

60 days of April 11 2011 if any or RSUs held by that person
that vest within 60 days of April 11 2011 if

any are deemed outstanding while such shares are not deemed outstanding for
purposes of computing the

percentage ownership of
any other person

Based on information contained in Schedule 130/A filed with the SEC on February 2011 by

BlackRock Inc

Based on information contained in Schedule 130/A filed with the SEC on February 11 2011 by

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP

Based on information contained in Schedule 130/A filed with the SEC on February 11 2011 by

Renaissance Technologies LLC and the other reporting person named therein and includes all shares

beneficially held by the
group

formed by such reporting persons the Renaissance Group According to

the Schedule 130/A as of December 31 2010 the Renaissance Group included Renaissance Technologies

LLC and Renaissance Technologies Holding Corporation

As of April 11 2011 William Lansing had sold every share in the account provided by the Company The

Company cannot verify whether he has other holdings in other accounts

Includes 9280 shares of comnion stock held by Clear Fir Partners L.P Mr Cunningham is general

partner of Clear Fir Partners L.P

Ownership Limitations

Certain transfers of our stock between stockholders could result in our undergoing an ownership change

as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and the related Treasury

Regulations Section 382 Effective upon stockholder approval at the 2009 annual meeting we adopted

certificate of amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation the Charter to reclassify

our common stock and impose restrictions on its transfer under certain circumstances related to Section 382

In particular the Charter generally restricts any person or entity from attempting to transfer which includes

any direct or indirect acquisition sale transfer assignment conveyance pledge or other disposition any of our

stock or options warrants or other rights to acquire our stock or securities convertible or exchangeable into our

stock to the extent that transfer would create or result in an individual or entity becoming five-percent

stockholder of our stock for purposes of Section 382 Five Percent Stockholder or ii increase the stock

ownership percentage of any existing Five Percent Stockholder We refer to any person or entity attempting to

acquire shares in such transaction as Restricted Holder The Charter does not prevent transfers that are

sales by Five Percent Stockholder although it does restrict any purchasers that seek to acquire shares from

Five Percent Stockholder to the extent that the purchaser is or would become Five Percent Stockholder

Any transfer that violates the Charter is null and void ab initio and is not effective to transfer any record

legal beneficial or any other ownership of the number of shares that result in the violation which are referred to

as Excess Securities The purported transferee shall not be entitled to any rights as our stockholder with

respect to the Excess Securities Instead the purported transferee would be required upon demand by the

Company to transfer the Excess Securities to an agent designated by us for the limited purpose of consummating

au oi dci ly ai iiis length sale of such shai es The net pi oceeds of the sale will be disti ibuted fii st to ieimburse the

agent for any costs associated with the sale second to the purported transferee to the extent of the price it paid

and finally any additional amount will go to the purported transferor or if the purported transferor cannot be

readily identified to charity designated by the Board of Directors The Charter also provides us with various

remedies to prevent or respond to purported transfer that violates its provisions In particular any person who

knowingly violates such provisions together with any persons in the same control group with such person are

jointly and severally liable to us for such amounts as will put us in the same financial position as we would have

been in had such violation not occurred
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Our Board of Directors may authorize an acquisition by Restricted Holder of stock that would otherwise

violate the Charter if the Board of Directors determioes in its sole discretion that after taking into account the

preservation of our NOLs and income tax credits such acquisition would he in the best interests of the Company

and its stockholders Any Restricted Holder that would like to acquire shares of our stock must make written

request to uur Board of Directors prior to any such acquisition We intend to enforce the restrictions to preserve

future use of our NOLs and income tax credits for so long as the Board of Directors determines in good faith that

it is in the best interests of the Company to prevent the possibility of an ownership change under Section 382

In addition on July 19 2002 the Companys Board of Directors adopted stockholder rights plan pursuant

to which the Company declared and paid dividend of one right for each share of common stock Under the

terms of this stockholder rights plan unless the rights are redeemed by the Board of Directors upon the

occurrence of person or group of affiliated persons the Acquiring Party acquiring or obtaining the right to

acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Companys outstanding common shares certain rights of

stockholders are triggered including the right of all holders other than the Acquiring Party to receive shares of

the Companys preferred stock or common stock at significant discount to the market price or shares of an

acquiring entity For specific details regarding this stockholder righJs plan see the Current Report on Form

filed by the Company on July 24 2002
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The following Report of the Audit Committee of InfoSpace shall not be deemed to be soliciting material

or to be filed with the SEC and the information in this report shall not be incorporated by refrrence into any

future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act or the Exchange Act except to

the extent that InfoSpace specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing

During 2010 and 2011 the composition of the Audit Committee was as follows

Period Chair Members

From January 2010 to May 11 2010 William Ruckelshaus Jules Haimovitz

Elizabeth Huebner

Lewis Taffer

From May 11 2010 to November 11 2010 Elizabeth Huebner Jules Haimovitz

William Ruckelshaus

From November 11 2010 to the present Elizabeth Huebner John Cunningham

Jules Haimovitz

Each member who served on the Audit Committee in 2010 met the independence criteria in the applicable

SEC rules and is or was an independent director as defined in the NASDAQ rules in each case during the period

they so served Each Audit Committee member who served on the Audit Committee in 2010 meets or met the

NASDAQs financial knowledge requirements set forth in the NASDAQ rules Our Board of Directors has

determined that Ms Huebner and Mr Haimovitz are both audit committee financial experts under SEC rules

and meet the financial sophistication and professional experience requirements set forth in the NASDA rules

The Audit Committee met 12 times during 2010

The Audit Committee is governed by written charter that complies with applicable provisions of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related SEC and NASDAQ roles On an annual basis the Audit Committee reviews and

reassesses the adequacy of its charter copy of the current Audit Committee Charter updated on November

2010 is available on our website at www.infospaceinc.com

As more fully set forth in the Audit Committee Charter the Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors

in fulfilling its responsibility for oversight of the quality and integrity of the accounting auditing and reporting

practices of InfoSpace including internal control over financial reporting and such other duties as directed by

the Board of Directors As part of this process the Audit Committee oversees the quarterly reviews and annual

audit of the Companys consolidated financial statements by InfoSpaces independent registered public

accounting firm reviews and approves the audit budget and reviews and approves any other non-audit fees paid

to the Companys independent registered public accounting firm The Audit Committee is also responsible for

maintaining free and open means of communication among the independent registered public accounting firm

the directors and the financial management of InfoSpace In addition the Audit Committee reviews and if

appropriate approves related party transactions under the provisions of our Related Party Transaction

Guidelines The Audit Committee has access to any of InfoSpaces employees or advisors with whom it wishes

to communicate and may hire outside experts as it deems appropriate

Management is responsible tor Intospaces internal control over financial reporting preparation of tinancial

statements and the financial reporting process The Companys independent registered public accounting firm

Deloitte Touche LLP is responsible for performing an independent audit of InfoSpaces consolidated financial

statements and internal control over financial reporting in accordance with standards set by the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board PCAOB and to issue reports thereon The Audit Committee monitors and

oversees these processes The Audit Committee members rely without independent verification on the

information provided to them and on the representations made to them by management and the independent

registered public accounting firm
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In this context the Audit Committee has

Discussed the overall scope and plans for audits with Deloitte Touche LLP

Met and held discussions with Deloitte Touche LLP both with and without management present to

discuss the results of the audits managements evaluation of InfoSpaces internal control over financial

reporting and Deloitte Touche LLPs opinion thereof and the overall quality of InfoSpaces

financial reporting

Reviewed and discussed the quarterly and annual financial results prior to the publication of those

results and the filing of those results on Form

Discussed the matters required to be discussed with Deloitte Touche LLP by the statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 as amended AICPA Professional Standards Vol AU section 380 as

adopted by the PCAOB in Rule 3200T and SEC S-X Rule 2-07 including discussion of the quality not

just acceptability of the application of accounting principles the reasonableness of significant

judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statenients

Reviewed and discussed the unaudited and audited financial statements with management and

Deloitte Touche LLP including Deloitte Touche LLPs opinion on the audited financial

statements and

Received the written disclosures and letter from Deloitte Touche LLP required by applicable

requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent registered public accounting firms

communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence and has discussed with

Deloitte Touche LLP its independence

Based on our reviews and discussions referred to above the Committee recommended to the Board of

Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10 for the year ended

December 31 2010 filed with the SEC

The Audit Committee has also appointed Deloitte Touche LLP as InfoSpaces independent registered

public firm for the year ending December 31 2011

Members of the Audit Committee

Elizabeth Huebner Chair

John Cunningham

Jules Haimovitz

Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2010 and 2009

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte Touche LLP the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and

their respective affiliates collectively Deloitte to InfoSpace and subsidiaries during 2010 and 2009 were as

follows

2010 2009

Audit fees 857458 $583322

Audit-related fees 138000

Tax fees 3296 18000

All other fees 24U9 24u9

Total fees $1001163 $603731

Audit fees reflect fees billed for the annual audits of the Companys consolidated financial statements and

internal control over financial reporting of the year indicated The increase in fees from 2009 to 2010 is primarily

related to business and asset acquisitions Audit-related fees for 2010 reflect fees billed for work performed in
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conjunction with
mergers and acquisitions and with forms filed with the SEC under the Securities Act Tax fees

for 2010 were for services in connection with the sale or substantial liquidation of wholly owned foreign

subsidiaries Tax fees for 2009 were for services in connection with obtaining business tax refund Other fees

for both
years consist of our annual subscription to the Deloitte Technical Library which we use when

performing technical accounting research

The Audit Committee pre approves all audit and non audit services to be performed by InfoSpaces

independent registered public accounting firm As part of its pre-approval procedures the Audit Committee

considers whether the provision of any proposed non-audit services is consistent with the SECs rules on auditor

independence The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision by Deloitte of the non-audit services

described above is compatible with Deloittes independence After consideration the Audit Committee has

determined that Deloittes independence as an auditor has not been compromised by its provision of these

services All audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte in 2010 and 2009 were pre-approved by the Audit

Committee in accordance with the foregoing policy

Transactions with Related Persons

Policies and Procedures Under our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Related Party

Transaction Guidelines proposed related person transactions which generally include any transactions by the

Company or any subsidiary with an employee or director of the Company relative of an employee or director

or any entity with which an employee or director has material interest must be disclosed to our CFO If the

CFO determines that the transaction is material or otherwise of such nature that it should be reviewed and

approved by the Audit Conimittee under the guidance provided in our Related Party Transaction Guidelines the

Audit Committee must review and approve such related person transactions in advance In determining whether

to approve related person transaction the Audit Committee considers whether the terms of the related person

transaction are fair to the Company at the time of authorization the business reasons for the Company to enter

into the related person transaction whether other comparable transactions with non-related parties were

considered and if so the terms of such transactions and the reason for the selection of the related person

transaction the value of the transaction to the Company and to the related person whether the related person

transaction would impair the independence of previously independent director and any other factors that are

relevant to determination of whether the transaction and the process that lead to it are fair to the Company

Related Person Transactions in 2010 and 2011

Derivative Action Settlement On September 14 2010 the Company entered into settlement agreement

with plaintiffs defendants and certain third parties in the shareholder derivative action the Derivative Action

filed against current and former officers and directors of the Company as well as nominal defendant InfoSpace

by Anne Manos on December 17 2008 in the Superior Court of the State of Washington in and for King

County That settlement agreement is further described in and attached as an exhibit to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on September 17 2010 Among the settling parties were current directors James Voelker

John Cunningham IV Jules Haimovitz Richard Hearney and Lewis Taffer as well as certain former

directors former officers and former legal and compensation advisors Pursuant to the settlement agreement all

parties to the Derivative Action agreed to release all claims related to the Derivative Action in exchange for

paynient to the Company by the settling parties and/or their respective insurance carriers of $26.65 million in the

form of cash forgone contractual obligations of InfoSpace and surrendered securities In connection with the

settlement of the Derivative Action James Voelker contributed cash and Company stock with an agreed value

to the Company of $o.t million John Cunningham IV contributed Company stock with an agreed value to the

Company of $19546 Richard Hearney contributed cash and Company stock with an agreed value to the

Company of $26854 and Jules Haimovitz and Lewis Taffer contributed cash in the amounts of $6927 and

$18807 respectively The settlement of the Derivative Action was negotiated and approved by the Special

Litigation Committee of the Companys Board of Directors which was comprised of two independent directors

who were not parties to the Derivative Action In addition the Audit Committee separately reviewed the

settlement under the Related Party Transaction Guidelines and determined that the settlement was fair to the

Company and in the Companys best interest

24



Employee of the Company Mr Cunninghams brother James Cunningham is lion-executive at will

employee of the Company who is serving as one of the Companys managers of business development In fiscal

2010 he earned $414713 in total compensation which primarily consisted of base salary of $156346 bonus

of $106019 which was based on the performance of James Cunningham and the group that he manages stock

option awards with grant date fair value of $55355 RSUs with grant datc fair valuc of $93.585 dnd $3306

contributed by the Company to his account in the InfoSpace Inc 40 1k Retirement Plan
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The following Report of the Compensation Committee of InfoSpace shall not be deemed to be soliciting

material or to be filed with the SEC and such information shall not be incorporated by reference into any

future filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act except to the extent that InfoSpace specifically

incorporates it by reference into such filing

During 2010 and 2011 the composition of the Compensation Committee was as follows

Period Chair Memhers

From January 2010 to May 11 2010 Lewis Taffer Richard Hearney

Braden Kelly

From May 11 2010 to December 2010 Braden Kelly John Cunningham

Richard Hearney

From December 2010 to April 11 2011 Jules Haimovitz John Cunningham

Richard Hearney

From April 11 2011 to the present Jules Haimovitz John Cunningham

Richard Hearney

Steven Hooper

Each member who served on the Compensation Committee in 2010 and who currently serves on the

Compensation Committee is an independent director as defined in the NASDAQ rules The Compensation

Committee met 19 times and acted by unanimous consent twice during 2010

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

required by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with the Companys management and based on such review and

discussions the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis be included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2010 and this Proxy Statement on Schedule l4A

Members of the Compensation Committee

Jules Haimovitz Chair

John Cunningham

Richard Hearney

Steven Hooper

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

In 2010 the following directors served on the Compensation Committee for various periods specified

above John Cunningham Jules Haimovitz Richard Hearney Braden Kelly and Lewis Taffer None of the

members of the Compensation Committee is or has been an officer or an employee of the Company

John Cunninghams brother James Cunningham is non-executive at-will employee In addition in 2010 each

of John Cunningham Jules Haimovitz Richard Heamey and Lewis Taffer settled derivative suit brought on

behalf of the Company See discussion under Related Person Transactions in 2010 arid 2011 The Board has

determined that neither the employment of John Cunninghams brother nor the settlement of the derivative

litigation limits or interferes with these directors independence or their ability to properly discharge their

obligations related to service on the Compensation Committee During 2010 none of the Companys executive

officers served on the board of directors or compensation committee or committee performing similar

functions of
any other company that had one or more executive officers serving on the InfoSpace Board of

Directors or Compensation Committee
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduction

The Compensation Committee referred to as the Committee in this section is composed entirely of

independent directoi-s and administers the executive officer compensation program of the Company The

Committees responsibilities include recommending and overseeing compensation benefit plans and policies

reviewing and recommending or approving equity grants administering share-based plans and annually

reviewing and recommending or approving all compensation decisions relating to the Companys executive

officers including the CEO the CFO and the Named Executive Officers The Committee generally makes

recommendations to the Board for approval of executive compensation matters This Compensation Discussion

and Analysis CDA explains how the Companys compensation programs are designed and implemented

with respect to the Named Executive Officers

The 2010 compensation program was significantly impacted by changes among the Companys executive

officers in 2009 and 2010 William Lansing was hired as CEO and President in February 2009 and departed the

Company in November 2010 Steven Hawthornthwaite was hired as Vice President Corporate Development

in March 2010 Nikhil BehI was hired in May 2010 as CEO of Mercantila wholly owned subsidiary acquired in

May 2010 Travis McElfresh was hired on September 20 2010 as Chief Technology Officer David Binder

has served as the Companys Chief Financial Officer since January 2008 and has been employed by the

Company since October 2004 The foregoing Named Executive Officers were the primary focus of the

Committees compensation determinations for 2010

William Ruckelshaus was appointed President and CEO in November 2010 James Voelker resigned as

CEO and President in February 2009 and the term of his employment agreement ended on December 31 2010

Mr Voelker was also Chairman of the Board through December 31 2010 and he continues to serve on the

Board Except as set forth below in Executive Summary Messrs Ruckelshaus and Voelker this CDA is not

applicable to the compensation determinations made with respect to Messrs Ruckelshaus and Voelker

Executive Summary

Overview of Compensation Program

The following is summary of key aspects of our 2010 compensation program for the Named Executive

Officers

Straightforward compensation program The primary compensation elements consist of base salary

an annual cash bonus and long term incentive award collectively total direct compensation or

TDC
Limited perquisites and no defined benefit plans or non qualified deferred compensation plans The

Company provides limited perquisites to Named Executive Officers that are not generally available to

all employees Further the Company does not maintain
any

defined benefit pension plans or

nonqualified deferred compensation plans for the Named Executive Officers

Significant impact of operational and leadership transition Qualified key personnel with

experience relevant to the Companys online search and commerce businesses as well as acquisition

and integration expertise which is critical to the Companys growth strategy are scarce and

competition to recruit them is intense The Company experienced significant changes among its

executive management team in 2010 as noted above following similar transitions in 2008 and 2009

Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI were hired in 2010 and received significant new hire

equity grants due to the competitive landscape Further Messrs Lansing and Voelker earned

significant severance payments in 2010
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The Committee en gaged an independent compensation consultant in 2010 The Committee

engaged Compensia in 2010 as its independent compensation consultant with respect to executive

compensation matters

Implementation of benchmarking In 2010 the Committee decided to implement cash base salary

plus target annual bonus and annual equity benchmarks for executive management at the 40th and 80th

percentiles respectively on average

Emphasis on equity awards/long-term compensation The Committee continues to align key

executives with stockholders through its significant emphasis on equity incentives that generally vest

over three-year period In particular Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behl received

relatively higher percentage of equity compensation as part of their new hire compensation package

used to attract such employees as well as to quickly establish alignment with stockholders consistent

with the Committees past practice for newly hired or promoted executive officers In 2010 long term

incentive compensation represented 86% 82% and 82% of Target TDC defined below for

Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behl respectively and 64% and 59% of Target TDC for

Messrs Lansing and Binder respectively In addition Mr Binder has outstanding equity awards

subject to vesting in future years

Emphasis on pay -for-performance for significant portion of cash compensation with utilization of

top-line and bottom-line perfonnance metrics The 2010 annual bonus plan was predicated on the

achievement of annual goals relating to revenue adjusted revenue and Adjusted EBITDA The

Committee also had negative discretion to the extent Named Executive Officers did not achieve

specified individual performance goals The 2010 target annual bonuses equaled approximately 18%

and 15% of the Target TDC of Messrs Lansing and Binder respectively and 5% 6% and 6% of the

Target TDC of the Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behi respectively Although

performance-based pay represents relatively low percentage of Target TDC the Committee believes

it provides sufficient incentives because it represents significant portion of cash compensation which

is particularly important due to the historical volatility of the Companys stock price and its downward

or flat trend in recent years

Employment agreements for Named Executive Officers including change of control benefits with

Section 280G cut-backs and generally double trigger benefits The Company has or had

employment agreements with each of its Named Executive Officers that provide specified severance

benefits With respect to the agreements of the Named Executive Officers employed as of

December 31 2010 the change of control benefits generally require double-trigger which means

change of control and the actual or constructive termination of employment However portion of the

equity awards are subject tn single trigger under the terms of the 96 Plan see details below under

Potential Payments Upon Termnination qf Employment InfoSpace Inc Rcstated 1996 Flexible Stock

Incentive Plan Such agreements also provide for Section 2800 cut-backs The Companys former

employment agreements with Messis Lansing and Voelker provided for tax gross ups but the

Committee no longer intends to provide such benefits in future employment agreements

Overview of 2010 Compensation Actions

In determining the compensation for the Named Executive Officers the Committee generally focuses on

target total direct compensation Target TDC which consists of base salary target annual cash incentive

bonus and long-term equity incentive awards For 2010 the Committee was challenged to balance the need to

properly attract motivate and retain the Named Executive Officers during its operational transition and the

economic slowdown in the U.S the importance of being fiscally conservative given the economic slowdown

and ensuring alignment with stockholders

The Committees engagement of Compensia for 2010 included market study of Target TDC for seven

executive officers including Messrs Lansing and Binder The Committee used the market study to assess market

conditions and the general competitiveness of the existing compensation program as well as to benchmark total
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cash and equity compensation In addition the Committee received
proxy statement data and information on

material compensation trends with respect to executive officers to provide general understanding of current

compensation practices

For Messrs Lansing and Binder the Committee focused on approximating benchmarks of cash and equity

compensation at the 4Qth and 80th percentiles respectively The henchmarking resulted in an increase in

Mr Binders base salary and target bonus as percentage of base salary and decrease in his long-term

incentive equity compensation Mr Lansings base salary and target bonus as percentage of base salary were

above the benchmarks and therefore remained constant Mr Lansings long term incentive equity compensation

decreased significantly from 2009 to 2010 due to the size of his new hire equity awards in 2009

The overall Target TDC for Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behl was negotiated for 2010 in the

context of intense competition for talent in the online search and e-commerce industry and in the Internet and

technology industries generally The terms of their employment agreements including base salary target annual

bonuses and new hire equity awards were determined by the Committee primarily based on its subjective view

of number of individual and Company factors Individual specific Onsiderations
included among other things

an individuals experience projected future performance and market competition for such individual Company-

specific considerations inclpded among other things internal pay equity estimated future financial and operating

performance strategic goals and the market performance of the common stock

The following table sets forth Target TDC approved for the Named Executive Officers for 2010

Target

performance- Long-term
Target TDC1

based incentive

Larget compensation compensation

Base annual of Target Equit of Target Decrease
Name salary bonus TDC2 award3 TDC4 2010 2009 from 2009

William LansingS $410000 $41000t 17.4Cc $1.422000 63.7% $2262000 $6703793 66.3%

David Binder $243000 $145800 14.7% 565.000 59.2% 953.800 $1039588 8.3%

Stephen Hawthornthwaite6 $225000 $135000 5.4% $2173375 85.8% $2533375

Nikhil BehI6 $210000 $105000 5.7c $1388825 81.5Cc $1703825

Trasis MeElfresh6 s210000 $105000 5.4Cc 81410285 81.7Cc $1725285

Target TDC consists of Base salary Target annual bonus and Equity awards

Target performance based compensation consists of Target annual bonus divided by the Target TDC in

2010

For purposes of benchmarking Messrs Lansing and Binders equity compensation the Committee valued

the Equity awards as the grant date fair value of restricted share units yRSUs granted in 2010 plus

the estimated grant date fair value of options granted in 2010 using the preceding 30-day stock price

average and the Black-Scholes assumptions in effect for executives as of the grant date For purposes of

determining Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehIs equity compensation the Committee valued

the Equity Awards as the grant date fair value of the RSUs and options

Long-term incentive compensation consists of Equity award divided by the Target TDC in 2010

Mr Lansings Target TDC in 2009 was substantially impacted by his new hire equity awards

For Named Executive Officers hired in 2010 the above amounts reflect annualized base salary and target

annual bonus amounts as of their respective hiring date Equity award reflects new hire equity awards

Performance-Based Compensation

Target Performance Metrics In early 2010 when the Committee discussed and finalized the 2010 annual

bonus performance targets the financial industrial and consumer niarkets were continuing to experience

substantial disruption which negatively impacted the advertising market generally and the Internet advertising

market specifically and the timing and nature of recovery was uncertain The foregoing made it difficult to

forecast operating results for 2010

29



The 2010 annual bonus plan was predicated on the achievement of total revenue adjusted revenue defined

as total revenue adjusted for specified volatile distribution accounts and Adjusted EBITDA defined as

EBITDA less non recurring non operational and transitional matters weighted 20% 20% and 60%

respectively Earned bonuses for each performance component were analyzed independently and ranged from

651f to 150% multiplied by the component weighting Fur pm poses uf this calculation icvejiue of our Corc

segment was used for all executive officers except for Mr BehI for whom the revenue of our E-Commerce

segment was used

2010 Results and Earned Goinpensation The Named Executive Officers earn the Target TDC only to the

extent target performance measures are achieved To the extent target performance measures are not achieved the

Named Executie Officers generally will earn compensation below the Target TDC and may earn no bonus

compensation at all To the extent target Company-based performance nieasures are exceeded the Named

Executive Officers generally will earn compensation above the Target TDC up to the
cap on bonus compensation

Revenues in 2010 were $246.8 million an increase of $39.2 million or 19% over 2009 Net income for

2010 was $13.7 million or $0.37 per diluted share compared to $7.4 million or $0.21 per diluted share for

2009 Adjusted EBITDA as reported in the 2010 Annual Report on Form 10 was $27.6 million for 2010

compared to $27.4 million br 2009 See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations Iieni of Part II in our 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K for description of the

material changes between such fiscal years

Based on the payout scale for the 2010 annual bonus plan the Companys performance resulted in an

aggregate bonus payout of 61% of the target bonus for Named Executive Officers excluding Mr Lansing who

received no bonus due to his termination For Named Executive Officers excluding Mr Lansing the actual 2010

bonus expense was $206000 compared to target bonus pool of $339000

Messrs Ruckelshaus and Voelker

Mr Ruckelshaus has been director of the Company since May 2007 Following Mr Lansings separation

from the Company Mr Ruckelshaus was appointed President and CEO in November 2010 and his compensation

package was negotiated with the view that he was temporary executive officer As set forth in his employment

agreement Mr Ruckelshaus 2010 executive compensation substantially consisted of pro rata portion of his

base salary annualized at $400000 and new hire grant of 32509 RSUs having grant date fair value of

approximately 5250.000 and vesting monthly in equal installments until the first anniversary of the grant date

Mr Ruckelshaus will also receive four quarterly bonus payments of $37500 each during his first year of

employment beginning with the quarterly period ending on January 31 2011 None of this bonus was capable of

being earned as of December 31 2010

Mr Voelker resigned as CEO and President in February 2009 although his employment with us continued

through the end of the term of his employment agreement on December 31 2010 Mr Voelker continues to serve

on the Board and was Chairman of the Board through December 31 2010 Mr Voelkers compensation included

an annual base salary of $150000 for fiscal year 2010 as well as cash severance payment of $2.4 million

payable in connection with his separation from service with the Company in accordance with the terms of his

employment agreement which severance payment was made in lump sum on February 25 2011

2011 Material Changes to Compensation Program

In April 2011 the Compensation Committee and Board approved revisions to the long-term equity incentive

program for all executive officers to further emphasize pay for-performance incentives retention and alignment

with stockholders Beginning in 2011 executive officers will receive target grant of market stock units

MSUs which are form of performance based RSUs The actual amount of MSUs earned will be 0% to

150% of the target award based on the change in the Companys total stockholder return relative to the change in

the closing value of the applicable index Each MSU represents the right to receive one share of InfoSpace

common stock upon satisfaction of the performance measure and vesting
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For purposes of the 2011 MSU awards the Companys performance will be measured against the iShares

Russell 2000 Index the Index The Company used the Index for this program to ensure objectivity in

measuring the Companys performance Total stockholder return of the Company will be calculated by

comparing the Companys 30 day average share price following its earnings release for fiscal 2010 and 2011

iespectively as adjusted fut dividends if any The peifuinauee of the Index will be calculated by cunipanng the

30-day average closing Index value for the same two periods For every 1% increase or decrease in the

Companys performance compared to the Index the number of MSUs earned will increase or decrease by 3%
respectively subject to the maximum payout of 150% of target

For executive officers hired in 2008 and before one third of the earned MSUs will vest on the later of the

Boards certification of the Companys performance under the 2011 MSU program and April 2012 The

remaining earned MSUs will vest in equal installments on each of April 12013 and 2014 For executive officers

hired in 2009 and thereafter two thirds of the MSUs will vest on April 2013 and one-third of the MSUs will

vest on April 2014 All of the foregoing is limited by and subject to the award agreement and 1996 plan

including the accelerated vesting tax withholding continuing service and forfeiture provisions thereunder

No stock options or service based RSUs have been granted to continuing executive officers in 2011 as of the

date hereof

Compensation Philosophy Program Objectives and Key Features

The Companys compensation program for its Named Executive Officers is designed to

provide total compensation with meaningful equity upside that is highly competitive to assist in

attracting exceptionally qualified candidates

attract and retain key executives who are critical to the Companys current operations as well as who

possess talent and qualifications to grow the Company and manage more complex organization

motivate key employees to satisfy the Companys financial and strategic goals

reward superior individual and Company performance on both short-term and long-term basis and

align executives long term interests with those of stockholders

The following table sets forth how each element of compensation to Named Executive Officers for 2010 is

intended to satisfy one or more of the Companys compensation objectives as well as key features of the

2010 Key Features

Minimum salary established

pursuant to employment

agreements with changes based

on benchmarking internal pay

equity and an evaluation of the

individuals experience as well as

historical current and anticipated

future performance

Minimum target bonuses as

percentage of salary established

pursuant to employment

agreements individuals with

positions that have larger

potential impact on operational

results generally have higher

proportion of their cash

compensation tied to Company

performance through the bonus

plan

compensation elements that address such objectives

Element of Compensation Compensation Objectives

Base Salary Provides minimum fixed level

of cash compensation

Important factor in retaining and

attracting key employees in

competitive marketplace

Preserves an employees

commitment during downturns in

the relevant industries and/or

equity markets

Annual Cash Incentive Bonus The at-risk portion of cash

compensation

Incentive for the achievement of

annual Company financial goals

and individual goals

Assists in retaining attracting and

motivating employees in the near

term

Provides balance to the volatility

of equity prices and any

downturns
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Element of Compensation Compensation Objectives 2010 Key Features

Company-based performance

measures are revenues 20%
adjusted revenues 20% and

Adjusted EBITDA 60%
analyzed independently of each

other

Committee has negative discretion

to the extent Named Executive

Officers do not achieve specified

individual performance goals

Payout ranges from 65% to 150%

of target bonus for each

performance component

multiplied by its weighting based

upon actual performance ranging

from 80% to 135% of the target

measure The 150% payout cap

limits excessive risk-taking by

executives

Long-Term Equity Incentive Provides incentive for employees

Program to focus on long-term

fundamentals and thereby create

long-term stockholder value

Competitive with compensation

programs of other Internet-based

and technology companies

Attracts new hires and rewards

promoted employees

Maintains stockholder-

management alignment

RSUs Pro\ ides upside incentive in up Approximately 53% to 63% of

market with some down market long-term incentive compensation

protection award for Named Executive

Officers for 2010
High retention value

For Messrs Lansing and Binder

one-half of the RSUs vest on the

second anniversary of the grant

date and the remaining portions

vest on the third anniversary of the

grant date For Messrs

Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and

Behl 33 vest on the first

anniversary of the grant date and

the remainder vest ratably

thereafter on semi-annual basis

until the third anniversary of the

grant date
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Element of Compensation

Options

Perquisites

Employment agreements

Compensation Objectives

Incentive for the achievement of

stock price growth

Provides alignment with

stockholders no substantial value

unless stock price significantly

improves

Assists in retaining and attracting

employees in competitive

marketplace with indirect benefit

to Company

Retains and attracts employees in

competitive market

Ensures continued dedication of

employees in case of personal

uncertainties or risk of job loss

Ensures compensation and

benefits expectations are

understood and satisfied

2010 Key Features

Approximately 37% to 47% of

long-term incentive compensation

award for Named Executive

Officers for 2010

33 vest on the first

anniversary of the grant date and

the remainder vest ratably

thereafter on semi-annual basis

until the third anniversary of the

grant date

Very limited beyond what is

offered to all employees and in

the case of the life insurance

benefit identical to many non-

executive employees

All of Named Executive Officers

subject to employment agreements

Double trigger change of control

and actual or constructive

termination of employment

required for severance benefits

generally exception is single

change-of-control trigger for

portion of the equity awards as set

forth in the 1996 Plan

Named Executive Officers

employed as of December 31

2010 have compensation

cut-backs to ensure no Section

280G tax but no tax gross ups

Target TDC

Process for Making Compensation Determinations

As noted above in determining the compensation for the Named Executive Officers the Committee

generally focused on Target TDC which consists of base salary target annual cash incentive bonus and long-

term equity incentive awards

Compensation Differences among Named Executive Officers

The 2010 compensation program was significantly impacted by changes among the Companys executive

officers in 2009 and 2010 including new hires and terminations See Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Introduction and Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Summary In addition the Committee

targeted the cash and annual equity benchmarks for 2010 at the 4Qthi and 80th percentiles respectively on average

for Mr Binder and Mr Lansing Such benchmarking was based on job titles and position responsibilities See

Compensation Discussion and Analysis 2010 Peer Group and Benchmarking
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Advisors Used in Compensation Determinations

Management and Other Employees Compensia and the Committee consulted regularly with Mr Lansing

and Mr Binder regarding the design and implementation of the 2010 executive compensation program Matters

consulted about include the Committees compensation philosophy and objectives the review of the cxperience

current performance and other subjective factors for each executive officer the preferred performance metrics

and performance targets for the annual bonus program the recommended adjustments for performance met ics

and other financial and operational issues related to compensation The Committee has historically consulted

with the CEO and CFO because they have significant involvement in and knowledge of the Conipanys business

goals strategies and performance the overall effectiveness of executive officers and each persons individual

contribution to the Companys performance The Companys General Counsel was also consulted regarding legal

issues related to compensation

The Committee takes managements recommendations into consideration but retains the discretion to

modify such recommendations and reviews such recommendations for their reasonableness based on its

compensation philosophy and related considerations The CEO CFO and General Counsel are regularly invited

to attend Committee meetings The Committee generally meets iii executive session outside the presence of

management to discuss compensation issues generally as well as to review the performance of and determine

the compensation of the CEO CFO and General Counsel The Companys legal advisors human resources

department and corporate accounting department support the Committee in developing and administering the

Companys compensation plans and programs

Third-Party Consultants In 2010 the Committee engaged Compensia Inc as its independent

compensation consultant to advise on non-employee director and executive officer compensation matters The

Committee solely approved all engagement fees and other retention terms of Compensia and determined

Compensias responsibilities Compensia did not provide more than $120000 in othei services to the Company

during 2010

The Committee consulted with Compensia with respect to the design and implementation of the 2010

executive compensation program The Committees engagement of Compensia for 2010 included market study

of Target TDC for seven executive officers including Messrs Lansing and Binder The Committee used the

market study to assess market conditions and the competitiveness of the existing program as well as to

benchmark total cash and equity compensation The market study included blend of Compensias survey data

of high technology companies with revenues of $50 million to $500 million and proxy data of 18 other

companies primarily in the Internet software and services industry See 2010 Peer Group and Benchmarking

below In addition the Committee received proxy statement data and information on material compensation

trends to provide general understanding of current compensation practices

2010 Peer Group and Benchmarking

The Committee targeted the cash and annual equity benchmarks for 2010 at the 4Qth and 80th percentiles

respectively on average Such benchmarking was based on job titles and position responsibilities To the extent

current compensation was above such benchmarks the applicable component was held constant
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The market study included blend of Compensia survey data of high technology companies with revenues

of $50 million to $500 million and proxy data of 18 companies primarily in the Internet software and services

industry The following tables set forth the proxy group of 18 companies The Company was between the 50th

and 75uht percentile in revenue and revenue growth below the 25th percentile in net income loss and between

the 25t5 and 50th percentile in market capitalization

Ancestry.coni Inc DealerTrack Holdings Inc Marchex Inc

Art Technology Group Inc Dice Holdings Inc Move Inc

Blue Nile Inc Internap Network Services Corporation NIC Inc

comScore Inc Internet Brands Inc Shutterfly Inc

Constant Contact Inc Keynote Systems Inc Travelzoo Inc

CyberSource Corporation The Knot Inc Web.com Group Inc

2010 Compensation Determinations

Annual Base Salary

The base salaries of Named Executive Officers are reviewed on an annual basis as well as at the time of

promotion or other significant change in responsibilities The following table sets forth the base salaries approved

for the Named Executive Officers for 2010 and 2009

Name 2010 2009 Change

William Lansing $410000 $410000

David Binder $243000 $210000 15.7%

Stephen Hawthornthwaite $225000

Nikhil Behl $210000

Travis McElfresh $210000

Mr Binders base salary was increased primarily due to the benchmarking noted above The base salaries of

Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI reflect the minimum levels specified in their respective

employment agreements entered into in 2010 Mr Lansings base salary reflects the minimum level specified in

his employment agreement entered into in 2009

Annual Cash Incentive Bonus Plan

The target bonus for each Named Executive Officer is calculated based on percentage
of base salary The

respective employment agreements of the Named Executive Officers establish minimum target bonuses as

percentage of salary Earned bonuses for each performance measure range
from 65% to 150% multiplied by the

component weighting based on the achievement of the specified Company based performance measures The

annual bonus plan also provides negative discretion to the Committee to the extent Named Executive Officers do

not achieve specified individual performance goals The Committee also may adjust the final bonus amount as it

deems appropriate to reflect changes in the industry the Company the executives job duties or performance or

any other circumstance the Committee determines should impact bonus awards

Performance Measures Since 2004 the Committee has used revenue and Adjusted EBITDA as the two

Company-based performance measures of the annual bonus plan The individual performance goals reflect

among other things the executives job position and responsibilities as well as the Companys short-term and

long-term strategic goals and competitive pressures
The Committee generally approves minimum target and

maximum performance levels such that the relative difficulty of achieving the target cash bonus is consistent
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from year to year Beginning in 2010 the Committee used annual target performance periods instead of quarterly

or semi-annual target performance periods used in prior years Further beginning in 2010 all bonus payments

were made annually instead of certain executives receiving bonus payments on semi-annual basis

Revenue is critical measure nf the Cnmpanys nperatinns and grnwth and serves as the primary basis fnr

funding the Companys strategic plans

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization excluding

non cash stock-based compensation expense and non-recurring and non-operating items For the purpose of the

annual bonus plan Adjusted EBITDA is not necessarily the Adjusted EBITDA number provided in connection

with the Companys earnings releases and SEC reports because the bonus performance measure excludes certain

non operational gains or losses The Committee uses Adjusted EBITDA because it believes it is an important

measure of the Companys operating performance Specifically this measure focuses on the Companys essential

operating results by removing the impact of the Companys capital structure interest income from investments

asset base depreciation and amortization tax consequences specified non-operating items and specified

non-cash items The Adjusted EBITDA measure used for earnings releases and SEC reports is used by

management for internal management purposes when publicly providing guidance on possible future results and

as means to evaluate period-to-period comparisons Adjusted EBITDA is also common measure used by

investors and analysts to evaluate the Companys performance as it provides more complete understanding of

the Companys results of operations and trends affecting the Companys business when viewed together with

GAAP results

2010 Program The Committee established the following bonus payout scale based on the achievement of

Company-based performance measures with the achievement of total revenue adjusted revenue defined as total

revenue adjusted for specified volatile distribution accounts and Adjusted EBITDA weighted 20% 20% and

60% respectively Performance results are rounded up to the nearest percentage point The bonus payout for the

achievement of each metric is independent from the achievement of any other metric

Performance level

Below threshold 0% 79% 0%
At or above threshold/below target 80%

81% 99%

65%

67%to98%

Target

Above target/below maximum

Maximum

100%

101% to 134%

135% or more

100%

101% to 149%

150%

For each whole
percentage point between threshold and target the bonus achievement percentage is

increased by 1.75% For each whole percentage point between target and maximum the bonus achievement

percentage is increased by 1.43%

The target Company-based performance measures and the Companys actual performance in 2010 are set

forth below dollars in thousands

Earned Bonus

of Target

Performance goal Target Actual Bonus

Core segment revenue $281911 $214343 0.0%

Adjusted Core segment revenuel $208714 $l884802 84.3%

Comnierce segment revenue3 27072 32492 130.0%

Adjusted EBITDA Core

segment1 29255 244294 72.0%

Adjusted EBITDA Commerce

segment3 2850 4820 0.0%

Weighting Actual Weighting

20%

20%

40%

$2u7o46 50%

60% 26161 50%

60%

Actual Revenue/Adjusted EBITDA
vs Target Earned bonus of Target bonus

2010 2009
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Core segment measures were used for all executive bonus computations other than Mr BehIs

Adjusted Core segment revenue excludes all revenue generated by Make The Web Better in 2010

E-Commerce segment measures were used for Mr Behls bonus computation

Adjusted EBITDA Core segment also excludes Manos litigation costs the benefit from the acquisition of

Make The Web Better in 2010 executive severance costs and accounting method change adjustments

Notwithstanding the foregoing the Committee also required each Named Executive Officer to achieve at

least 50% of the specified individual performance goals in order to earn any bonus regardless of the Companys

performance noted above The Committee retained discretion to pay out partial or no bonuses if such individual

performance goals were at least 50% but not 100% achieved In addition the Chief Executive Officer was also

entitled to use multiplier of 0.8 to 1.2 times the bonus amounts for each executive officer but the total revisions

had to result in net zero change to the total dollars awarded to such executives

Target and earned annual bonus The following table sets forth the target annual bonus for 2010 and

2009 and the earned annual bonus for 2010 approved for the Named Executive Officers

Target annual bonus Target annual bonus

of base salary
_____________________ 2010 earned

Name 2010 2009 2010 2009 annual bonus

William Lansingl 100% 100% $410000 $410000

David Binder 60% 50% $145800 $105000 $89958

Steven Hawthornthwaite2 60% $135000 $63299

Nikhil Behl2 50% $105000 $35311

Travis McElfresh 50% $105000 $17793

Mr Lansing did not earn 2010 annual bonus due to his termination of service and in accordance with his

separation agreement

2010 Earned Annual Bonus reflects prorated bonuses due to employment for less than the full year On an

annualized basis Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behl would have earned bonus of $81068

$63053 and $54613 respectively

Mr Binders target annual bonus as percentage of base salary was increased due to benchmarking His

target annual bonus in dollars was also impacted by his base salary increase The target annual bonus of

Mr Lansing reflects the minimum target level specified in his employment agreement entered into in 2009 The

target annual bonus of Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and Behl reflect the minimum levels specified in

theii respective empluyment agreements entered intu in 2010

The Committee determined that at least 100% of the individual performance goals were satisfied by the

Named Executive Officers The Committee did not otherwise use any negative discretion in approving the 2010

bonus amounts and the Chief Executive Officer did not revise
any

executive bonuses determined by the

Committee
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Long-Term Equity Incentive Program

The Committee uses long-term equity compensation program consisting of stock options and RSUs

Continuing Named Executive Officers Messrs Lansing and Binder received stock options and RSUs in

Mmcli 2010 in connection with the ordinaiy course long-term equity compensation program Approximately

53% of their long term compensation award was granted in RSUs with the remaining portion granted in options

The options vest over three-year period with 33 3% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and the

remainder vesting ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis One-half of the RSUs vest on the second anniversary

of the grant date and the remaining portion vests on the third anniversary of the grant date Their equity grants for

the 2010 compensation program are set forth in the following table

RSU Options

Decrease Total

2010 Award Decrease
2010 Award

in Grant Decrease

__________________ in Grant ____________________ Date Fair in Grant

Grant Date Fair Grant Value Date Fair

Date Fair Value from Date Fair from Value

Name Value Shares 2009 Value Shares 2009 from 2009

WilhiamJ Lansing $797720 74000 51.2% $708458 183000 83.3% 74.4%
David Binder $312620 29000 16.l% $278737 72000 20.8% 18.4%

Mr Lansings equity compensation was significantly reduced from 2009 due to the new hire grants in 2009

Mr Binders equity compensation decreased from 2009 due to benchmarking

New Hire Named Executive Officers Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI received stock

options and RSUs in 2010 in connection with their hiring Approximately 63% 59% and 58% of the long tern3

compensation award of Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI respectively was granted in RSUs with

the remaining portion grants in options The options and RSUs vest over three-year period with 33 3/C vesting

on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder vesting ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis

RSU Options

Grant Date Grant Date

Name Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares

Stephen Hawthornthwaite $1359600 120000 $813775 200.000

Nikhil Behi 806400 90000 $582425 180000

Travis McElfresh 826000 100000 $584285 200000

The foregoing equity compensation resulted from the competitive hiring market

Equity Compensation Other Policies

Timing and Pricing of Share-Based Grants in 2010 The Committee did not grant equity awards in

anticipation of the release of material nonpublic information Similarly the Company did not time the release of

material nonpublic information based on equity award grant dates

In accordance with the 1996 Plan the exercise price of an option is the closing price of the Companys

common stock as reported by NASDAQ on the date approved by the Committee to be the date of grant which

date is not earlier than the date the Committee approved such grant

Prohibition Against Short Selling or other Hedging of Company Securities On November 2010 the

Board of Directors amended the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to prohibit any director officer or other

employee agent or contractor from engaging in short sales of or otherwise hedging the Companys securities

This prohibition includes any transaction direct or indirect involving financial instruments including prepaid

variable forward contracts equity swaps collars and exchange funds that are designed to hedge or offset any

decrease in the market value of Company securities This prohibition applies to all securities issued by the

Company including equity and debt
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Perquisites

The Company has historically maintained conservative approach to providing perquisites to executive

officers These perquisites have been carefully selected to ensure that there is an indirect benefit to the Company
and that the value provided to employees is not excessive In addition many perquisites offered to executives are

offered to all employees generally Although offered to all employees the one perquisite that is not offered at the

same level to every employee is the $150000 life insurance plan for which the Company pays the premium The

life insurance plan provides benefit of two times the annual salary of each employee capped at $150000

While the limit of the $150000 life insurance plan ofTered to the executive officers is higher than the limit

offered to some employees all employees with salary of at least $75000 enjoy the same benefit offered to the

executive officers

Severance Payments

As noted earlier Messrs Lansing and Voelkers employment with the Company ended in 2010 and they

earned significant severance payments See Potential Payments Upon termination of Employment for

description of these severance arrangements as well as potential payments and benefits to the other Nanied

Executive Officers under the Companys compensation plans and ai-rangements upon termination of employment

and/or change of control of the Company

All of the Named Executive Officers have or had at the time they were employed by the Company an

employment agreement with the Company that includes specified severance benefits In general cash severance

is only paid upon termination of employment by the Company without cause termination of

employment by the executive with good reason death or disability of the executive or change of

control

fundamental feature of the change of control provisions in the employment agreements is that the benefits

have double-trigger which means that two events must occur for payments to be made change of control

and the actual or constructive termination of employment in this case within specified period before or after

such trigger event The change of control provisions also contain cut-back on severance compensation to

ensure no Section 280G tax is triggered The Committee believes that the foregoing change of control

compensation is in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders to ensure the continued dedication of

such employees notwithstanding the possibility threat or occurrence of change of control Further it is

imperative to diminish the inevitable distraction of such employees by virtue of the personal uncertainties and

risks created by pending or threatened change of control and to provide such employees with compensation

and benefits arrangements upon change of control that are competitive with those of other companies

Notwithstanding the foregoing portion of the equity awards are subject to single trigger under the terms

of the 1996 Plan see details below under Potential Payments Upon Termination ojEmplovment JnjbSpace

Inc Restated 1996 Flexible Stock Incentive Plan

Policy Regarding Retroactive Adjustments

Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires company to claw back certain incentive-based

compensation and stock profits of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer if the conipany is

required tn
prepare an accnunting restatement due tn the material noncnmpliance of The cnmpany as result nf

misconduct with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws The Committee does not

otherwise have formal policy regarding whether the Committee will make retroactise adjustments to or attempt

to recover cash or share-based incentive compensation granted or paid to senior management in which the

payment was predicated upon the achievement of certain financial results that are subsequently the subject of

restatement The Committee intends to adopt an appropriate recoupment policy following the approval of

applicable regulations required by the Dodd Frank Act
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Accounting and Tax Considerations

Deductibility of Executive Officer Compensation

The Committee has reviewed the Companys compensation programs and policies in light of

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code which statcs that annual compensation in excess of $1 million paid

to the Companys CEO and the three other highest compensated executive officers excluding the CFO is not

deductible by the Company for federal income tax purposes subject to specified exemptions the most significant

of which is certain performance based compensation

The Committee intends to continue to review the application of Section 162m with respect to any future

compensation arrangements considered by the Company To maintain flexibility in compensating the Companys

executive officers to meet variety of objectives the Committee does not have policy that all executive

compensation must be tax deductible

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Section 409A of the Code provides that amounts deferred under nonqualified deferred compensation

arrangements will be included in an employees income when vested unless certain conditions are met If the

conditions are not satisfied amounts subject to such arrangements will be immediately taxable and employees

will be subject to additional income tax penalties and further additional income tax calculated as interest on

income taxes deferred under the arrangemcnt In recent years the Company revised certain of its compensation

agreements to ensure that all of the Companys employment severance and deferred compensation

arrangements satisfy the requirements of Section 409A to allow for deferral without accelerated taxation

penalties or interest

Change in Control Payments

Section 280G of the Code disallows companys tax deduction for excess parachute payments generally

defined as payments to specified persons that are contingent upon change of control in an amount equal to or

greater than three times the persons base amount the five-year average of Form W-2 compensation

Additionally Code Section 4999 imposes 20% excise tax on any person who receives excess parachute

payments

The Companys employment agreements with Named Executive Officers and its share-based plans entitle

participants to payments in connection with change in control that may result in excess parachute payments As

noted earlier the former employment agreements with Messrs Lansing and Voelker provided for full tax

gross-up on benefits that exceed the limits set forth in Section 280G of the Code The employment agreements of

the other Named Executive Officers include cut back on severance compensation to ensure no Section 2800

tax is triggered
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COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation earned in 2010 and prior years to

the extent applicable by the Named Executive Officers

Summary Compensation Table

Name and principal Stock Option

position Year Salar Bonos awards1 awards1
_______________________________________

William Ruckeishaus 2010 56.923 289.3243 302743
President and Chief Executive

Officer

William Lansing 2010 $354808 797720 708458

Former Chief Executive 2009 $376885 175000 $1636000 $4247793

Officer

David Binder

Chief Financial Officer

2010 $236193

2009 $210808

2008 $210846

312620

372.750

756427

279737

351838

507528

89958

$134137

$122456

7451

7494

252667

Stephen Hawthornthwaite 2010 $177404 $1359600 813775

Vice President of Corporate

Development

NikhilBehl 2010 $137308 100000 806400 582426 35311 67 $1661512
Chief Executive Officer of

Mercantila

Travis McElfresh 2010 60577

Chief Technoingy ìfficer

826000 584285 17793 $1488655

James Voelker4 2010 150577

Former Executive Chairman 2009 $171731 39111

of the Board of Directors 2008 $403077 $3600000 $1748000 $466500

Stock awards consist of RSUs granted under the 1996 Plan with each RSU representing the right to receive

one share of our common stock upon vesting Option awards consist of options granted under the 1996 Plan

to purchase shares of our common stock The dollar amount for stock and option awards is the grant date

fair value excluding the effect of estimated forfeitures Assumptions used in the valuation of stock and

option awards granted in 2010 are discussed in Note Stock-based Compensation Expense of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2010

All other conipensation in 2010 consists of

Life Fees earned

insorance in cash while

policy non-employee Derivative

________________________ ______________
premium director Severance settlementa

17 $55250

93 1640000b
$101

84

$67

$101 $2400000c $449164

All other compensation

William Ruckeishaus

William Lansing

David Binder

Stephen Hawthornthwaite

Nikhil RehI

James Voelker

Non-equity

incentive plan All other

compensation compensation2 Total

55267 431788

$1647443 $3508429

$486761 7482 $6929921

924959

$1077027

$1849924

63299 344 $2414422

$2854938

7494

7044

$3005515

218336

$6224621

Contributions

under 401k
plan

$7350

$7350

260

$5.673
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Consists of taxable gain on the value placed on the securities surrendered as part of the settlement of

shareholder derivatis litigation see disclosure in Note Commitments and Contingencies of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II in the Annual Report on Form 10

filed the Company on March 2011

Pas ment will be made ratably on the Companys regular payroll schedule over two years concluding

in November 2012

Lump sum payment was made in the first quarter of 2011

On May 11 2010 we granted Mr Ruckelshaus options to purchase 11 .100 shares of our common stock and

4500 RSUs as compensation earned as non-employee director These awards are expected to vest on

May 11 2011 The grant date fair value of the option award was $30.274 or $2.73 per share based on the

Black ScholesMerton aluation model The grant date fair value of the RSU award of $39330 was based

on the closing share price on May 11 2010 of $8.74 per share

Mr Voelker was an executise officer at the beginning of 2010 but ceased to bean executive after the

reduction of his role and his separation from service in August 2010

Employment Agreements As set forth in their respective ehployment agreements as updated

Mr Binders base salary is $243000 with minimum incentive bonus of 50% of his current base salary

Mr Hawthornthwaites base salary is $225000 with target incentive bonus of 60% of his current base salary

Mr McElfreshs base salary is 8210.000 with target incentive bonus of 50c of his current base salary

Mr BehI base salars is $210000 with target incentive bonus of 50 of his current base salary and

retention bonus totaling 8500.000 if he remains employed through May 10 2011 and Mr Lansings base salary

ss as $410000 ss ith minimum incentive bonus of 00% of his base salary See Potential Payments Upon
Termination of Employment for more detailed description of the material terms of the employment

agreements of Messrs Binder Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI and the severance agreements of Messrs

Lansing and Voelker See Compensation Discussion and Analysis Executive Summary Messrs Ruckelshaus

and Voelker for description of the employ ment agreements of Messrs Ruckelshaus and Voelker

Izief Executive QtiIcers Mr Voelker served as InfoSpaces CEO from 2003 through February 2009

Mr Lansing served as CEO from February 2009 to November 11 2010 Mr Ruckelshaus has served as CEO

since November II 2010

Non-equity Incentive Compensation Non equity incentive compensation for 2010 consists of amounts

earned under the 2010 InfoSpace Executive Bonus Plan Non equity incentive compensation for 2009 and 2008

if any consist of amounts earned under the 2009 InfoSpace Executive Bonus Plan and the 2008 Executive Bonus

Plan respectively

New Hire Equity Grants In 2010 Messrs Hawthornthwaite McElfresh and BehI received relatively

higher percentage of equity compensation as part of the new hire compensation package used to attract such

emplos ees as well as to quickly establish alignment with stockholders consistent with the Compensation

Committees past practice for newly hired or promoted executive officers Likewise in 2009 Mr Lansing also

received relatis ely higher percentage of equity compensation as part of the new hire compensation package

All Other Compezsation All other compensation in 2009 and 2008 includes contributions under

lnfoSpaces 40 1k plan and premiums for the Named Executive Officers $150000 life insurance policy In

2008 All Other Compensation for Mr Binder also included 147.132 of payments in connection with the special

dividends declared by InfoSpace in 2007 and paid in 2008 and $98491 of tax gross-up related to these

payments
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2010

The following table sets forth certain information regarding non-equity and equity plan-based awards

granted by InfoSpace to the Named Executive Officers in 2010

All other

Estimated possible payouts

under

non-equity incentive plan

ass ards

_________
Target Maximum

stock

awards Grant

number date fair

of value of

shares stock and
of stock option

or units awards

30.274

32.5092 249.994

4.5003 39.330

1830004 $10.78 708.458

74.0005 797.720

72.0004 $10.78 278.737

29.0005 312620

200.0007 $11.33 813775

120.0007 $1 .359.600

1800008 8.96 a82.426

90.0008 806400

Consists of options granted to Mr Ruckelshaus under the 2010 non-employee director compensation plan

Consists of RSUs granted pursuant to Mr Ruckelshauss employment agreement The RSUs vest monthly

over one year such that they are fully vested on November II 2011

Consists of RSUs granted to Mr Ruckelshaus under the 2010 non-employee director compensation plan

Consists of awards granted on March 29 2010 under the long term equity incentive compensation program

vesting on the standard schedule noted below

Consists of RSUs granted on annual basis under the long term equity incentive compensation program The

RSUs vest over three years 50% vests on March 29 2012 and 50% vests on March 29 2013

Amounts are pro-rated for the periods that each officer was employed by InfoSpace during 2010

Consists of awards granted on March 22 2010 pursuant to Mr Hawthornthwaites employment agreement

vesting on the standard schedule noted below

Consists of awards granted on May 10 2010 pursuant to Mr BehIs employment agreement vesting on the

standard schedule noted below

Consists of awards granted on November 2010 pursuant to Mr McElfreshs employment agreement

vesting according to the following schedule 33.33% vests on September 20 2011 and the remainder vest

ratably thereafter on semi annual basis until September 20 2013

Non-equity Incentive Plan Awards The estimated possible payouts show the potential value of the payout

for each Named Executive Officer under the 2010 InfoSpace Executive Bonus Plan if the threshold target or

maximum performance measure goals are satisfied as described in the CDA above The possible payouts were

performance-driven and therefore were completely at risk As described in the CDA the targets are set to be

challenging and to require significant effort for their achievement In 2010 adjusted revenue and Adjusted EBITDA

thresholds were each exceeded during the year while the total revenue threshold was not met The threshold amount

described above is based on meeting only one of the smallest of the three performance goals at the threshold range

with an additional 20% deduction for individual performance goals as provided for in the plan

Grant

date Threshold

5/11/20 JO

12/7/20 It

5/1 1/2010

All other

option Exercise

awards or base

number of price per

securities share of

underlying option

options awards

Il1001$ 8.74

Name

William Ruckeishaus

William Lansing

David Binder

Stephen Hawthornthwaitc

Nikhil BehI

3/29/2110

3/29/2010

$36.7996 $3538366 $6369046

3/29/2t It

3/29/20 10

$14.l63 $136187 $245136

3/22/2t It

3/22/2010

$lO.9636 87.8436 $1 89.7406

5/10/2010

5/10/2010

7.0616 81.4696 $1222036

Travis McElticsh 11/3/20 It 2000009 8.26 S84.285

100.0009 826.000

3.0826 29.6306 53.3346
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Stock Awards and Option Awards All othei stock awards and all other option awards consist of RSUs

and options iespecti.ely gianted unde our 1996 Plan Each RSU represents the right to receive one share of our

common stock upon sesting and the options reptesent the right to purchase shares of our common stock The

exercise or basc price per share ol option awat ds column consists of the strike price for options granted Options

were granted at an excrcisc pricc cqual to the closing price of our common stock on the dare of the grant

Assumptions used in the valuation of these awards are discussed in Note Stock based Compensation

Expense of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Item of Part II in our Annual Report on

Form 10 for thc ycar cnded Decembei 31 2010

Except as noted in the above tahle stock and option awards generally vest 33 3% on the first anniversary of

the grant date and the remainder vest ratably thereatter on semi annual basis until the third anniversary of the

grant date

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31 2010

The following table sets Iorth information concerning unexercised options and unvested RSUs for each of

the Named Executive Officers outstanding as of December 31 2010

Option AviardsI Stock Awards1

Number of Market
Number of securities

shares value of
underlying onexercised

Intrinsic of stock shares of
options

Option Option salue of that stock that

Grant Not exercise expiration unexercised have not have not

Name date Exercisable exercisable price/share date options2 vested vested2

William Rucke1shau 2/I 1/2010 11.100 8.74 5/11/2017

6/4/O09 7501 6/4/0l6 8325

5/12/2008 7.200 9.64 5/12/2015

5/1/1007 It 001 515 17 5/2/1014

1/7/1 298003 $247340

7/I 1/20 It 4.5004 37.350

William Lansing 1/2/1009 .4111.001 8.18 2/2/2116 $168001

319/2111 83.001 $10.78 3/29/2117

David Binder 3/29/2111 7.OOO $111.78 3/9/0 17

11/2019 70.101 69.999 7.10 n/I 1/2016 $168000

2/29/2008 125.101 5.100 $10.19 2/28/2015

6/7/2006 21001 571.98 6/7/2013

n/19/2006 30.000 $24.47 5/19/2013

7/29/2005 20.001 $24.14 7/29/2012

4/4/1005 N.000 $41.83 4/4/2112

11/8/2104 10.000 $55.09 11/8/2011

3/29/2010 290006 $240700

5/1 /2019 26249 $21 /867

/2/2008 8.3307 69.139

Stephcn Hawlhoi nthss aitc 3/22/t II 200.011 $11.33 3/22/2117

3/2/2010 120000 $996000

Nikhil Bchl 5/10/2110 180001 8.96 5/10/2017

5/10/2010 90.000 $747000

Tras is McEI6esh 11/3/2010 200.0008 8.26 9/20/2017 8.000

11/3/2111 1000008 $830000

James Voelker 450000 $24 29 1/3/2013

12/21/2112 601.000 9.20 12/21/2112

7/19/2002 5.50 6.70 7/19/2012 8.800

Unvested stock and option awards generally vest 33 sc on the first anniversary of the grant date and the

remainder vest ratably thereafter on semi annual basis until the third anniversary of the grant date

Exceptions are noted in the notes below

The intrinsic value of options and the niarket value of unvested RSUs are based on the closing price of our

common stock on December 31 2010 which was $8.30 per share

Vests ratably on the 1111 of every month beginning in December 2010 such that it is fully vested on

November 11.2011
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Granted as part of 2010 non employee director compensation prior to Mr Ruckeishauss appointment to

President and Chief Executive Officer 100% vests on May 11 2011

50% vests on each of March 29 2012 and March 29 2013

Consists of options granted under the InfoSpace Inc Switchboard Incorporated Stock Incentive Plan

l00 vested on January 2011

33 /i% vests on September 20 2011 and the remainder vest ratably thereafter on semi-annual basis until

September 20 2013

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2010

The following table sets forth certain information regarding RSUs held by the Named Executive Officers

that vested during 2010 including the aggregate value realized on such vesting before the payment of any fees

commissions or taxes No stock options were exercised by the Named Executive Officers in 2010

Stock awards

Number of shares Value realized

Name acquired on vesting on vesting1

William Ruckeishaus 2709 21239

William Lansing 274000 $2233790

David Binder 53212 500424

James Voelker 100000 791000

The value realized on vesting was calculated by multiplying the number of shares acquired upon the vesting

of RSUs by the closing price of the Companys common stock per share on the vesting date

Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment

The following section describes potential payments and benefits to the Named Executive Officers under the

Companys compensation and benefit plans and arrangements upon termination of employment or change of

control of the Company as of December31 2010 The amounts set forth for Mr Lansing and Mr Voelker reflect

summary of the actual payments made pursuant to their separation agreenients with the Company

All of the Named Executive Officers have employment agreements with the Company or had such

agreements while employed with the Company and certain of the Companys benefit plans and arrangements

contain provisions regarding acceleration of vesting and payment upon specified events

InfoSpace Inc Restated 1996 Flexible Stock Incentive Plan

Except as explained below under our 1996 Plan any outstanding equity award terminates upon change of

control as defined in the 1996 Plan The equity award does not terminate however if the equity award is

assumed or substituted by the successor corporation or its parent company Regardless of whether the equity

award is assumed or substituted by the successor corporation or its parent company to the extent permitted by

law 25% of unvested equity awards vest immediately prior to change of control transaction If the equity

awards are not assumed or substituted with equity awards providing substantially equal value and substantially

similarprovisions as the equity award then an additional 25% of unvested equity awards vest immediately prior

to change of control transaction Additionally as more fully described below our employment agreements with

our Named Executive Officers provided for some or full acceleration of vesting of all equity awards held by the

Named Executive Officer upon change of control termination of employment of the executive officer by us or

our successor if such termination was not for cause or was by the executive for good reason as well as in some

cases upon termination due to disability or upon the death of the executive The Compensation Committee retains

discretionary authority at any time including immediately prior to or upon change of control to accelerate the

exercisability of any award the end of performance period or the termination of any restriction period The

Compensation Committee did not use this discretion in 2010
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Severance Arrangements

Defined Ternis In general the following definitions or similardefinitions are used in the employment

agreements with Named Executive Officers for specific language for each Named Executive Officer please

review the applicable agreement

Change of control is defined in the employment agreements with our Named Executive Officers as the

occurrence of
any

of the following

Any person as such term is used in Sections 13d and 14d of the Exchange Act is or becomes the

beneficial owner as defined in Rule 3d-3 under said Act directly or indirectly of securities of the Company

representing 50% or more of the total voting power represented by the Companys then outstanding voting

securities

ii Any merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation that has been approved by the

stockholders of the Company other than merger or consnlidation which would result in the vnting securities of

the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing tq represent either by remaining outstanding or

by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity more than 50% of the total voting power

represented by the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such

merger or consolidation or the stockholders of the Company approve plan of complete liquidation of the

Company

iii Any sale or disposition by the Company in one transaction or series of related transactions of all or

substantially all the Companys assets or

iv change in the composition of the Companys Board of Directors occurring within two year period

one-year period in the case of our former CEO and current CEO as result of which fewer than majority of

the directors are Incumbent Directors An Incumbent Director is director who either is director of the

Company as of the effective date of the employment agreement or elected or nominated for election to the

Board of Directors with the affirmative votes of at least majority of the Incumbent Directors at the time of such

election or nomination For purposes
of the preceding individuals who are elected pursuant to clause are also

considered Incumbent Directors

Severance Agreements with David Binder Steven Hawthornthwaite Travis McElfresh and Nikhil Behi

For David Binder Steven Hawthornthwaite Travis McElfresh and Nikhil Behl if the executives

employment is terminated by InfoSpace without cause as defined in the relevant employment agreement or by

the executive for good reason as defined in the relevant employment agreement the executive is entitled to

severance benefits of one-time lump sum payment of 100% of his annual salary rate and 50% of his annual

targeted bonus 100% for Mr Binder acceleration of vesting of 50% of the executives unvested stock options

and RSUs and Company-paid COBRA insurance benefits for up to 12 months from the termination date The

executive officer has 12 months to exercise his vested stock options In addition if Nikhil BehIs employment is

terminated as described in this paragraph prior to May 10 2011 he will be entitled to $150000 of the retention

bonus that he is due on May 10 2011

For such Named Executive Officers in the event of an executive officers death during the term of the

employment agreement such executive officers estate is entitled to severance benefits of 100% of his then-

current annual salary for 90 days the right to exercise the executive officers then-vested options from one year

following the executive officers death and Company-paid COBRA health insurance benefits for 90 days

In the event of such Named Executive Officers termination of employment with the Company due to

disability as defined in the employment agreement such executive officer is entitled to continuing payments of

his base salary until the earlier of eligibility for long-term disability payments under the Companys group

disability policy or 180 days following termination
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The employment agreements with such Named Executive Officers further provide that in the event that the

severance benefits are payable in connection with change of control and constitute parachute payments

within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and ii would be subject to Excise Tax then the severance

benefits otherwise payable in connection with change of control shall be reduced by the minimum extent

necessary such that no portion of such benefits would be subject to the Excise Tax Unless the Company and the

executive otherwise agree in writing any determination shall be made in writing by our independent public

accountants whose determination shall be conclusive and binding upon the executive and the Company for all

purposes The Company shall bear all costs the accountants may reasonably incur in connection with any such

calculations

Prior to receiving severance for any termination such Named Executive Officers are required to sign

release with the Company that includes among other terms confidentiality provision with an unlimited term

Severance Arrangements wit/i Wi//ian Ruckeishaus

In connection with Mr Ruckelshauss selection as the Compan2s President and CEO the Company entered

into an employment agreement with Mr Ruckelshaus effective November 11 2011 and with term of one year

the Ruckeishans Agreement

If Mr Ruckelshauss employment is terminated by InfoSpace without cause as defined in the Ruckelshaus

Agreement or by Mr Ruckelshaus for good reason as defined in the Ruckelshaus Agreement Mr Ruckelshaus

is entitled to severance benefits of the greater of either 90 days of his base salary or the remaining salary for the

one-year term of the Ruckelshaus Agreement payment of any unpaid bonus acceleration of vesting of 100% of

the RSUs granted in the Ruckelshaus Agreement and if he does not remain member of the Companys Board

of Directors after termination vesting of 100% of any other unvested stock options RSUs or other equity and

Company-paid COBRA insurance benefits until the earlier of the time limit to receive COBRA coverage or the

end of the one year term of the Ruckelshaus Agreement In the event of Mr Ruckelshauss death or termination

of employment with the Company due to disability during the term of the agreement he or his estate is entitled

to the severance benefits set forth in this paragraph

The Ruckelshaus Agreement further provides that in the event that the severance benefits are payable in

connection with change of control and constitute parachute payments within the meaning of Section 280G

of the Code and ii would be subject to Excise Tax then the severance benefits otherwise payable in connection

with change of control shall be reduced by the minimum extent necessary such that no portion of such benefits

would be subject to the Excise Tax Unless the Company and the executive otherwise agree in writing any

determination shall be made in writing by our independent public accountants whose determination shall be

conclusive and binding upon the executive and the Company for all purposes The Company shall bear all costs

the accountants may reasonably incur in connection with any such calculations

Prior to receiving severance for any termination Mr Ruckelshaus would be required to sign release with

the Company that includes among other terms confidentiality provision with an unlimited term and

non-solicitation provision with term of one year following any termination of employment

Severance Arrangements with James Voelker

The agreement between the Company and Mr Voelker was amended and restated in November 2008 the

Voelker Agreement The Voelker Agreement provided for an initial employment term ending on

December 31 2010 which was not extended by Mr Voelker and the Company Pursuant to the terms of the

Voelker Agreement because his employment ended on December 31 2010 for reason other than termination

for cause or change of control Mr Voelker was eligible to receive his salary through the date of

termination ii the balance of any incentive awards earned and due but not yet paid iiihis accrued but unused
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vacation time through his termination date iv other payments if any in accordance with applicable plans

programs and other arrangements of the Company any payments due him with respect to expense

reimbursements for expenses incurred prior to the termination date vi lump sum cash payment equal to three

times the sum of his base salary and 100% of the higher of his actual 2008 bonus or his 2008 target bonus and

vii guaranteed continuation of comparable health coverage for him and his family for period of 36 months

Mr Voelker had no outstanding unvested awards after December 31 2010 so no awards were accelerated or

forfeited As condition of receiving these amounts Mr Voelker was required to sign release with the

Company

Severance Arrangements with William Lansing

In connection with Mr Lansings selection as the Companys CEO and President the Company entered into

an employment agreement with Mr Lansing effective February 2009 the Lansing Agreement
Mr Lansings employment was terminated by InfoSpace without cause on November 11 2010 and as result

Mi Lansing was entitled to ieeeive the following his salary through the date of termination ii the balance

of any incentive awards earned and due but not yet paid iiihis accrued but unused vacation time through his

termination date iv other payments if any in accordance with applicable plans programs and other

arrangements of the Company any payments due him with respect to expense
reimbursements for expenses

incurred prior to the termination date vi 24 months continued payment of his annual salary payable in equal

installments over 24 months in an amount equal to 200% of his target bonus vii Company reimbursement for

the cost of Mr Lansings COBRA premiums for no more than 24 months following his termination and

viii acceleration of vesting of 100% of his equity awards All of Mr Lansings outstanding unvested awards

were accelerated and none were forfeited As condition of receiving these amounts Mr Lansing was required

to sign release with the Company copy of which was attached as Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed by the

Company with the SEC on November 12 2010
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Termination or Change in Control as of December 31 2010

The following table sets forth the payments of severance and/or benefits that would be provided to each of

the Named Executive Officers or his estate in the event of such executive officers termination of employment

due to change in control termination by the Company without cause or by the employee for good reason death

or disability assuming no reduction in severance payments related to Section 280G per the terms of their

employment agreements as of December 31 2010

Annual

salary Health Stuck

Name rate1 Other cash2 benefits3 options4 Stock awards4 Total

William Ruckelshaus5

Change in control $345205 150000 $19807 8325 $284690 808027

Without cause6 $345205 150000 $19807 8325 $284690 808027

Death $345205 300000 $19807 8325 $284690 958027

Disability $345205 150000 $19807 8325 $284690 808027

William Lansing

Termination Payment $1640000 $29917 $963750 $2633667

David Binder

Change in control $243000 145800 19.807 $84000 $263853 756460

Without cause6 $243000 145800 19.807 $84000 $263853 756460

Death 59918 150000 4952 214870

Disability $1 19.836 119836

Stephen Hawthornthwaite

Change in control $225000 67.500 $498000 790500

Withnut eaiise6 $225000 67 500 S498.000 790.500

Death 55479 150.000 205479

Disability $1 10.959 110959

Nikhil Behi

Change in control $210000 202.500 $19807 $373500 805807

Without cause6 $210000 202.500 $19807 $373500 805807

Death 51781 150000 4952 206733

Disability $103562 103562

Travis McElfresh

Change in control $210000 52.500 $19807 4000 $415000 701307

Without cause6 $210000 52500 $19807 4000 $415000 701307

Death 51781 150000 4952 206733

Disability $103562 103562

James Voelker

Separation from Service Payment .. $2400000 $65671 $2465671

With respect to change in control payments the amount shown assumes payment of one time annual salary

for Named Executive Officers With respect to termination by the Company without cause or termination by

the employee for good reason the amount shown assumes payment of one years annual salary for all

Named Executive Officers Payment is payable in single lump sum With respect to death and disability

payments the amount shown assumes payment of salary for 90 days and 180 days respectively

With respect to change in control and without cause Other cash primarily consists of annual target bonuses

Payment is payable in single lump suni The amount for Death includes $150000 life insurance policy

payable upon death of employee Mr Lansing is receiving $1.6 million of severance payments ratably

through bi weekly payments during the two years subsequent to his termination date of November 11 2011

per
the terms of the Lansing Agreement Mr Voelker received $2.4 million severance payment in the first

quarter of 2011
per

the terms of the Voelker Agreement

Consists of Company-paid insurance benefits
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The value of the option awards and RSUs that vest is based on the closing price of our common stock on

December 31 2010 which was $8.30 per share except for Mr Lansings which based is based on the

closing price of our common stock on November 11 2010 which was $7.71 per share for the awards

1058000 options and 199000 RSUs that had their vesting accelerated per the terms of the Lansing

Agreement

In addition to the life insurance policy the employment agreement for Mr Ruckelshaus includes payment of

his salary for 90 days lump sum for any unpaid but earned and accrued bonus and 100% of the

immediately vesting of his then-unvested stock awards If Mr Ruckelshaus also does not remain on the

Board of Directors 100% of his then unvested option awards shall immediately vest

Termination without cause or termination by employee with good reason as defined in each Named

Executive Officers employment agreement
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

During 2010 certain executive officers and directors received benefits under our 1996 Plan Our

stocicholders have approved the 1996 Plan and the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

At December 31 2010 of the plans not approved by stockholders described in the table below only the

2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan the 2001 Plan had shares available for future issuance All plans are

described in detail in Note Stockholders Equity in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included

in Item of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010

The following table provides certain information regarding the Companys equity compensation plans as of

December 31 2010

Number of securities Number of securities remaining

to be issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuance

exercise of exercise price of under equity compensation

outstanding options outstanding options plans excluding securities

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rightst3 reflected in column

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholdersl 7004.3802 $11.77 51860024

Equity compensation plans not

approved by stockholdersS 418898 $14.35 1678703

Total 7423278 $11.95 6864705

Includes shares to be issued under the 1996 Plan and our 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Consists of 5626895 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and 1377485

shares of common stock issuable upon vesting of RSUs granted under the 1996 Plan

Consists of the weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options as no warrants or rights other than

options are currently outstanding

Includes 4606589 shares available for future grant under the 1996 Plan and 579413 shares available for

future grant under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Does not include the 1804432 additional

shares that automatically became available for future issuance under the 1996 Plan on January 2011

pursuant to such plan Following such increase and pursuant to the terms of the 1996 Plan this evergreen

provision is no longer effective

Includes 110565 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options under our 2001 Plan There are

1678703 shares remaining available for future grants under such plan Also includes 25000 shares issuable

upon exercise of outstanding options under the InfoSpace Inc Switchboard Incorporated Stock Incentive

Plan which was assumed in connection with the acquisition of Switchboard Also includes 283333 shares

issuable upon exercise of outstanding options assumed in connection with the acquisition of the membership

interests in Four LLC in May 2009
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PROPOSAL TWO

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM FOR 2011

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Deloitte Touche LLP as the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm for 2011 and recommends that stockholders vote for ratification

of this appointment Although stockholder approval of this appointment is not required by law and is not binding

on the Company the Audit Committee will take your vote on this proposal into consideration when appointing

our independent registered public accounting firm in the future Even if you ratify the appointment of Deloitte

Touche LLP the Audit Committee may in its sole discretion terminate such engagement and direct the

appointment of another independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year although it has

no current intention to do so

Deloitte Touche LLP has audited our financial statements annually since 1997 and their appointment has

been ratified by stockholders every year proposed by the Board which has been since the 1999 annual meeting of

stockholders Representatives of Deloitte Touche LLP are expected to be present at the meeting with the

opportunity to make statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate

questions

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THIS PROPOSAL
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PROPOSAL THREE

ADVISORY VOTE ON NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

In accordance with recent revisions to Section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act the Company is

providing stockholders with an advisory non binding vote on the approval of the compensation programs for

our Named Executive Officers Accordingly yoo may vote on the tol lowing resolution at the 2011 annual

meeting of stockholders

Resolved that the stockholders approve on an advisory basis the compensation of the Named

Executive Officers of InfoSpace Inc as disclosed in the Companys proxy statement for the 2011 annual

meeting of stockholders including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis the accompanying

compensation tables and the related narrative disclosure in the Proxy Statement

This vote is nonbinding The Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee expect to consider the

outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions to the extent they can determine

the cause or causes of any significant negative voting results

The compensation of the Named Executive Officers is described in detail under Compensation Discussion

and Analysis Stockholders are encouraged to read the Compensation Discussion and Analysis the

accompanying compensation tables and the related nanative disclosure

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL ON AN
ADVISORY BASIS OF THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AS

DISCLOSED IN THE COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS THE ACCOMPANYING
COMPENSATION TABLES AND THE RELATED NARRATIVE DISCLOSURE
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PROPOSAL FOUR

ADVISORY VOTE ON THE FREQUENCY OF FUTURE ADVISORY VOTES ON NAMED
EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

In addition to providing stockholders with the opportunity in Proposal Threc to cast an advisory vote on the

approval Named Executive Officer compensation the Company is providing stockholders with an advisory vote

on whether future advisory votes on Named Executive Officer compensation should be held every one two or

three years

The Board believes that frequency of every year for the advisory vote on Named Executive Officer

compensation is the optimal interval for conducting say on pay vote

The proxy card and voting instruction card provide stockholders with the opportunity to choose among four

options holding the vote every one two or three years or abstaining and therefore stockholders will not be

voting to approve or disapprove the Boards recommendation

Although this advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on Named Executive Officer

compensation is nonbinding the Board and the Compensation Committee will take into account the outcome of

the vote when considering the frequency of future advisory votes on Named Executive Officer compensation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE
OPTION OF EVERY ONE YEAR FOR FUTURE ADVISORY VOTES ON NAMED EXECUTIVE

OFFICER COMPENSATION

TRANSACTION OF OTHER BUSINESS

The Board of Directors of InfoSpace knows of no other matters to be submitted at the meeting If any other

matters come before the meeting it is the intention of the
persons

named in the accompanying form of
proxy to

vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS

Any stockholder proposal intended to be included in the Conipanys Proxy Statement and form of proxy for

the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to rule 4a of the Exchange Act must be received by the

Company at 601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200 Bellevue Washington 98004 by no later than January 2012

and must otherwise be in compliance with applicable SEC rules

Any director nomination or stockholder proposal of other business intended to be presented for

consideration at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders but not intended to be considered for inclusion in the

Companys Proxy Statement and form of proxy for such meeting i.e not pursuant to Rule 14a of the

Exchange Act must be received in timely manner and otherwise in accordance with the Companys Bylaws

and related policies and procedures In particular our Bylaws establish that nominations for the election of

directors or proposals of other business may be made by any stockholder entitled to vote who has delivered

written notice to the Corporate Secretary of InfoSpace not fewer than 60 days nor more than 90 days in advance

of the annual meeting or with respect to an election of directors to be held at special meeting by the close of

business on the seventh day following the date on which notice of such meeting is first given to stockholders

which notice must contain the information specified in the Bylaws concerning the nominees and concerning the

stockholder proposing such nominations In the event that less than 70 days notice or prior public disclosure of
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the date of the annual meeting is given or made to stockholders notice by the stockholders must be received not

later than the close of business on the tenth day following the earliei of the day on which such noticc of the date

of the annual meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made Further information regarding nomination

of directors is disclosed above in the descriptions of the Nominating and Governance Committee and of the

Director Nomination Process under the heading Board of Directors and Committee Information

We reserve the right to reject rule out of order or take other appropriate action ss ith respect to any

nomination or proposal that does not comply with the requirements of our Bylaws or any applicable laws or

regulations copy of the full text of our Bylaws is available on our company website at www.infospaeeinc.com

or may be obtained by writing to the Corporate Secretary of InfoSpace All notices of proposals by stockholders

whether or not included in our proxy materials should be sent to InfoSpaces principal executive offices at

601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200 Bellevue Washington 98004 Attention Corporate Secretary

ANNUAL REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS

Our Annual Report to Stockholders including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2010 is being furnished together with this proxy statement The Annual Report to Stockholders is

also available on our company website at www.infospaeeinc.com Upon written request by any stockholder to

Alesia Pinney the Coiporate Secretary of InfoSpace at 601 108th Avenue NE Suite 1200 Bellesue

Washington 98004 copy of the Annual Report to Stockholders will be lurnished without charge anti copy of

any or all exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10 will be furnished for fee that will not exceed our

reasonable expenses in furnishing those exhibits Our SEC filings also are asailable to the public at the SECs

website at http//www.sec.gov

By Order of the Board of Directors

Alesia Pinne

General Counsel and Secretary

Bellevue Washington

May 2011
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